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THE BANK'S VISION

i) Premier Indian Financial Services Group with global
perspective, world-class standards of efficiency and

professionalism and core institutional values.

Retain its position in the country as a pioneer in
Development Banking.
i) Maximize shareholder value through high-sustained

earnings per share.

An institution with a culture of mutual care and
commitment, a satisfying and exciting work

environment and continuous learning opportunities.

THE BANK’S MISSION

To retain the Bank’s position as the premier Indian financial
services group, with the world class standards and
significant global business, committed to excellence in
customer, shareholder and employee satisfaction, and to
play a leading role in the expanding and diversifying
financial services sector, while continuing emphasis on

its development banking role.




STATE BANK OF INDIA

PROXY FORM
Folio No.:
A DP/Client-ID No.

[/ We :

of being(a) shareholder(s) of the State Bank of India holding shares
Nos. on the Register of shareholders at the Central Office of the
‘Bank do hereby appoint __of

(or failing him /her of

) as my/ our proxy to vote
for me/us and on my/ our behalf at a meeting of the shareholders of the State Bank of India to be

held at on the
‘ . : day of : " and
at any adjournment thereof. : :
Dated this day of
30 paise
Rev.
Stamp

No instrument of proxy shall be valid unless in the case of an individual shareholder it is signed
by him or by his attorney duly authorised in writing, or in the case of joint holders, it is signed by
the shareholders first named in the Register or his attorney.duly authorised in writing, or in the
case of a Company it is executed under its common seal, if any, or signed by its attorney duly
authorised in writing.

Provided that an instrument of proxy shall be suff1c1ently signed by any shareholder, who is,
for any feason, unable to write his name, if his mark is affixed thereto and attested by a Judge,
Magistrate, Justice of the Peace, Registrar or Sub-Registrar of Assurances, or other Government
Gazetted Officer or an Officer of the Reserve Bank of India or the State Bank of India.

A proxy, unless appointed by a Company, should be a Director of the Central Board /Member
of the Local Board / Shareholder of the State Bank of India, other than an officer or employee of the
State Bank of India.

No Proxy shall be valid unless it is duly stamped and unless it, together with the power of
attorney or other authority (if any) under which it is signed, or a copy of that power of attorney or
authority certified by a Notary Public or a Magistrate is deposited with the Central Office or other
office designated from time to time by the Chairman or Managing Director in this behalf, not less
than 7 clear days before the date fixed for the meeting. (In case a power of attorney is already
registered with-the Bank, the Folio No. and Registration No. of the power of attorney be also
mentioned).

The following are authorised to accept the proxy form, power of attorney or other authority:
(@) Shares & Bonds Dept., State Bank of India, Central Office, 9th Floor, State Bank Bhavan,

Madame Cama Road, Mumbai-400 021.

(b) The Officer-in-charge, Shares & Bonds Cell at the Bank’s LHO of the Centre where the AGM
is to be held.

(¢) M/sDatamatics Financial Software & Services Limited, Unit: State Bank of India, PlotA 16 &

' 17, MIDC, Part B, Cross Lane, Marol, Andheri (East), Mumbai - 400 093.
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STATE BANK OF INDIA

' ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING/GENERAL MEETING OF
SHAREHOLDERS

ATTENDANCE SLIP

Date: [ | [ [ [2]0f0] |
FolioNo: L1 J L1 1 1] | |

DP/ClientIDNo.: [ [T 1T T T T T T T 111

Full Name of the Shareholder :

(as appearing on share certificate/recorded with DP)

Registered address :

_. PIN [T TTT]
Total number of Sharesheld: [ [ T T T T T [ ]}
Share Certificate Nos. From (TTTTTT] T[T ITTTTT1

Whether having voting rights in terms of Regulation 31 (1) and (2): Yes / No
(one vote for every 50 shares of the face value of Rs. 10 each)

If yes number of votes to which he/she is entitled :

In person as a shareholder

As a proxy ‘
As a duly authorised representative
TOTAL

Signature Attested ) (Signature of Shareholder)
Name: '

Designation:

Seal/Stamp:

Note:

i)

ii)

iif)

The Branch Managers/Managers of Divisions of the branches of the State Bank of India (whose
signatures are circulated) are authorised to attest the signature of the shareholders, on
production of suitable evidence of his/her shareholding to the branch where the shareholders
may be maintaining account.

If the shareholder maintains account with a bank other than State Bank of India, the signature
may be attested by the Branch Manager of that Bank, affixing the branch seal / stamp to evidence
the attestation.

Alternatively, the shareholder may have his/ her signéture attested by a Notary or a first class
Magistrate.

The signature of shareholders can also be got attested at the venue of the Meeting by the

* designated officers of the State Bank of India, on production of satisfactory evidence of his/

her identification such as Passport/ Dnvmg Licence with photograph Voters Identlty Card or
such other similar acceptable evidence.
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ST'ATENBANK OFINDIA
Can_tral Office, Mumbai-400 021.

Noftie

Tne- 49" Annual General Meetrng of the Shareholders
of the Stat’é Bank of India will be held at Nehru ‘

»Mumbal 400 018 (Maharashtra) on Fnday, the 9th JuIy,
2004 at 3.30 P.M. for transacting the following business ;-

“to receive the Central Board's Report, the Balance
Sheet and Profit and L.oss Account of the Bank made
- up to the 31st March, 2004 and the Auditors' Report

.. onthe Balance Sheet and Accounts.”
2

P L,»

TR, (W FARTER)  Mumbai. (A.K. PURWAR)
feAi: 07 %, 2004 ‘ sy - Date: 7" May, 2004 R CHAIRMAN
Re-gEt | Centents

Fra = % v, worg 9 @ e veue ‘ ‘ List of Directors of the Central Board, Members of the
Hﬁ!ﬁf%m ‘crmﬁfﬁ%é@r qﬁ@ﬁ@ 2 Local Boards and Central Management Committee,
. el g and the Bank's Auditors
e e : . Performance Indicators, - - ., -
sE AT ‘ o 9 Highlights '
FAFHFAE 10 From the Chairman's Desk 1
Ry # fae - ‘ Directors' Report ~ * * = -
W‘Fﬁﬁf@w A - ‘Management Discussion and Analysis
A yeyfw S ofgem . - - 16 Economic Backdrop and Banking Environment 17
ﬁa'}qﬁsqraq , 18 Financial Performance 19
foroqre =0 farfmeard ‘ Performance Highiights -
IR A i o4 - Treasury Operations 25
ﬁa o reTmTTT T e LT T T Corporaté Banking Groupt T 28
%ﬁmw 24 National Banking Group = o 27
WWW ‘ i . 26 International Banking Group =~ *~ 31
Wa‘mmﬁ - 30 Associates and Subsidiaries 37
T 3R STt ' 36 NPA Management 43
aSteR qREafa yevA ' .42 ‘Information Technology 45
Wﬁrﬁnﬁrﬁ ' 44 .- " Internal Control Systems and
- arraﬁa?ﬁaamwﬁmamaaﬁwfw . 48 their Adequacy ... - - 49
S R 50 Cross Selling 53
: Management Informatlon System 53
WWWW oo 52 Allied Activites .~ - SR 55
Tag wdFHATT v ] - 54 Human Resources Management : 55
HHS THIYA J997 54 Official- Language - 59
TAGE. . ' - .58 Responsibility Statement ~~ -~ . =~ - 59
m . Annexure: Non-Banking Subsidiaries/
. ﬁl’éltﬂl 14._.. JR— _5.8 . e ——--JOINt -Ventureg-- - - — .g~ P S | W
TR ﬁ-{% T 'WW 62 Corporate Governance S ‘ - 87
mﬁw - o 66 . Annexures : i
SIS o . 8o ‘Balance Sheet, Profit & Loss Account and ’
Y, T T A @ do Tt wae faaw : Cash Flow Statement of
- YA RE 9% © 106 ~ State Bank of India 106
- R ¥ T (wifHd) 139

—- O ™ N

~ State Bank Group (Consolidated) 139
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‘_Dlrector (ex officio) under
Section 19(bb) of SBI Act

; Dxrectors elected under Section 19(c) of. -

'Shri P.R. Khanna

Gentral Board
of Birectors

(As on 28th May 2004)

Cheurman .
Shri Arun Kurhar Purwar

Managlng Directors B L
Shri C. Bhattacharya :
Shri K. Ashok Kini

!

Shri K.P. Jhunjhunwala
Term: 3 years or appointment of Successor,
wh|chever is later. ‘

SBI Act : : Lo .
Dr. I.G. Patel
Shri Ajay G. Plramal ,

Shri Suman Kumar Bery
Term: 3 years or re- elected for further perlod of
3 years.

Director nominated under Sectnon 19(ca) of
SBI Act
Shri Ananta C. Kalita' | °

Director nominated under Sectlon 19(cb)
SBI Act
Shri Shantha Raju

Directors under Section 19(d) of SBI Act
Dr. Kirit S. Parikh -

Shri Arun Singh

Shri Rajiv Pandey

Shri Piyush Goyal

Term: 3 years or till the Successor is appointed
~ maximum 6 years.

Director under Section 19(e) of SBl Act
Shl‘l N.S. Sisodia

Director under Section 19(f) of SBI Act
Shri A.V. Sardesai
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Members of Loce! Bos

(As on 28th May 2004)

Ahmedabad
Shri A.K. Sharma
Chief General Manager (Ex-Officio)

Dr. 1.G. Patel *
Shri B.J. Bhandutia
Shri Sanjay Dalsukhbhai Shah

Bangalore

Shri PK. Mitra

Chief General Manager {Ex-Officio)
Shri Madan Bindurao Desai ‘
Shri Prabhakara Narasimha Nayak
Smt. Sudha Raju

Ms. Priya Mascarenhas

Bhopal

Shri S. Bhattacharyya

Chief General Manager (Ex- Ofﬂao)
Shri Chintamani. Shukla

Smt. Madhuri Seth

Shri Anwar Jafri

--Shri Shalabh Sharma - -

Bhubaneswar

Shri V.8.G. Chandra Shekhar
Chief General Manager (Ex- OffICIO)
Smt. Saveeta Mohanty .
Shri Arun Kumar Sabat

Shri Shakti Ranjan Das

Chandigarh
Shri A.D. Chaudhuri

Chief General Manager (Ex-Officio) -

Shri Suman Kumar Aggarwal
Smt. Sneh Mahajan

Shri Manmohan Lal Sarin
Dr. Sumer Lal Goel

Chennai

Shri A. Datta

Chief General Manager (Ex-Officio)
Smt. Nalini Padmanabhan

Shri J.. Madana Gopal Rao

Dr. A. Ramamurthy

Dr. R. Vanniarajan

Hyderabad

Shri ‘S.K. Bhattacharya

Chief General Manager (Ex-Off|C|o)
_Shri Pyda Krishna Mohan _ _

Shri Chilukuru Krishna Gopal

Shri Karupothala Balakondaiah {IPS (Retd. )}

Shri Bethi Gopal Reddy

Bengal
Shri K.C. Raut

Chief General Manager (Ex-Officio)

Dr. Sabuj Koli Sen
Dr. Geeta Chatterjee

(5@4

Lucknow

Shri P. Bhasyam

Chief General Manager (Ex-Officio)
Shri Raj Kapoor

Shri Veer Bhadra Mishra

Dr. Amrita Dass’

Dr. Prabhakara Jha

Ms. Farida Abraham

Mumbai

Shri A. Ramesh Kumar

Chief General Manager (Ex-Officio)
Shri Ajay G. Piramat *

Shri Piyush Goyal *

Dr. K.S. Parikh * ‘

Shri Prakash Dharshibhai Shah
Shri Bharat Maganial Udeshi

Shri Jiten Parmananddas Mody -

Delhi

Shri B.K. Gairola.

Chief General Manager (Ex OfflClO)
Shri PR. Khanna *

Shri S.K.'Bery *

Shri Arun Singh *

Shri Rajiv Pandey *

Shri Subhash Chandra Chawla
Shri Salamat Ullanh =
Shri Kuldeep Kumar Drabu

North Eastern

Shri- O.P. Bhatt

Chief General Manager (Ex-Officio)
Shri- Hari- Pd. Hazarika .

Shri Dharani Dhar Mali

Col. Manoranjan--Goswami

Ms. Zothanpari Hrashel

Shri Sanjoy Kumar Das

Patna

Shri- Sitaramam. Komaragirit

Chief General Manager -(Ex- Of‘flClO)
Shri K.P.Jhunjhunwala

Shri Sanjay Seth

Shri Vinay Kumar Kantha

Shri Kishori Mohan Verma

Shri Badruzzaman Khan "

Kerala -
Shri_C. NaraSImhan__“,,,___.._. e
Chief .General Manager (Ex-Officio)

Shri PE. Balakrishna Menon

Dr. N. Mohanakumaran

Smt. Chitra Devarajan -
Shri K. Krishnananda Pai
Shri Rajiv Vasudevan
Shri K.P.S. Menon

*  Directors on the Central Board nominated on the Local Boards as per Section 21(1)(b) of SBI Act.
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Central |
Management
Commitiee

Shri Arun Kumar Purwar
Chairman

Shri C. Bhattacharya . |
Managing Director &
Group Executive
(Corporate Banking and
Associates & Subsidiaries)

Shri K. Ashok Kini
Managing Director & :
Group Executive (National Banking) . -

Shri S. Santhanakrishnan ‘
Deputy Managing Director & -
Corporate Development Officer:

Shri B. D. Sumitra :
Deputy Managing Director f
& Group Executive (International Banking)

ShriR. K. Sinha 1
Deputy Managing Director '
(Inspection & Management Audit)
Shri S. K. Hariharan

Deputy Managing Director &
Chief Credit Officer

Shri R. N. Ramanathan
Deputy Managing Director’
(Information Technology)

Shri Yogesh Agarwal
Deputy Managing Director &
Chief Financial Officer

—




SET-7 w@‘ a Auditors
e A
M aIrHQTs'anH - o - Vyas & Vyas o
. frvarme «: : s. Vi‘star}athan
| Q’H‘ﬁ W@? v SP bhopra & Co.
B SRt m«t{{@%. A _ G.S.,Mathur&Co.,
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- FORTHE YEAR 2003-04 . .2002-03 |  %change
T I (FAT TY) '
Total Income (Rs. crore) 38,073 36,827 3.4

T A (g T)

Total Expenditure (Rs. crore) 34,392 33,722 2.0

et o1y (FS FI) ' '

Net Profit (Rs. crore) 3,681.0 3,105.0 18.6

oftt I°R 31 (T9) .

Earnings per Share (Rs.) 69.94  59.00 18.5

I TRETRE W e (%)

Return on Average Assets (%) 0.94 0.86 9.3
FRARAT (%) ) _

Return on Equity (%) 18.18 18.05 0.8

Jfd FHAR Y (FICEER) '

Profit per Employee (Rs. thousands) 176.61 "147.83 19.5 -

: aret CwE | uftads wfaea o

B R Sk at) v Ay c S -—March-—- j~~——.-Margh---|-- 9% .change- -
AT THE END OF 2004 2003

AR (Fgeqw)

Paid-up Capital and Reserves .. _ | . . i ... SN ST A

& Surplus (Rs. crore). 20,231 . 17 203 . 17.6
SRR (e FIT) :

Deposits (Rs. crore) 3,18,619 2,96,123 ‘76
fim (FE w0) ‘
_Advances ‘(Rs. crore) 1,567,934 1,37,758 14.6
| Number of Domestic Branches . . 9,039. ~8,033. .. B ¢ B
| R PR e e T | e e ‘
~Number of_rForeign Branches / Offices 54 48 125
Cap_ital Adequacy Ratio (%) 13.53 13.50 0.2
et sTeioR aftEafwET (%) . N

~Net NPA (%) .3.48 4.50 =227
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Dear Shareholders,

I am pleased to place before you the Report of the Board ‘of Directors of your Bank for the year 2003-04. You -
 will~be -happy-to-see that thts -year - also- your Bank- has. performed well,_detazls of . thch are_presented in the o
Report. :

The year 2003 04 wztnessed strong economtc growth spread across all sectors. The 8.1% GDP growth was driven
by 9:1% rise in “agriculture, 8.2% growth in services and manufacturing sector growth of 7.1%. With sustained
growth momentum in the current year, the economy is expected to achieve a 6.5-7% growth in 2004-05, making
India one of the fastest growing economies in the world.. The year was also marked by record growth in foreign
exchange reserves, strong growth in exports and imports and low inflation. Monetary conditions continued to
ease during 2003-04 -and liquidity remained . comfortable. While credit growth. continued to be driven by the
retail segment, particularly demand for housing loans, credit to industry also. ptcked up in the second half of
the year. The Market Stabilisation Scheme, introduced in April 2004, was an innovative approach to managing
liquidity in the economy, powered by the surge in foreign exchange inflows.

The banking sector was marked by fresh dynamism. With growing competition among players, customers -could
choose from a bouquet of products,-besides enjoying finer rates and. reaping the benefits of better technology-
driven customer service. Initiatives for reducing non-performing assets -including setting up of asset recovery
companies, one-time settlement-with- borrowers, corporate debt. restructuring, etc., resulted. in cleansing bank
balance sheets To cope with increasing. globaltsatton, there was greater focus on improvement.in proﬁtabtltty,
eﬁ‘iczency and technology, while achieving economies of scale through consolidation and exploring cost-effective
‘solutions. As banks prepare for Basel Il and further ltberaltsatton of the ﬁnancml sector under WTO, nsk
management got further reinforced. : . :

As we move forward, eompetition will only intensify, further narrowing margins of banks and straining their
profitability. In- the changing milieu, therefore, banks will have to fine-tune their efficiency and prepare to
handle much blgger volumes by building skills in risk manogement and in the area of technology. The
need for greater customer orientation is inévitable as future business models of banks will not be based
on interest -margins . but rather .on .value added services to the customer. At the same: time, in today’s
environment, banks‘have to use their. initiatives not only for creating. shareholder value,- but -also have to
be conscious of corporate governance and responszbtlzttes to. all stakeholders. As _controls on_the mouvement
~of capztal are further eased' and markets become more ‘integrated, other areas that compel attention are
money laundering and ‘Know Your Customer’ regulattons as well as adoption of global standards and best
tnternattonal practices. . : S L .-

To stay ahead of the competition, you will be happy to see that your Bank is addressing these issues
through a wide range of initiatives in technology, risk management, asset quality, group synergy, etc., while
‘continuing to remain focused on profitability. For the year 2003-04, your Bank posted net profit of Rs.3,681
crore as compared to Rs.3,105 crore in 2002-03, registering a growth of 18.55%. The growth in profit has
been achieved through increase in net interest income as well as profit on sale of investments. Average level
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of advancés of your Bank in India was higher by 10.14% and dverage level of resources deployed in"treasury
- operations-in India-was higher.by.10. 79%. :Cost. of -deposits (excluding Resurgent-India Bonds/India Millennium

Deposits). witnessed a reduction from 6.43% in 2002-03 to 5.48%. in 2003-04. Net inferest. income rose by 12.11%

to Rs.11,186.32 crore in 2003-04 as against Rs. 9.977 56 crore in the prevtous year Net Lnterest margin was
higher at 3.04% compared t0°2.95% in the previous year, testifying to your Bank’s efforts at improving eﬁ‘iczency

As I mentioned last year, your "Bank is making efforts to leverage its nationwide presence and the State Bank
brand through group synergy, which has started to show results. I dm happy to afinounce -that the net profit
of the State Bank Group for the year 2003-04 -stood at Rs. 5,531 crore as against-Rs. 4,199 crore in. 2002-
03, thus-crossing the US $1 billion mark in net proﬁt for. the_first time. Besides, over 2,600 branches are now
engaged in selling a range of ltfe insurance products like Mortgage Redemptzon Insurance, Endowment and
Term Insurance. Group assets have increased from Rs.4,97,756 crore as on 31st March 2003 to Rs. 5,50,749 crore
. as on 31st March 2004. The Bank has recently tied up with New India Assurance Co. Ltd. for dtstrzbutmg
their non- ltfe products through our branch network

To meet customer expectations, your Bank launched several new products during the year, helpmg the Personal
Segment (Retail) loans to increase by 36%.in.2003- 04. Houszng emerged as a_major thrust area and loans were
. Offered at very competitive. rates. In housing loans, there was a growth. of Rs.4,893 crore in the year 2003-04
compared to a growth of Rs.3,973 crore in 2002-03, and housmg loans as a percentage of retail loans meroved
to. 51.47% from 49.98% in this period. The number of-cars financed by the Bank under the tie-up programme
with the manufacturers grew by 117% from 16,929 as on March 2003 to 36 786 as on March 2004..

Your Bank continues to be deeply involved in development banking through its vast rural and semi-urban branch
network, speczalzsed branches for agrtculture and small-scale industries and new tnnovatwe products For the
services and SSI sector, your Bank has tntroduced several new products. - '

For rural housing, your Bank has mtroduced Gram Ntwas and Sahayog Nzwas schemes Your Bank zssued
6.09 lakh Kisan Credit’ Cards during 2003-04 with aggregate credit limit of Rs.1,598.13 crore. Recordmg another
milestone, your Bank crossed the 20-lakh mark in issuance of Kisan Credit Cards. Your Bank has also introduced
Kisan Gold Credit Card for high net worth farmers.

Your Bank’s consistent efforts to reduce-NPAs and improve-asset quality have borne fruit. The gross NPA ratio
has come down from 9.33% as on 31st March 2003 to 7.75% as on 31st March 2004 and the net NPA ratio
from 4.50% as on 31st March 2003 to 3.48% as on 31st March 2004. Under the SARFAESI Act 2002, notices.
have been issued in 12,553 cases involving an amount of Rs.5,114 crore, effecting a recovery of Rs.130 crore
till March 2004; besides 76 loan assets involving dues of Rs.570.35 crore (Prtnczpal Amount) were sold to ARCIL
during 2003-04 at an offer price of Rs.162.33 crore.

Your Bank has made rapid strides in adopting technology as a key enabler for achieving efficiency of its business
operations. You will be happy to know that the State Bank Group, which has 13,635 branches, has computerised
. all the branches during the year 2003-04. The State Bank Group has at present over 3,900 networked ATMs
comprising over 2,800 ATMs of SBI and 1,100 ATMs of the Associate Banks covering 1,296 centres, making
it the single largest ATM network in the country. In its constant endeavour to add value and improve customer
service, your Bank has entered into sharing of ATM network with Indian Bank, UTI Bank and HDFC Bank
for wider coverage as well as increasing non-interest income. Internet banking for retail customers has been
rolled out to 1,100 branches covering over 300 centres, facilitating easier access to Bank’s services. This facility
is being used by more than 2,50,000 customers. Your Bank is rapidly moving towards a centralised database
with a state-of-the-art Core Banking Solution. The Core Banking Solution will enable on-line, real-time transaction
processing and provide on-line interface to a multitude of technology driven delivery channels.

In the current financial year, your Bank will endeavour to grow its business focusing on overseas expansion
and infrastructural lending. Essentially, your Bank would open branches in places where there are Indians
in large numbers. Very soon your Bank is going to open its third branch in Bangladesh, apart from opening
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branches in Africa and other Asian countries. In infrastructure, your Bank will focus on core sectors like power,
telecom, petroleum, oil, gas, paperboards, hotels, etc.

Your Bank will continue to remain aggressive in retail banking and project uptech, including agriculture, SMEs
and personal banking, which have been identified as high growth areas. In project uptech, your Bank is planning
increased penetration in auto components, rice mills, brassware, agro pumpsets, etc. In retail, your Bank is
greatly. focused.on contract farming where big companies are involved. Other growth areas which will continue
to engage your Bank are housing and personal loans including education loans and car loans. The success
_.of our’ sustained efforts is borne out by the phenomenal growth in housmg loans and also by the fact that
“your: Bank-is now the-largest- ﬁnanczer of cars~in-the-country. .-~ = - AR - T

Your Bank has been tapping the rapzdly growing services sector Customised products have been introduced

for tourism, besides tie-up arrangements with manufacturers of dental and medical equipment, loans for
renovation and modernisation of clinics, showrooms, offices, shops, etc. Your Bank has also operationalised
the SME Credzt Card Scheme and introduced an innovative scheme for ﬁnanczng educated unemployed youth
to set up internet kiosks in rural areas. » . T

In step with the above changes, your Bank is undertaking a Business. Process Reengineering Project, with
Mckinsey & Co. as advisor for the project. The objective of this exercise is to strengthen your Bank’s
ability to acquire new customers, build lasting relatzonsths wzth exzstmg customers and to increase customer
satisfaction through world-class service. : :

As we move forward, I can assure you that we do not plan to rest on our laurels and will only intensify
the pace of our efforts. We have set high standards for ourselves and will continue to work towards achieving
our goals. As the only Indian bdnk in the top 100 banks in the world, your Bank will contmue to strive
for excellence and world class standards, scaling new heights in the times ahead.

- With warm regards,
Yours sincerely,

(Arun Kumar Purwar)

—— ———— 15 ' T
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Mangagement Discussion and Analysis

Economic Backdrop and Banking Environment

India firmly established itself amongst the fastest
. growing economies in the world during 2003-04.
Good corporate results, increase in outward foreign
investment by Indian companies as well as increase
in foreign investment inflows. reflects increasing
business confidence.

With broad based economic recovery spread across
all sectors, the economic environment remained
conducive to growth. Following strong Q3 growth
GDP growth for 2003-04 has been projected at 8.1%,
driven largely by the farm sector which expanded
by 9.1% (-5.2% in 2002-03), robust growth in services
which rose by 8.2% (7.2% in 2002-03) and an upturn
in the manufacturing segment of the industrial

‘sector at 7.1% (6.2% in 2002-03). From a
‘macroeconomic point of view, balance of payments
and inflation have indeed been managed well. The
annual rate of inflation (WPI year-on-year) which
slid down to 4% in August 2003, increased in the
third quarter but witnessed some softening
thereafter and stood at 4.5% by end-March 2004
against 6.5% a year ago.

Global Economy and Indian Trade

Global economic outlook 1mproved significantly
durmg the ° year The IMF has projected world
economic growth at 4.6% in 2004, up from 4.1%
pro]ected inSeptember 2003, mdlcatmg widespread.

___ global recovéry. This trend, along with strong growth -

in-the US-economy;-augurs well for Indian-exports. . —
India’s exports grew by 17.1% during 2003-04 on top
of a 20.3% growth in 2002-03. In recent years, the
export basket has become diversified with
manufactures accounting for around three-fourth of
total exports. The direction of exports has also
widened, with growth in exports to major markets
as well as Asia, Africa and the Middle East. India’s

S —

__compared with 12.8% in the prev1ous year, after o

construction. - .- -

compétitiveness in services exports include, apart

from software, trade, transportation and

During 2003-04, imports increased by 25.3%-against
the growth of 17.0% during 2002-03. Reflecting the
underlying industrial recovery in the economy, non-
oil imports showed a higher increase of 29.4% as
compared with 13.7% in the previous year. With the
lowering of impert duties, arising from duty cuts and
preferential Free Trade Agreements, the import
demand is expected to rise further. ‘

Foreign Exchange Reserves .

During 2003-04, India’s foreign exchange reserves
recorded the highest accretion in any single year and
crossed US$ 100 billion mark. Even after repayment
of high cost foreign currency loans of US $ 6.8 billion
and US$ 5.2 billion in -f.oreign ’currehcy ‘made
available by RBI to SBI for redemption of Resurgent
India Bonds (RIB), India’s foreign exchange reserves
increased by a record US $37.6 billion from US $ 75.4
billion at end-March 2003 to US $ 113.0 billion by end-
March 2004.

Monetary and Liquidity Conditions

The money markets were characterised by
comfortable liquidity during 2003-04 arising out of
sustained capital flows, contraction in food credit
as also easing of monetary conditions. During 2003-
04, money supply (M3) incréased by 16.4% as

ad]ustmg for mergers-—- e e

" Indian Banknrg ‘Envrronment , -

The growth in aggregate deposrts of scheduled
commercial banks at 17.3% in 2003-04 was “higher
than 13.4% in 2002-03, adjusted for" mergers
However, scheduled commercial banks’ credit
recorded a lower rise of 14.6% during 2003-04 as
compared with 16.1%, net of mergers, in 2002-03,
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mainly due to contraction in food credit following
higher offtake of foodgrains. After remaining
sluggish in the initial months of 2003-04, there were
visible signs of credit p1ck up in the subsequent
months. Consequently, non-food credit increased by
17.6% during 2003-04 as compared with 18.6%, net
of mergers, in 2002-03. While housing and retail led

the growth in non-food credit, industrial credit

picked up from September 2003. There wads also a

substantial flow of bank credit to the priority sector, -

which rose by 25% during 2003-04 as well as

for housmg and mfrastructure which increased -

by 42% each.

There was a continuous softemng of interest rates
during the year. Taking a cue from RBI's guldehnes
relating to benchmark prime lending rate (PLR) in
early January 2004, several commercial banks
reduced their PLRs. Indian manufacturing has
absorbed the excess capacity built up in the mid-
nineties and is geared up for fresh investments; which

_is expected to fuel further growth. Stiff competition

in retail finance in metro cities has shifted the focus
" of banks to tier two cities. @~

RBI's Monetary Pollcy e

The overall stance of RBI's monetary pohcy durmg.

~ 2003-04 was prov151on of adequate 11qu1d1ty to meet

credit growth and to support investment demand in
the economy while keepmg inflation urider control.
Continuing its stance of preference for a soft and
flexible interest rate environment within the
framework of macroeconomic stability, RBI cut the
Bank Rate by 25 basis points to 6.0% in April 2003,
the Cash Reserve Ratio by 25 basis points to 4.5% in
June 2003 and the Repo Rate by 50 basis points to
4.5% in August 2003. During the year, RBI also

announced measures to improve credit delivery.

: ,mechamsm including micro-credit, deepening of

money markets and securltles markets, and
supervision of banks and other financial institutions.

Financial sector reforms have resulted in increased

efficiency, higher productivity and enhanced
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comipetitiveness in the banking sector whichis also
reflected in better asset quality, increased capital
adequacy and improved profitability of banks. To
meet challenges in the. changing environment, banks
are streamlining business processes, strengthenmg
credit delivery and micro-credit operations and
reinforcing risk management  along w1th
consolidation of their operations.

TS
LA
Profit -

The Operatmg Profit of the Bank for.2003-04 stood
at Rs.9,653.46 crore as compared to Rs.7,775.40
crore in 2002-03, recording a growth of 22.87%.
The Bank has posted a Net Proflt of Rs.3,681.00
crore for 2003-04 as compared to Rs.3,105.00 crore
in 2002-03, reg1stermg a growth of 18.55%.

The growth in profit in 2003-04 has been achieved
through increases, both in Net Interest_.Income as

well as Profit on sale of Investments.: Profit on

 sale of investments in 2003-04 was Rs.3,073.45 crore
~as ‘against Rs.1,694.60 crore in 2002-03, and thus the

increase under this head contributed to the growth

“in proflt of 2003-04 to the extent of Rs.1,378. 85 ) crore.

Dividend - - - - . w e
The Bank has declared. a-dividend at the-rate of

- 110% for the year, up from 85%.declared in the

previous year.

Net Interest Income”

The Net Interest Income of -‘the Bank registeted a
growth of 12.11%, from Rs:9,977.56 crore in 2002-
03 to Rs.11,186.32 crore in 2003-04. This was-driven
by volume growth and decline in cost of deposits.
The Net Interest Margin went up from 2.95% in

2002-03 to 3.04% in 2003- 04

The gross interest income from the global operations
declined from Rs.31,087.02 crore in 2002-03 to
Rs.30,460.49 crore in 2003-04. This was’ mamly due
to declining interest rates. :
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‘Despite declining interest rates the interest
’ incorne on advances in India registered a marginal

increase from Rs.10,863,50 crore in 2002-03 to

'Rs.10,891.44 crore in 2003-04 due to higher volutne.

Interest income on advances at foreign offlces also

- increased due to h1gher volume:

.. Prime_Lending Rate was reduced.during the year... .

- -State. Bank Advance Rate (the Prifiie Lending Rate
~ ‘of the Bank); which ‘was reduced from 10.75% 0
- 10. 50%.in May 2003, was further reduced to 10. 25%

w.e.f. 1* January 2004. The Medlum Term Lendmg ,

fRate (SBMTLR) was reduced from 11. 25% to 11.00%
in May 2003. As per RBI directive the Bank adopted
Bench Mark Prime Lending Rate with effect from
1 ]anuary 2004 which was fixed at 10.25%.

~ Average yield on advances in India, as a result,

came down from 8.97% in 2002-03 to 8.17% in 2003-
04. However, volume increase of Rs.12,277 crore

~ (ie, by 10.14%) in'the dverage level of adVances
-in- India contributed to the increase in interest

mcome from advances :

Income  from resources deployed i treasury

~operations in India _1_nereased marginally despite

increase of Rs.20,374 crore (i.e., by 10.79%)-in the

. average resources deployed. The average yield,
‘which was 9.54% in 2002-03, declined to 8.62% in
~2003-04, due to the ., dechmng trend in the »

mterest rates.

Total interest expenses of the global -operations
declined from Rs.21,109.46 crore in 2002-03 to

deposits (excluding Resurgent India Bonds/ India
Millennium Deposits) in India durlng 2003-04
recorded a ;declin‘e of 3.55% compared to the
previous year, whéreas the average level of deposits

Non Interest Income

| Non;l_nterest _income grew by 32.62%, from

" Rs:19;274.16 crore in"2003-04: Interest“expenses on’

- grew by 13.13%. This resulted in a reduction in the ™~
- - cost of dep051ts from 6.43% in 2002-03 fo 548% in
: _2003 -04 (excludmg RIB & IMD deposﬂs)

Rs.5,740.26-crore in 2002-03 to Rs.7,612.46 crore in
2003-04. The growth was contributed mainly by
growth in profit on sale of 1nvestment and other
fee income.

During the year the Bank recelved an income of
Rs.161.31 crore (Rs.137.22 crore in the préevious
__.year), by way of dividends from Asscciate Banks/ -

sub51d1ar1es and ]omt ventures in Indla and abroad

Operating Expenses

There was -an increase of 13.34% in the Staff Cost

from- Rs.5,688.71 crore in 2002-03" to” Rs.6,447.69

crore in 2003-04.- This was mainly- due to higher
contribution to Pension Fund, Gratuity Fund and
provision for leave encashment liability. -

Other Operating ExPenses have also registered an

increase of "24.13% mainly dué to higher

depreciation, advertisement cost, audit fees and
‘expenses on account of . reparrs & maintenance &
other expenditure.. . -

Operatmg Expenses, comprising both staff cost and
other operating expenses,
increase of 16.40%.

have registered. an

Provisions and Contingencies

Major amounts of‘provisions‘made in 2003-04 were
-as-undet:.- '
e Rs.3,702. 75 crore for non- performmg assets (as
against Rs.2,592.43 crore in 2002-03) which
include - floating provision™ of ‘Rs.990.00-crore

P e m g e o e g s e e

~(Previous year Rs.550.00 crore) over & ‘above™

the RBI norms for NPAs
e Rs.1,243.86 crore towards Prov151on for Income
Tax, adjusted for deferred tax credit of Rs.276.28
crore (as against Rs. 2,162. 14 crore in 2002 03
“adjusted for deferred tax debit of Rs 13 26
crore and payment for prror years amountmg
to Rs.697.72 crore). '
o Rs49.12 crore towards Standard Assets (as

against Rs.69.22 crore in 2002-03). Including

this amount, the total provision held on

g e
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~_ Standard Assets amounts to Rs.377.03 crore.
o Rs.495.58 crore towards provision for
depreciation on investments in India, including
amortisation of premium on ‘Held to Maturity’
category (as against Rs.392.98 crore in 2002-03).

Reserves & Surplus
e An amount of Rs.2,100.00 crore (as against
~ Rs.1,600.00 crore in 2002-03) was transferred to
Investment Fluctuation Reserve account.
e An amount of Rs.925.61 crore (as against
~ Rs.997.85 crore in 2002-03) was transferred to
~Statutory Reserves.

Assets

The total assets of the Bank increased by 8.5% from

Rs.3,75,876 crore at the end of March 2003 to
Rs.4,07,815 crore as at end March 2004. During the
period, its loan portfolio increased by 14.64% from
Rs.1,37,758 crore to Rs.1,57,934 crore and investment
by 7.73% from Rs.1,72,348 crore to Rs.1,85,676
crore. A major porﬁon of the investment was in
the domestic market in government and other
approved securities. The Bank's market share in
domestic advances was 16.87% as on the last
reporting Friday of March 2004.

Liabilities .
The Bank’s aggregate 11ab1ht1es (excluding capltal

and reserves) rose by 8.06% from Rs.3,58,673 crore -

on 31% March 2003 to Rs.3,87,584 crore on the 31¢
March 2004. The increase in liabilities was mainly
contributed by increase in deposits. The Global
deposits, including IMD stood at Rs.3,18,619 crore
as on 31# March 2004, representing an increase of
7.60% over the level on 31 March 2003. Global
deposits, excluding IMD, grew by 16.07% from
Rs.2,52,393 crore to Rs.2,92,943 crore over the same
period. The Bank's market share in aggregate
deposits of all scheduled commercial banks in

_ India stood at 18.75% including IMD and 17.33%

excluding IMD as on the last reporting Friday of
March 2004. The ‘Personal’ segment deposits, which

. provide a low cost and stable resotirce base for the =

Bank, constituted 49.95% of the Bank's aggregate
deposits as on the last Friday of March 2004.

iolnrse

¥ T2 T T8
Performance Highligit

Core Operations

Treasury Operations

Corporate Banking Group

National Banking Group

International Banking Group

Associates & Subsidiaries

NPA Management

olmimlola e s

Information Technology

Table 1: Key Performance Indicators

SBI SBI Group
Indicators 200304 | 2002-03 | 2003-04 | 2002-03
Return on Average Assets (%) 0.94 0.86 1.05 0.89
|-Return on Equity. (%) ... 18.19 18.05 20.16 18.65
Expenses to Income (%) 49.18 50.53 46.07 48.53
| (Operating Expenses to Total Net Income) _
| Earnings Per Share (Rs.) : 6994 |  59.00 105.09 7978
| Capital . Adequacy. Ratio (%) - 13.53 13.50 14.43 14.03
Tier I 834 | 881 9.59 9.68
Tier 11 5.19 4.69 4.84 4.35
Net NPAs to Net Advances 3.48 4.50 2.73 4.10
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A. Treasury Operations

A.1. During the year 2003-04, the Bank further
consolidated its premier position as the largest player
and the market mover in both the Rupee and Forex
markets in India.

.A.2. Treasury operations expanded significantly
beyond the conventional role of liquidity
management and regulatory compliance to emerge
_as a major profit centre.

Table 2: Treasury Operations at a Glance

Particulars % Growth
Dome_sti_c,_ihye,stments 761
Trading portfolios in

government securities. 231
Trading portfolios in equities/bonds 356 .

- Total income from Treasury

operations 7.10
Net Profit on sale of investmients 79.71

A.3. Investments in state development loans and -

corporate bonds were higher relative to those in the

~ previous year. Interest income on securities registered

“arelatively lower increase (3.85%) in view of falling
yields. The Bank also participated in buyback of
government securities by RBI during July 2003, and
an amount of Rs.1,010.32 crore was booked as profit
on this account. Investment Fluctuation Reserve (IFR)
was built up to 2.88% of investments with additional
appropriation of Rs.2,100 crore during the year.

A 4. While trading volumes in Forex operations more
than doubled, strengthening of the Rupee and
',_s}irinking‘ inter-bank margins impacted exchange
income from Forex bperétions during the year which
grew by 8.51% from Rs.463.57 crore to Rs.503.04 crore.

A.5. The implementation of Treasury Solutions
Software has facilitated on-line trading, accounting,
valuation and portfolio risk management. Real Time
Gross Settlement Systems (RTGS) has also been
implemented under the aegis of RBL Trading in
derivatives, both Rupee and Forex, was introduced

B.2. Corporate A¢counts Groiip (CAG)

after putting in place requisite policies and risk
management systems.

B. Corporate Banking Group (CBG)

B 1. The Bank’s Corporate Bankmg Group consists
of three Strategic Business Units (S5BUs), viz.,
Corporate Accounts Group, Leasmg SBU and Project
Finance SBU. :

B.2.1. CAG'sloan portfolio constituted about 34.5%

of the Bank’s commercial and institutional non-food

credit (36.8% in 2002-03) and 16.7% (17.5% in 2002-

03) of the total domestic credit portfolio as on March

2004. Innovative products of CAG were successful:

e SBI-FAST, a niche cash fhénagefnent product,
had a turnover of Rs.2,72,501 crore spread over
308 centres. - -

e The loan product with MIBOR related pricing,
launched in February 2003, achieved a turnover
of Rs.19,070 crore during the year. _

e Syndication, started in February 2003 in CAG,
closed 17 deals aggregating Rs.5,168 crore as at
end-March 2004.

B.2.2. Besides providing a wide range of financial
services to its customers, the CAG has also been
instrumental in marketing commercial papers, non-
convertible debentures and bonds issued by top-
rated corporates.

B.3. Leasing SBU

B.3.1. The Bank decided not to write leases during
the year 2003-04 in view of the availability of
alternative funding options at cheaper cost. As at
end-March 2004, the disbursements
capitalization were nil, and profit amounted to
Rs.15.78 crore. '

and

B.4. Project Finance SBU

B.4.1. The Bank’s Project Finance SBU focuses on
core and infrastructure sectors which are seen as
drivers of future growth, like telecommunications,
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oil and gas, roads, bridges, ports and urban
infrastructure. During the financial year 2004, the
Project Finance SBU sanctiorrédAIS projects involving
a total amount of Rs.2,640.68 crore (fund-based limits
of Rs.1,574.30 crore and non-fund based limits of
Rs.1,066.38 crore) and made an operatmg profit of
Rs.134 crore. co

' B4.2. The SBU has also played:-an“ardvisory rolé'té B

the Government of India through various
committees; particularly in the power sector.

C. National Banking Group (NBG)

C.1. In order to provide effective and quality
banking services to its customers spread across the
country, the NBG operates through two networks
namely, retail network and commercial network. As
at end-March 2004, the NBG had 14 administrative
Circles encompassing a vast network of 9,034
branches, three sub-offices, 10 exéhange bureaus,
© 90 satelliteoffices and 658 extension counters to
reach out to customers, even in the remotest corners
of the country. Of the total branches, 789 are
specrahzed branches. A

C.2. In 2003-04, 36 new branches were opened and
30 branches were closed by merger with nearby
branches or by conversion to satellite offices. New
branches included eight Personal Banking Branches
(PBBs), taking the total of such branches to 96. The
PBBs, located in metro and urban areas and well-
equipped with the state-of-the-art technology, offer
a wide range of services to hlgh net worth
individuals. .

C.3. The retail sector, as a whole, comprising

agriculture, small industries & business and personal
segments, contributed 71.02% to total NBG deposits
. and 43.05% to total NBG advances. Housing loans
constituted 51.48% of personal segment advances.

- The Bank is taking necéssary steps through launching

of new schemes to promote retail lending so that
retail advances amount to 50% of the total NBG
advancesin the near term.-— ——> -
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Table 3: NBG — Highlights -
(Amount in Rs.crore)

Particulars

C.4. Development Banking
C.4.1. Priority Sector Lending

C.4.1.1. With over 70% of the Indian population living
in rural areas, the Bank sees this as the thrust sector
and has been servicing through its vast rural and
semi-urban branch network, specialized branches for
agriculture and small-scale industries.

C.4.1.2. The Bank’s lending to the priority sector as a
proportion of its net bank credit (NBC) was 38.69%
at end-March 2004. As against the benchmark of 18%,
advances to agricultural sector as a proportion of
NBC was 12.79% at end-March 2004. Disbursements
under Special Agriculture Credit Plan amounted to
Rs.6,145 crore at end-March 2004. In absolute terms,
advances to agriculture and small-scale industries
recorded a growth of Rs.1,122 crore and Ré.641 crore
respectively as compared to the previous year’s
negative growth of Rs.332 crore and Rs.190 crore
respectively and were Rs.16,993 crore and Rs.13,033
crore respectlvely as at the end of March 2004. ‘

C.4.13. The coverage under Klsan Credrt Card
scheme expanded during the year, showing its
popularity among farmers. During the year-(up to
end-March 2004), the Bank had issued 6.09 lac cards

Ason| Ason %
28.3.03 |  26.3.04 | growth
Deposits
(including IMD) 2,65,717 | 2,81,016 5.76
Deposits - I T S I
(excluding IMD)._. |.2,22,167| 2,55,340 |~ 14,93 | =~
Advances
(including food) 1,08,269-| 1,24,108 | 14.63
Advances ‘ A4 :
(excluding food) 95,576 | 1,14,591 | 19.90
i. Personal segment| 24,348 33,149 36.15
QOut of which '
‘Housing loans 12,173 | 17,067 | = 40.20
ii. Agriculture 12,561 13,921 10.83
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with aggregate limit of Rs.1,598 crore to. farmers.
The Bank’s new product namely, Kisan Gold Credit
Card has also gained popularity. During the year,
the Bank issued 29,847 Kisan Gold Cards with
aggregate limit of Rs.450.50 crore. Other new
products, namely, scheme for purchase of land by
small and marginal farmers and scheme for
financing purchase of combined harvesters have
also gained momentum,

C:4.1.4The Bank actively participated in the
employment generation and poverty alleviation
schemes sponsored by the Government. The Bank’s
performance under some of the schemes as on the
31* March 2004 was as under:

e Swarnjayanti Gram Swarozgar Yojna: The
Bank sanctioned loans aggregating Rs.363.99
crore to 91,800 individual beneficiaries and
24,129 SHGs and disbursed loans aggregating
R5.264.89 crore to 78,559 individual

_ beneficiaries and 17,272 SHGs.

"Prime Minister’s Rozgar Yojana: The Bank

59,589 applicants and disbursed Rs.244 crore to
38,406 beneficiaries during the programme
year 2003-04. A
‘Swarnajayanti Shahari Rozgar Yojana: The Bank
sanctioned loans aggregating Rs.47.50 crore to
14,525 applicants and disbursed Rs.35.62 crore
to 11,920 beneficiaries.

Scheme for Liberation and Rehabilitation of
. Scavengers: The Bank sanctioned total loans

aggregating Rs. 22 crore to 861 applicants and

disbursed Rs.13 crore to 556 beneficiaries.

C.4.1.5. In the area of financing the poor through
the intermediation of self- help groups (SHGs), the
Bank has credit-linked (cumulative) with 1,74,666
SHGs with total disbursements of Rs.614.88 crore
as at the end of March 2004. Besides, 3,69,568
SHGs maintained savings bank accounts with the
Bank’s branches with deposits aggregating
Rs.348.31 crore.

sanctioned loans aggregating Rs.397 crore to

229 :

C.4.1.6. The Bank has been the convenor of ‘State
Level Bankers’” Committees in 11 states and 2 union
territories and the lead bank (under the Lead Bank
Scheme) in 140 districts, mostly in hilly and backward
areas. Under the Annual Credit Plans for 2003-04, the
Bank disbursed loans to different priority sectors
aggregating Rs.13,585 crore during the year up to
the 31% March 2004.

C.5. Product Innovation
C.5.1. Innovative products and simplified
procedures for lending have been the cornerstones

of business development strategies for the year
2003-04.

C. 5 2 Products

n Personal Bankmg Segment
In order to provide customers with a wider
_choice, a range of new products was
introduced in personal banking during the

Gram Nivas.

- In addition, the Bank entered into corporate
tie-up with Bajaj Auto Limited for financing
two-wheelers.

Rates of interest on various personal
segment products were rationalized to pass
on the benefit of low rates of interest to all
the customers.

B Commercial Banking Segment

e - The Bank also entered into tie-ups with
. many corporates as also State governments
for financing their employees.

Among the commercial products and
services, new products launched included
Kanakdhara Deposit Scheme, Pravasi Plus
Scheme, Fast Track-Channel Financing, SBI

'~ Credit Khazana, Capgains Plus Scheme,
Rent Plus Scheme, Transport Plus and SBI
Vishwa Yatra Foreign Travel Card.

“yearviz., Loan for Earnest Money, Gaveshak = —
Plus, Prashasan Plus, Nursmg Plus and . =
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Agriculture Banking Segment

The Bank launched the following new
products, namely, Krishi Plus, Arthias
Plus, Dairy Plus and Rakshak Tractor

" Plus, to increase the flow of credit to

agriculture sector.

The Bank also entered into tie-up
arrangements with tractor manufacturers

-~ under-which the tractors are supplied-to the -

Bank’s farmer borrowers at lower cost and
with extended warranty periods. The Bank
is financing such tractors at low margin.

* The Bank has-also entered into-contract

farmmg arrangemerit with large corporates
to deliver timely credit to farmers on special
scale of finance with a marketing tie-up and
assured loan repayment.

The rate of interest for agricultural
borrowers with limits up to Rs.50,000 was
brought down to 8.50% for crop loans.

SHGs credit linked to the Bank branches
have provided loans to their members for
individual activities, though for social and
village developmental purposes, the

members often worked together (Shree -

Dharmasthala Rural

Development Project). Certain common

Kshetriya

production activities involving all .
‘members of the group (vermiculture and

card board ice cream cup manufacturing
for Aavin at Tiruvallur, Tamil Nadu)
have also been financed under the

'SHGs Scheme.

~ Besides, rhe Bank in collaboration with

CARE has-undertaken a project for

- strengthening of two sponsored RRBs -

Kalahandi and Koraput in Orissa - to

‘improve their financial viability while

reorienting them towards increased
lending to the poor through micro credit.

® - Services & SSISector-—-

e The following new products were
introduced namely, Paryatan Plus, Doctor
Plus, SBI Shoppe, Cyber Plus and Rice
Mills Plus.

‘@ The Bank has also entered into tie-up with
Siemens Limited and Confident Dental
" Equipment Manufacturers for financing

medical instruments. - - T

e Forrural housing, the Bank has_ introduced
Gram Niwas and Sahyog Niwas schemes.

C.5.3. Process:
e Single Window System: To improve
customer service and to free -the staff for
. marketing, single window delivery system
has been introduced at 7,466 branches.

e DPersonal Banking Finance Cells: To give

 focused attention to retail loans at branches,
cells have been set up at 182 branches with
many more to come.

C.6. Project Uptech

C.6.1. In the context of globalized economy, Project
Uptech has been a model in the direction of helping
agriculture and small-scale sector to make them more
competitive in terms of quality and cost. Under the
Project Uptech, the Bank has taken initiative in
implementing Energy Efficiency Programme for its
SME clients. So far, 25 clusters have been covered
under Project Uptech such as rice milling, grape
cultivation and pumpsets. | |

D. International Banking Group (IBG)

D.1. Operatlons of Foreign Offices

D.1.1. As on 31.3.2004, the Bank had a network of
54 overseas offices spread over 28 countries
covering all time zones and maintains
comprehensive correspondent relationship with 533
top ranking banks in 124 countries.

D.1.2. During the year, the Bank added offices at

ST LTI T I T T T T e T L I ST e I T T 3 1 et ol L T T —— —
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| TER

BRI .
SERIRE 8,820.46 2,017.60
ELI 11,812.66 2,702.04
37 AT 6,804.87 1,556.56
q 27,437.99 6,276.20
fraw @ wEAe 3,728.44 852.85
A (fraer) 15,991.22 3,657.85
3= g+t TRewfeaar 7,718.33 1,765.50
ol uRgwferat 27,437.99 6,276.20
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Chittagong in Bangladesh; and Port Elizabeth and.
~ Cape Town in South Africa, as part of its strategic

plans to tap new customer clusters and to access
wider markets. At-Moscow, a full-fledged bank,

equity participation with Canara Bank has been
established. The Bank also opened the first offshore

“banking unit in India at SEEPZ, Mumbai. While at

the close of the financial year the regulatory

approvals for upgradation of the Bank’s Shanghai
_.and Sydney representative offices into full-fledged
branches were awaited, the approvals have since

been received for Sydney operations, and the branch
has commenced operations from April 2004.

D.1.3. Asa part of restructuring of the US operations,
the operations of the Down Town Service Branch, New
York were wound up during the course of the year
with its activities relocated at the New York Branch.

D.1.4. The Bank continued to extend management
and technical expertise to four exchange companies
in the Gulf region to facilitate NRI and other
customer remittances to India and to various other

‘countries.

D.1.5. The foreign offices made a net profit of
Rs.156.85 crore during the year, up from Rs.128.70
crore in the previous year.

Table 4: Assets/Liabilities of Foreign Offices

namely Commercial Bank of India LLC.in a 60:40 . .

“Mississauga Office to a branch. -~ -

- D.2.Foreign Subsidiaries/Joint Ventures/Associates
- -D.2:1. During thefinancial year ended March 2004, -

SBI (California) opened new branches at Canoga Park
and Fresno and SBI (Canada) upgraded its

D.22. The aggregate performancve of the
subsidiaries /joint- ventures /associates abroad -
recorded an improvement during the year.

- D.3. Domestic Operations

D.3.1. Export Credit

D.3.1.1. During 2003-04, the Bank’s outstanding
export credit increased by 14.88% as compared to an
increase of 13.23% recorded in the previous fiscal.
Export credit constituted 7.89% of the net bank
credit as at March 2004 as compared to 8.09% as at
March 2003.

D.3.2. Project Export Finance

D.3.2.1. The Bank is an active participant in financing
of project export activities involving bidding and
execution of turnkey / civil construction contracts and
export of engineering goods on deferred payment
basis as also service exports. During the year, the
Bank supported 26 large projects/service export
proposals aggregating Rs.10,935 crore involving 15

(Excluding Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures)

(Ason 31.3.2004) ‘
Items Rs. crore USD million
Resources '
Deposits 8,820.46 2,017.60 -
Borrowings 11,812.66 2,702.04
Other Liabilities 6,804.87 1,556.56 -
. Total . 27,437.99 6,276.20
Deployment . -
Investments and Placements 3,728.44 852.85
Advances (Gross) 15,991.22 3,657.85
All Other Assets - 7,718.:33 1,765.50
Total Assets 27,437.99 6,276.20
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' Table5: Aggfegated Wofkihg Results of Fore1gnSubsxdxanes/jalr;E VenfﬁfeE/Aégeeiéies Abroad

(Ason31.3.2004)
(Rs in crore)
Subsidiaries/Joint Ventures/Associates Deposits Loans | Investments| Net Profit
Subsidiaries* 1,478.14 1,518.01 390.59 10.91
Joint Ventures/ Associates** 1,392.59 561.63 | 144.47 15.26 -

* SBI (Canada), SBI (California), INMB Bank Ltd., and SBI International (Mauritius) Ltd.
** Data as on 16.7.2003 for Nepa} SBI Bank Ltd., and as on 31.12.2003 fgr Bank of Bhutan.

~ Table 6: List of Sub51d1ar1es and Joint Ventures/Assoc1ates Abroad

@ Data as on 16.7.2003
# Data as on 31.12:2003

countries as compared to 19 contracts aggregatmg
Rs.3,517 crore during last year.

D.4. Merchant Banking
D.4.1. The Bank further intensified its thrust in the

India related syndicated loans for corporates during

-2003-04, up from the second -position last year. The
Bank was arranger for 11 syndicated/club

deals amounting to USD 768 million during 2003-04.

D.5. Forex Turnover

D.5.1. During 2003-04, the Bank recorded a total
turnover of Rs.2,65,510 crore in its forex business
(Rs.1',41,309 crore in sales and Rs.1,24,201 crore in

area of éifhdica{ed}breign currency loans, emérging -
" as the first in the league table of top arrangers for
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D 6 Global Lmk Serv1ces

(As on 31.3.2004)
‘ (Amount in Rs. crore)
| Name .. Date of | Total | Owned | % of SBI's | NetProfit |
- -Establishment ~Assets-| - Funds-|--- Share ,
SBI (Canada) - May 5, 1982 673.94 97.65 100 -2.22
SBI (California) September 3, 1982 661.70 69.75 100 .3.37
SBI International (Mauritius) Ltd. AsJV —October 12, 1989 |
: As a subsidiary - ‘
March 27, 1999 76791 | 83.47 98 4.97
INMB Bank Ltd." November 26, 1981 137.83 49.64 |- 51 4.79
‘Nepal SBI Bank Limited @ July 7, 1993 45313 | 3413 50 292
Bank of Bhutan # May 28, 1968 1,235.14 91.73 | 20 16.42
Commercial Bank of India LLC December 5, 2003 86.87 86.87 60 -4.08

purchases), commanding a market share of 35.63%.
The total turnover reflected an increase of 14.76%
over that in the previous year.

D.6.1. Global Lmk Serv1ces (GLS) of the Bank -

facilitates export payments and othef overseas
collections thereby improving the profitability of the
Bank'’s forex operations. During 2003-04, on behalf
of domestic branches of SBI and Associate Banks, GLS
has collected proceeds of 1,29,908 export bills in USD
and Euro ‘currencies, and the pfoceed_s of 2,08,040
cheques in GBP, Euro and USD. o ‘

D62 SBI Express, a new Internet- based

product to facilitate speedier remittances from
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exchange companies abroad, has been introduced
for providing direct credit to a beneficiary’s
_account with the Bank branches or for printing of

_,Rupee drafts in their names at the Bank’s domestic -

offices.’

E. Associates and Subsidiaries

- E.1. The Bank, with its associates and subsidiaries,
has an overwhelmmg presence in the financial
market of the economy. Financial services provided
* by the branches of SBI and its associate banks covers
the vast expanse of the Indian sub-continent. Apart
from the normal banking operations, other areas of
financial sector like capital market, mutual funds,
security trading, insurance, factoring services and
credit card business are handled by the Bank’s
subsidiaries.

E.2. Associate Banks

E.2.1. The Bank and its seven Associate Banks had a
market share of 26.05% in deposits and 24.22% in
advances as on the last reporting Friday of
March 2004.

Landmarks by the 7 Associate Banks ~

e Computerization of all Branches of the 7
Associate Banks

° Achzevmg NIL Net NPA status by three of the
Associate Banks

e Networking of ATMs with SBI

e Introduction of Core Banking prototypes .

e Innovative products to serve the niche markets

E.2.2. The seven Associate Banks of State Bank of
India registered an appreciable growth in business
during the year — deposits and advances growing by

20.33% and 21.65% respectively over the previous -

year. The Associate Banks together reported net
profit of Rs.1,937.71 crore, which was higher by
37.77% over the previous year. The gross and net
NPAs as percentage to gross and net advances came

down from 6.85% and 3.13% respectively to 5.08%

and 0.84% respectively as at end-March 2004.

- 37

‘net NPA'status,

E.2.3. During the year, three of the Associate
Banks, namely, State Bank of Patiala, State Bank of
Indore and State Bank of Saurashtra achleved NIL

ES SBI Cofnmercial and Interl‘l‘ational Bank
Limited (SBICI)

E.3.1. As at the end of March 2004, deposits and
advances of SBICI stood at Rs.373.33 crore and
Rs.120.56 crore respectlvely The bank recorded an
operating proﬁt of Rs.25.98 crore and a net profit of
Rs.17.97 crore for the financial year ending 31.3.2004
as against a net loss of Rs.8.55 crore for the previous
year. SBI holds 100% equity of SBICI Bank Ltd
(Rs.100 Crore)

[

E.4. SBI Capital Markets Ltd. (SBICAP)

SBICAP focused on
infrastructure project advisory and syndication
mandates, particularly in sectors, such as, urban

e During the year,

infrastructure and power, Wthh are reckoned
as the growth drivers.

SBICAP's financial performan’cé.dﬁri‘ng the year
was better than that in the last year. At Rs.63.23
crore, its PAT was more than twice the PAT
during the last year.

SBICAP declared a dlvxdend of 75% as agamst
35% declared for the previous year. The net profit
as well as the dividend was the highest ever
attained by the company.

. SBI DFHI Ltd
SBI Gilts Ltd., has merged with Discount and
Finance House of India (DFHI) Ltd., during the

year and the combined entity is proposed tobe
renamed as SBI DFHI Ltd.

i

The combined entity has completed the
bidding commitments and achieved the
success ratio as per the undertakings
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given individually to RBI for the financial e Introduced several novel and innovative
year 2003-04. ‘ “products during the year. Received international
Rs.174.09 crore (PBT at Rs.276.59 crore) for the products, marketing and advertisement
year 2003-04. campaigns.

E.6. SBI Cards & Payments Services Pvt. Ltd. E.8. SBI Funds Management Pvt. Ltd. (SBIFMPL)
(SBICPSL) Linfl c L h

e Launch of SBI Delhi, SBI Hyderabad and SBI e Reported a total inflow o Rs.12,4§0 crore in the

. . open-ended funds. Total redemption amounted
Bangalore city affinity cards. i )
. . " ) to Rs.10,523 crore, leaving a net inflow of

e Launch of “Flexipay”, an instalment loan

' Rs.1,927 crore.
programme.
e Market leadershlp in VISA petrol spends in ‘o Total net assets of domestic funds under
... India. : - - - -..management at Rs.5,340 crore. .- —

- Launch Of e'blll payment Of SBI Credlt Card for Y The asset management company reported a net
SBI account holders. profit of Rs.10.09 crore after tax and declared a
Launch of Elite card Wh1ch is offered by dividend of 10%.

“invitationonly. T T T B

e Ten per cent maiden dividend declared. E.9. SBI Factors and Commercial Services Pvt. Ltd.

| (SBIFACTORS)

E.7. SBI Life Insurance Company Ltd. (SBI Life) Busi ¢ Re.731.64 o

‘@ Covered nearly 14 lakh lives. Emergéd as the ‘top * USINess tumover, © 5.731.64 crore,

. . . . prepayment outstandings at Rs.148.80 crore, and

private insurer in terms of number of lives rofit before tax and brovisions at Rs.8.25 crore

- efore tax an isi 8. re.
covered with a market share of about 14%. P P

e Very encouraging performance under selling of e Product variants like Without Recourse

* " insurance through bancassurance channel with Factoring, Purchase Bill Factoring and Factoring

48% of the premium being received through this of Usance Bills under LC, etc., well received by

channel. the clients.

e The business through agency channel also e _Declared a dividend of 5% after a gap of four

increased considerably. ' years.
Table 7: SBI and its Associates and Domestic Subsidiaries/JVs
(As at end-March 2004)

(Amount in Rs. crore)

Banks Branches* | Deposits Loans | Investments Total | Operating Net
Assets Profit | Profit

SBI 9,039 3,18,619 | 1,57,934 1,85,676 | 4,07,815 9,553 3,681
Associate Banks 4,599 | 1,14272 | 62,582 62,097 | 1,41,441 4,810 1,938

Subsidiaries/JVs

1) Banking@ 2 373 121 143 489 26 18

2) Non-Banking 3,939 . 444 266
Total 13,640 | 4,33,264 | 2,20,637 2,47,916 | 553,684 14,833% | 5903#

* Branches in India. @ SBICI.

# Before adjustment for minority interest and other consolidation adjustments.

—
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ueft 7 F 1.49 25.77 0.84 13.03 .
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Table 8: I‘.)ixilﬂidéndé paldby the Associafes & Subsi&iaries/]oi.nt Ventures f@r 2003-04 o

-Associate Banks- -~ |- Dividend- |- - Rate (%)-{~ - Subsidiaries/| - Dividend | -
] Tl (RsCerore) T ~~Joint Vénfures |~ (Rs.crore) | T
State Bank of ___ o  Domestic ]
Bikaner & Jaipur 37.50 100 SBICAP 37.50 75
Hyderabad 51.75 300 SBIDFHI 49.71 30
Indore 17.16 © 100 SBI Funds 5.00 10
Mysore 19.94 60 SBI Factors 0.61 5
Patiala - 99.00 400 SBI Cards 6,00 10
Saurashtra 31.40 10* Foreign
Travancore 28.13 75 SBIML 4.49 10
' BoBh 0.50 25
NSBL 0.97 8

* Subject to RBI approval which has been sought by SBS.

Table 9: Performance Highlights of the Associate Banks as at March-end 2004

(‘Amo{mt in Rs. crore)

Name of the Bank

SBI's Share in Deposits | Advances Operating | Net Profit
the Capital (%) |~ L Profit | B
State Bank of ' : :
Bikaner & Jaipur 75 15,642 8,597 681.35 301.52
.| Hyderabad 100 24,258 11,814 1,014.21 381.20
Indore’ © T 98.05 10,419 6,406 | 53224 226.26
Mysore 92.33 11,084 . 6,307 424,92 176.38
'| Patiala 100 22,473 13,086 1,003.75 430.36
Saurashtra 100 10,675 5,240 452.76 177.39
Travancore - 75 19,721 11,132 700.83 - 244.60
All 7 Banks 1,14,272 62,582 4,810.06 1,937.71
Name of the Bank Return on Average " Return on Net NPA (%) CRAR (%)
A Assets (%) Equity (%) :
State Bank of - i ,
Bikaner & Jaipur 157 - 26.25 1.24 - 1293
Hyderabad 1.34 24.22 0.65 14.29
Indore 1.85 28.63 Nil 12.39
Mysore 1.40 30.31 2.96 11.53
Patiala v 1.79 2486 Nil 13.56
Saurashtra 1.50 2312 Nil - 14.53
Travancore 114 26.44 1.39 1136
All7 Banks 1:49 2577 084 13.03

E.10.Credit Information Bureau (India) Ltd. (CIBIL)
. @ CIBIL has been established by SBI jointly with
HDFC, Dun & Bradstreet Information Services
India Private Ltd.,
~ International Inc., to serve as a central database

for information on borrower accounts.

e CIBIL has a membership of 87 credit grahtors
which covers a major portion of -the credit
dispensed in India.

and Trans Union
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e CIBIL, at present, publishes on its website lists
of suit-filed accounts of Rs.1 crore and above and
suit-filed accounts (willful defaulters) of Rs.25
lakh and more.

E.11.Asset Reconstruction Company (India) Ltd.
(ARCIL)

e The first Asset Reconstruction Company to be
set up under the SARFAESI Act, 2002.

e Jointly promoted by SBI, IDBI, ICICI Bank,
'~ HDFC, HDFC Bank, South Indian Bank, Federal
Bank and IDBI Bank. |

' E.12. Regional Rural Banks
E.12.1. The Bank has sponsored 30 RRBs spread over
102 districts in 16 States with a network of 2,350
branches. The aggregate deposits and advances of
the sponsored RRBs stood at Rs.7,813.78 crore and
Rs.3,401.90 crore respectively (end-March 2004).
During the financial year ended March 2004, 18 of
the Bank’s RRBs made profit, same as in the previous
year. The Bank had, up to March 2004, contributed
Rs.134.97 crore for recapitalization of the 29 RRBs
taken up for financial restructuring. The RRBs

actively participated in marketing of SBI Life’s”

insurance products: In SBI-Life’s Group Scheme,
1,93,685 clients were covered with sum assured
aggregating Rs.1001.10 crore with premia
aggregating Rs.5.86 crore.

F NPA Managemment

F.1. Management of Non-Performing Assets has been
one of the focus areas of the Bank with the objective
being to achieve the global benchmarks. Towards this
goal, the Bank has focused on

e Identification and monitoring of Special Mention
Accounts as per the RBI guidelines in order to
check the slippages of standard assets to NPA
category by making prompt review and taking
quick corrective action. :

e Restructuring of impaired standard accounts as
well as of viable non-performing assets, both

— : - - ST et bttt —t—s | 43 CoTommI T o et T Il

under the CDR scheme evolved by RBI as well
as under the Bank’s own scheme, for containing
NPAs.

e Upgradation of assets at the whole bank level.

e High-value accounts and BIFR cases, especially
in doubtful and loss categories through the 9
specialised Rehabilitation and Recovery
Branches

F.2. The Bank has performed well during the year by
bringing the gross NPA and net NPA ratios down
from 9.34% and 4.5% respectively as on March 31,

2003 to 7.75% and 3.48% respectwely as on the
31st March 2004. i e

F.3. Cash recoveries of Rs.1,617 crore, upgradation
of NPAs to standard assets of Rs.958 crore and
write-off of bad debts worth Rs.3,974 crore were
achieved as on March 31, 2004. The gross reduction
till the end of March 2004 was Rs.6,549 crore, but
the overall reduction was affected by fresh
slippages of Rs.5,721 crore.

F4. Till March 31, 2004, 83 cases were referred for
restructuring under the CDR Scheme, in which the

" Bank had an aggregate exposure of Rs.6;,749 crore:

Out of these cases, 51 cases with an exposure of
Rs.4,895 crore were approved and 20 cases with an
exposure of Rs.1,221 crore were under process.

F.5. The Bank issued notices under the Securitisation
and Reconstruction of Financial Assets and
Enforcement of Security Interest Act, 2002 to 12,553
defaulting borrowers, involving dues of Rs.5,114
crore and seized assets in respect of 381 cases. The
Bank recovered an amount of Rs.130 crore and
received offers for Rs.348 crore under one-time
settlement of the dues.

F.6. The Bank aggressively implemented the
guideiines issued by RBI in respect of settlement of
NPAs up to Rs.10 crore. Recoveries aggregating
Rs.245 crore were effected in 45,905 accounts under
the schemme, out of the total settlement of 63,232 cases,
involving an amount of Rs.469 crore.
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E7. The Bank could successfully sell 76 financial
assets worth Rs.570.35 crore to Asset Reconstruction
Company India Ltd. (ARCIL) till March 2004, thereby

reducing NPAs by Rs.191.21 crore and recording
reversal of Assets Under Collection Account (AUCA) ,

to the tune of Ré.379,14 crore.

F.8. NPAs of Rs.5 crore and above are reviewed at
regular intervals by the High Level NPA Task Force
at the Corporate Centre and NPAs of Rs.1 crore and

‘above are subjected to review by the Circle

Management Committees at the LHOs."The NPA

" “position of the Bank is also reviewed by the Central

Management Committee of the Bank at monthly
intervals.

Fal
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G.1.- The Bank is pursuing an aggressive IT policy
with the objectives of achieving efficiency in internal
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operations and of meeting customer and market
expectations. To carry this strategy forward, several
IT projects, encompassing various facets of modern
day banking have been launched.
i) Universal- Computerization
Computerization of all the branches of the SBI
Group under Universal Computerization Project
(UCP) on the LAN based Bankmaster software
was completed with the computerization of the

" Project:

remaining 7,526 branches during May 2003 to

- single branch, even those in the remotest rural
areas, of the Bank including those of the 7
Associate Banks, stood computerized.

ATM Project: ATMs are the most dynamic retail
channel today in terms of the transformation
they are bringing about in banking habits and
their popularity with customers and branch staff
alike. The significant events during the year
2003-04 are as under:’

o The SBI Group has installed 2,247 ATMs
during the financial year 2003-04, taking f the

aggregate number to 3,814 ATMs covering ~

1,152 centres. All stand-alone ATMs have
moved to the networked platform.

=45

e Creation of a single ATM network across
banks of the State Bank Group.

e The ATM project has been strengthened
through change in strategy, improved
marketing and customer / user education.

e The current ATM card base stands at 5.8

iii)

_January 2004. As.on the 24 January 2004, every. ... ...

million. The turnaround time for ATM cards
issue has been brought down to 7 to 10 days.

o The Bank has entered into bilateral tie-ups
- with other banks like HDFC Bank and UTI
- ~Banl< for sharing-of ATM networks. - -- = - - -

e ATMsas cash points for SBI Cardholders.

e Value-added facilities suqh as payment of
pretnium on SBI Life policies, payments on
account of SBI Credit Cards and fees of

_ certain schools and colleges and mobile
topping up have been enabled through
ATMs.

e On-linebooking of Railway season ticketing
. provided through ATM at CST station,
Mumbai.

e The Group’s network of ATMs has also been
- opened to card Associations — both VISA
and MASTERCARD. .

Core Banking Project: The Bank is moving
towards a centralized database with a state-of-

the-art core-banking-solution-with capability for - - - -

- on-line real-time transaction processing. After -

the first pilot branch went live in August 2003,
40 more branches have gone live upto March
2004. The utilization of core banking solution to
create new and innovative products coupled

- with efficient transaction handling through

centralized processing will help the Bank in

* delivering value-added services to customers.

Trade Finance Project: The Bank has identified
an integrated trade finance solution, the ‘Exim

- Bills" software, which has been customized for .

- Bank’s operatlons, wﬂl allow the Bank to transact -~

" its foreign as well as inland trade finance and

bills business also on the same central database.
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- Compared to the software currently in use, the vii) Other Projects:

- new software brings in a quantum jump in e The Bank’s telebanking service provides
process ,efficieney, reducec;l operating costs, certain selected banking activities like
and accurate and timely MIS support. After the ' enquiry on the Bank’s products, foreign

' P‘iIOt project in August 2003, it has been rolled A exchange rates, issue of draft or cheque
out to 94 large and trade finance intensive =  book and delivery thereof at the
branches up to March 2004. The Bank has " customer’s residenee; _statement of

——..acquired the. Internet access module for the .. .. —account by fax, etc. — - -

trade finance software Wthh will enable s

‘ e SBIHomepage, the Bank’s website, provides
commercial Customers to put in requests for ] ) ) ;
a wide range of information and is also now

- various transactions drrectly from thelr offices . e
‘available in Hindi.

through Internet.- -
v) Internet Bankmg The charmel is an extremely ‘ - @ Introduction of single window services at
L more than 10,000 branches across-the SBI
comprehensive product for both retail and
L oLl i Group_has enabled customers to conduct
corporate use.' It has acquired: real-time
. . " their transactions efficiently. The Bank is
transaction processing capability and has been mine at infroducine sinele windos
supporting the business initiatives of the Bank a b & a}tllntro ucing single window at all
in the areas of utility bill payments, IIT its branches.
application money receipts, rai]Way ticket e The Bank pioneered in introducing Online
-_ bookings, credit card payments, insurance ~ _  Tax Accounting Software (OLTAS) for
- premium payments, etc. More products-are collection and transmission of corporate tax
added regularly to meet customer demand. collection data to RBI, Nagpur, on T+1 basis
Corporate Internet bankmg prov1des customised . for the convenience of the Government, its
productsi__:o large corporar_es As onthe 31t March ° customers and to counter the growing
2004, 1,110 branches provided Internet banking competition for Government busmess Asat
service covering over 300 centres: The facility has- end-March 2004, 3,466 branches were
so far reached 2,45,000 customers under retail : OLTAS-enabled. As ameasure of providing
‘segment and 7,800 customers under the value-addition and convenience to the
corporate segment. Request for opening of . Bank’s customers in the conduct of
Internet Banking Accounits through ATMs has government transactions, Single Window
- been operatronahzed for card holders R Service for government transactions has
Vl) SBI Connect SBI Connect a Wlde are a" TEmmn e rm e o "b"'ee’n'eXte"I:‘lded'tq'QYeI“ZISQD‘bI‘angheS“ T e e e
network (WAN) and a crucial infrastructure e SBIhas provided helplines at all its 14 LHOs
platform, will make real trme transactions with toll free numbers for customer
‘between branches poss1b1e Critical ’ ~ facilitation. ‘
applications such as core banking, ATM and - . — :
Internet banking depend on the WAN for Mtscellaneous Operatzons
successful functioning. As at March 31, 2004, H " Internal Controls
4,215 offices of the SBI Group (2,619 offrces of I Cross-selling
SBI and 1,596 offices of Associate Banks) A ]
] Management Information Systém
covering over 300 centres were connected - — -
through SBI Connect network. K | Allied Activities* - -
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H. Internal Control Systems and their Adequacy -

Risks and Concerns

H.1. Risk Management

H.1.1. The key to effective risk management is not

necessarily to minimize the various risks but to earn
profits by taking the risk. Risk is, therefore, a source
of profit. But it is essential that the risks are identified
and minimized. - ~ ’

H.1.2. In a dynamic environment, the risks are ever-

" changing. The Bank has an in-built architecture to

manage its risks as also stay ahead of those risks that
may arise from time to time. The primary
responsibility for management of risks vests with the
Central Board of the Bank which has approved the
policies and organizational structure for various risk
management measures. An apex level Risk
Management Committee of the Board is in place to
examine and decide upon the issues pertaining to
integrated risk mahagement.

H.1.3. The Bahk implements the guidelines issued
by the RBI and places periodical progress report
before the Bank’s Board and has initiated necessary

steps f_q; '_ig}Elgp}thaFjpn Qf ’ sq}ooth szitchover to

risk-based supervision.

» H2 Credit Risk Management

H.2.1. The Bank has established clear systems to

address this risk: '

e Charting/ categorizing various types of loans
and determining the implications in terms of
quality of lending.

e Settingbenchmark levels/ quality of exposures.

e Periodicreview of the exposures for meeting the
- laid down credit risk management objectives.

e Devising control / monitoring mechanisms to

achieve the objectives.

e Evolving a System of refined analytical tools to
assess risk profiles for ensuring healthy portfolio
and guarding against sickness..-

. H.2.2. During the year, a revised credit risk

assessment system detailing a unified structure for
all bands of C&I, SSI and agriculture segments was
implemented across the whole Bank. Centralized
processing of credit proposals of large value, which
was earlier introduced on a pilot basis, was scaled
up during the year with a view to expediting the
credit approval/delivery process as also enabling
efficient management of credit risk. ‘

H.3. Market Risk Management

H.3.1. Movements in equity and interest rate markets,
currency exchange rates and commodity prices have
an adverse impact on the profitability or on the
economic value of the asset. Careful hedging by using
the sensitive tools developed by the Bank minimizes
this risk. ' -

H.3.2. The Asset Liability Management Committee
(ALCO) of the Bank is entrusted with the task of
market risk management. To this end, ALCO
manages and controls the structure of assets and
liabilities and interest rate sensitivity with a view to
maximizing profits. It also ensures capital adequacy
and sufficient liquidity. During 2003-04, significant

_efforts were made to improve the market risk __ _

management capabilities and fine-tune the
management information system. The Bank has
commenced implementation of the asset liability
management software solution for streﬁgthériing the
risk management process.

H.3.3.
are being regularly identified, measured, and
monitored by Tfeasury Department. An integrated
computerized treasury risk management system
covering trading, back-office and risk control is under

Market risks related to treasury operations

advanced stage of implementation. -

H.4. Operational Risk Management

H.4.1. The Operational Risk Management
Committee in the Bank oversees the operational
risks and the requisite control measures. An
Operational Risk Management Policy duly

coT T 49 T N ey - iy
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approved by the Central Board of the Bank is
in place.

H.5. Country Risk and Bank Exposure

H.5.1. Prudent exposure risk management was
ensured by setting up éppropriate bank exposure
limits on a large number of foreign commercial
banks. Different types of prudential exposure limits
were set up for more than 350 banks worldwide,
covering 187 countries to ensure the safety of the
Bank’s international -exposures. Substantial

counterparty bank limits.for.handling letters of .

credit, bank guarantees, forex and money market
activities are in place. A revised Country Risk
Model, in line with RBI guidelines, for setting up of
country exposure lifhits has been put in place, and

the overall country-risk for the Bank as a whole is

. monitored on a regular basis. .

H.6. Internal Controls = |

H.6.1. The Bank has in-built internal control systems
with well-defined responsibilities at each level. The

Bank also carries out 3 levels of audits - Inspection

and Audit, Credit Audit and Management Audit
covering different facets of internal audit
requirement.

H.6.1.1. Inspection and Audit

H.6.1.1.1.The inspection system plays an important
and critical role in introducing international best
practices in the internal audit function which is
regarded as a critical component of corporate
governance mechanism. Risk-Focused Internal
Audit, an ad]unct to risk-based supervision as per

RBI directives, has been introduced "in the 'Bank’s"

audit system, and all the domestrc branches have
been segregated into three groups based on risk
potential.. '

e Group I consists of 402 branches with high
exposure and income and are now placed under
audit jurisdiction of Central Audit Unit, a new
outfit created at Inspection & Audit Department

to exercise effective audit control over the high-
risk exposure branches.

e Group II which comprises 3,707 branches with
medium risk and ‘

e  Group III which comprises 4,917 branches with
low risk continue to be with the nine Zonal
Inspection Offices. '

While the audit periodicity has been reduced to 12
months for Group I branches, the Group I and Group
I branches are subjected to Corporate Centre audit

‘at 24 and 36 months respectively with Circle Audit

in between two Corporate Centre audits. So far, 270
branches in Group I, 1,881 branches in Group II and
2,095 branches in Group III have been inspected on
the revised system of audit.

H.6.1.2. Credit Audit

H.6.1.2.1. Credit audit aims at achieving continuous
improvement in the quality of commercial credit
portfolio of the Bank through critically examining
individual large commercial loans with exposures of
Rs.5 crore and above. The Audit, which has been
aligned with Risk-Focused Internal Audit, examines
the probability of default, identifies risks and
suggests risk mitigation measures. The overall risk
perception is also arrived at to initiate early remedial
actions to improve the quality of credit portfolio.

H.6.1.3. Management Audit

H.6.1.3.1. With the introduction of Risk-Focused
Internal Audit, management audit has been
reoriented to focus on the effectlveness of risk
management in. processes and the procedures

- _followed inthe BanK. During the year, the general =~

management audit of as many as 11 Circles was
completed. In addition, the management audits have
been completed in respect of two subsidiaries,
namely, SBI Factors and Commercial Services Pvt.
Ltd. and SBI Life Insurance Company Ltd. and also
those of the Foreign Departfnent, Kolkata,
International Banking Group, Mumbai and Zonal
Inspection Offices Kolkata, Bhubaneswar and Jaipur.
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H.7. Vigilance

H.7.1. Vigilance Department of the Bank oversees 3
primary aspects of vigilance: preventive, detective
and punitive.
a) Preventive vigilance:
e committees have been set up at all branches
where the staff strength is 20 and more.

e Training programmes emphasizing

meticulous compliance with systems and

- -procedures-were conducted at the-Bank’s

"7 training centres. During the year, the Bank

organized 114 such training programmes
" covering 2,043 participants. - o

e Training programmes were also organized
for investigating officers, enquiry officers
and presenting officers.

b) Detective vigilance:

e largely performed by the Inspection and
Audit Department.

e surprise ‘inspections and suo motu
investigations are conducted by the
Vigilance Departments at LHOs.

c) Punitive vigilance:

e Vigilance Department has been providing
guidance and support to the disciplinary/
appointing/appellate authorities in their
-.decision-making.

H.7.2. The Bank has instituted the Alertness Award
Scheme for recognition and reward of alertness
among staff members in prevention/ detection and

‘fo11mg of frauds. Vigilance Department at the

Corporate Centre has been computerized and is
linked with the Vigilance Departments at the LHOs
for greater efficiency.

I. Cross Selling

L.1. Banks in India today have evolved into financial
superstores designed to meet all the varied financial
needs of customers. Branches of State Bank Group

have started cross-selling’insurance (life and non-
life), mutual funds and credit cards thereby
increasing not only their fee income but also the
customer base. '

L.2. The bancassurance model, pioneered in India by
SBI and SBI Life, has been introduced in more than
2,600 branches after SBI became a Corporate Agent
of SBI Life. Over 1,000 branches of the Associate
Banks have also started selling select life insurance
products of SBI Life. About 1,000 staff of the Bank

_and 400 staff of the Associate Banks have been trained
~ by SBI Life to sell their insurance products. During -
- 2003-04, SBIbranches covered over 1,28,000 livesand _

collected premia aggregating Rs.82 crore.

1.3. The Bank became a corporate distributor of the
SBI Funds Management Ltd. for sale of mutual fund
products of SBI Funds Management Ltd. through its
select branches. For this purpose, over 425 staff
members were trained, and 242 of them became
AMFI certified agents authorized to sell mutual
funds products. During 2003-04, the Bank’s branches
mobilized nearly Rs.500 crore.

4. The Bank has also made a foray into distribution
of non-life products. It has tied up with New India
Assurance Co. Ltd., for distributing their non-life
products through SBI branch network on a pilot basis.
Nearly 5,500 policies have been sold with premium
aggregating Rs.4.03 crore during the period ]anuary
to March 2004.

J. Management Information System (MIS)

J.1. MIS in the Bank is being constantly upgraded to
cater to the constantly growing appetite for

information = for decision support, fot" innovating™

customized products and for statutory needs. Full
computerization of the branch network has made a
significant contribution in enhancing data quality,
reliability and timely availability.

J.2. Credit Information System (‘tIS), a solution
developed in-house for meeting the information
needs on the loans and advances portfolio in entirety,
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has been implemented at-all branches in the Bank
dispensing with the need for compiling reports
manually at the branches. The solution has also
resulted in development of a rich database which will
enhance capabilities in the areas of product
development cross selling, risk management and
business intelligence in the days ahead.

'J.3. CIS together with other MIS applications are in

the process of being rolled out to cover the entire
Group

K. Allied Activities

K.1. Customer Service

K.1.1. The Bank has focnsed attention on providing
- greater value to customers and managmg customer
relationship at all levels prlmanly through enhanced
customisation of products, improving time to
delivery and innovations in products, services, and
channels of delivery.

K12 Single Window SérVic_e has been the product
introduced by the Bank in 7,466 branches towards
enhancing customer satisfaction.

K.1.3. The Bank’s website - SBI Homepage has been

redesigned to provide a wide range of information

_tothe Bank’s customers. The Bank has a well laid -

- -system for prompt redressal of -grievances of
customers. “SBI Helpline” established at all LHO
centres are equipped with toll-free telephone lines,
fax and e-mail for providing quick and complete
information on Bank’s products and services and to
enable the customers to have their 0r1evances
redressed promptly

K 1.4.. A Code of Fair Banking Practice, first set out
- in October 1997, continues to be in place. The Code

is de51gned ‘to . help the Bank’s customers .

- understand how the Bank’s employees are expected
to behave in their relations with the customers as
also to make the Bank staff aware of their
responsibilities -in meeting the customers’
expectations. Details of this document are made

available on the Bank’s website for information of
the Bank's customers as well as staff. Copies of this
charter are also made available to the Bank’
customers.

K.2. Communify Services Banking

K.2.1. In addition to normal bankmg operations, the

~ Bank, as a respon51ble and responswe corporate

citizen, seeks to reinvest paft of it§ proflt in various
community welfare projects to improve the quality
of life of poor, neglected, weaker and down-trodden
sections of the society.

K.2.2. During the year 2003-04, the Bank made
donations'amounting to Rs.8.76 crore to the Prime
Minister’s National Relief Fund / other national funds
and also to NGOs for projects with social orientation.
From the Research & Development Funds, the Bank
has so far extended Rs.6.61 crore as research grants

to 71 chairs/ research projects at various universities

and academic institutions. Under the SBI Children’s
Welfare Fund, the Bank granted Rs.13.17 lakh to 20
projects through various NGOs for the benefit of
underprivileged/handicapped and challenged

- children.
| Miscellaneous
L | Human Resources Management
M | Official Language -

T T . B -, 1 -
L. Fumen Resources Mansgement (HRM
& v

L.1. The Bank’s core belief is that its employees are
the most valuable corporate asset. In today’s banking
scenario of severe competition and consequently
most banks resembling each other, 'SBI recognizes

~ that it is its employees who create differentiating

products and services. Wide-ranging 1mt1at1ves were
taken by the Bank during the year. .

1.2, Highlights

i) undertaking campus communication in a
ng p ! :
planned and concerted manner in order to attract
.the best talent to the Bank; ¥ ‘

S 8§ Lo o e s s e e o




(i) BB I FE & forw ToER AR A 8
HUE-ad;

(iii) T TR TIYTEI0T ST JeAioh- e 3 fa e
ok SFep1eEf, Il H €A FHE 1 HrA
iR o

(iv) ¥ & Fd-FIE Foo FOTS T w,
ST SAEIRG e A TETER HER FI W
farety & |

3.3. B2 ¥% I S, B2 ¥ s, S &%
3N FER JaeT §M, ©T d9% TH0T e e 3
XA e 46 T WO 35 o7t SfeT § Hag whe-
GO T YT T A Hisd TR § | S 7o wishamet
TE WS § AR oftada FUEE | S % A
surEt § uRed yeua S Wi e T 8, @ e

wﬁw%w@ﬁaﬁgﬁ?ﬁﬁm@wﬁwﬁmwﬁm

M |

3.4. WWW (sfidtaTm)

341§ o Wi R o e e e

T STt et v ® k- e R
o & | ST Wik (RIS I 1 138 Y9 T AR
I, FAH ATesh o T UM Fare a9 3 el
[T U 3 SET TTEH- Wa@ﬁﬁéﬁ;ﬁmaﬁ
R GGG TR | |

3.4.2 AR AT FT AT FHHE GewH F qIE

A 3 (T FUE i T2 a1 ST 3% 701 &9 23
1 % =@ g |éﬁ'&qﬁaﬁw@ T A FHA

gy ??ﬁ U AU Sl T ARy FE 1 T

Frf el a T S @ € | SR 3T v SRS Rt oSl
1T FaT Hf3T ghEal § FAART HAT E T et A
H1E, T UTES-37E A7 TGS & & W
IR Fell § TIET BT S | FEAEG HH T FRET
dar X ot 7 @ T T AP F T SRR Y
Tl 30 i o fa ma @ st gy wrared

' ﬁgnmmumaﬁé‘ﬁtwmqﬁwmm

®R |

3.5, QBT qiad-

3.5.1. 99 & g, Hﬁ{ﬁmwﬁaﬁnmma
aE- :

o @wﬁaﬁgﬁﬁaﬁm%mmﬁm
raferat o T R R ded e T,

o I g HIEME WA [AR A F F IE T I
3 URoTTEREREY fafeT 7T & G Sere Sy
FA & FoTT U eI Ui 1 g e,

o facha stfteml # afs, fre wfnfr onf % S
amm%mwmmq@%

o g Ry 3 S o Farwa, m@mﬁgmgan
aﬁqﬁa@wm'@u '

B.6. W €&AT

31 9 2004 F qF ¥ FeA 2,07,039 FA=TA & 1 g4 |
28.71% e, 46.17% fofuests 9= ot 25.12%
srefiaey wfEd @

B.7. aﬂa‘rﬁmwu

3.7.1. ﬁmwu%@aﬁwmaﬁﬂqﬁ

- oo T 3R S wwel/aTeia & Aream & guensi

F (T A A F IS | AR F g & At
W T Tk G U W 96 qHel aF e €
& & S, e TR S TR 317 FH AR HeTd & W
T I A T FENER Ry T 3R arfEe Wdta 22
3% AR 49 & Y T gEEhar 19 W R
fhUTY, AR A% ‘ |
o It T+t yrERt/wEieEl & wiEeE S quad
FegeieT F T 3 3% FratE & R A
TTeR! HTeaw S UG FWHF | |

T — e 56 s




(ii) starting campus recruitment to induct
professionals for some of the identified
skilled jobs;

(iii) implementation of e-learning solution at State
Bank Academy, Gurgaon, to provide online
training and assessment; and

(iv) revamping the performance management
system in the Bank with focus on competency
based assessments and career progressmn
1mphcat10ns

L.3. The State Bank Staff College, State Bank
Academy, State Bank Institute of Information and
Communication Management, State Bank Institute
of Rural Development and 46 Staff Training Centres
spread across the country are focused on creation and
development of skills relevant to the future of
banking. The Bank is undergoing a major change in
its processes and structures. Change Management
has been included in the Bank’s HR initiatives to
drive home the impending changes in a planned and
professional manner.

"—"L & Busmess Process Re- engmeenng (BPR)—W e

=~ == 1.41. TheBank has undertaken BPR exercise and has .

.engaged an international constiltant as Advisor for
" the project. The objective of BPR initiative is to
stre'ngthen the Bank’s ability to acquire new
customers, build lasting relationships with existing
customers and increase customer satisfaction
through world-class service quality.

L.4.2. The BPR team is simplifying and redesigning
processes to leverage the core banking solution
platform. Strategies are being evolved for
migrating transactions to a full set of alternate
channels namely, ATMs, Internet and Call Centres.
The objective is to transform ‘branches into sales
and service focused outfits with all back-office,
non-customer facing transactions being moved out
of branches to central processing cells. The
blueprint of the proposed set-up has been
approved by a high-powered committee of the

Bank and is now being tested as prototypes in
select branches.

L.5. Organizational Change

L.5.1. Important organizational changes were
initiated during the year. These included:

e streamlining of staffing pattern at administrative
offices in Circles for a leaner and agile structure,

e creation of new official positions to give
structural support in various new areas
consequent to the BPR initiatives undertaken by
the Bank,

e enhancement of financial powers, including
powers of Treasury functionaries for dealing in
securities, etc., and also enlarged powers for
financing of SHGs, and

e further rolling out of Six Sigma which has
resulted in realization of significant benefits by
way of process improvements.

L.6. Staff Strength

-L.6.1. The Bank had a total staff strength of 2, 07‘039 o
~_on the 31% March 2004. Of these, 28. 71% wereofficers, "~

46.17% clerical staff and the remaining 25. 12%
belonged to sub- staff ”

L.7. Industrial Relatlons

L.7.1. In the area of industrial relations, the Bank aims
at development of a collaborative culture and
resolving issues through joint consultations/
negotiations. A well-established and ongoing
consultative machinery is functioning at various
levels of administration in the Bank. Two major
settlements were signed with the All-India SBI Staff
Federation.and a MoU was signed with the All-India
State Bank Officers Federatlon during the year to
enable the Bank

e to fully computerize all its branches/ offices/
operations and also to use the latest technology
platform for their implementation.
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o to redérjloy'/ transfer staff for achieving higher
levels of efficiency and productivity.
e to provide opportunities to young and aspiring
~ employees in career progression.

The industrial relations during the year remained
cordial. '

L.8. Representation of Scheduled Castes (SCs) and

Scheduled Tribes (STs)
L.8.1. As on the 315t March 2004, of the Bank’s total

 staff strength, 37,074 (17.91%) belonged to SCs and

11,261 (5.44%) belonged to STs. In order to effectively
redress the grievances of the SC/ST employees,
liaison officers have been designated at all
administrative offices of the Bank. Senior officials of
the Bank hold regular meetings at periodic intervals
with the representatives of SC/ST Welfare Federation
and SC/ST Welfare Association at Corporate Centre
and LHOs. Workshops on reservation policy are also

- conducted for the benefit of the officials of SC/ST

cell, liaison officers and representatives of SC/ST
Welfare Association. In addition, the Bank conducts
pre-recruitment and pre-promotional training
programmes to enable the SC/ST candidates to
effectively compete with other candidates in
recruitment and promotion.

- M. Official Language

’ Ml Impwrerrleutationr of AO-f4ficia1_‘ Language PohEy o

in the Bank accelerated during the year under

_reV1ew In order to ach1eve the targets of Annual

. Programme 2003 04

e pace of the implementation of official language
policy was increased by continuous monitoring
and through restructuring of Review Meetings

e Annual Conference was made more effective
through active participation of all Rajbhasha
officers

e organised many training programmes,
workshops, meetings and competitions

These measures proved fruitful with the Bank in not
only achieving unprecedented success in the fields
of Hindi-teaching, bilingualization of computers and
use of Hindi in internal work in the non-Hindi
speaking regions but also putting it on the threshold
of notifying some of the branches in region ‘C’ under

Rule 10(4) of Official Language Rules.

M 2 The Bank’s in- house magazme ”Prayas” has
been adjudged the best in-house magazine by RBI.
Many of the Bank’s offices bagged prizes from Town
Official Language Implementation Committee
(TOLIC) headed by Home Ministry, Government of
India, for the implementation of the official language
policy in the Bank. Under the auspices of RBI, a
meeting on the Formation of Banking Glossary was
organized at State Bank Academy, Gurgaon.

Responsibility Statement

The Board of Directors hereby states:

i. thatin the preparation of the annual accounts,
the applicable accounting standards have been
followed along with proper explanation relating
to material departures;

ii. that they have selected such accounting policies
and applied them consistently and made
judgements and estimates that are reasonable

~_..and prudent s0 as to give a true and fair view of " _

the state of affairs of the Bank as on the 31 March
2004, and of the profit or loss of the Bank for the
~ year ended on that date;

iii. that they have taken proper and sufficient care

for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the
Banking Regulation Act, 1949 and State Bank of
India Act, 1955 for safeguarding the assets of the
Bank and preventing and detectmg frauds and
other irregularities; and

iv. that they have prepared the annual accounts on

a going concern basis.
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Annexure: Non-Bankmg Sub51d1ar1es/
Joint Ventures-- SO

SBI Capital Markets Ltd. (SBICAP)

During the year, SBICAP focused on infrastructure
project advisory and syndication mandates,
part1cu1ar1y in sectors, such as, urban infrastructure
and power, which are reckoned as the growth drivers.
The other focus areas were public issues of equity,
book-building issues, debt placements broking, and
sales and distribution. -

- SBICAP's financial performance during the year-was
better than that in the last year. At Rs.63.23 crore, its
PAT was more than twice the PAT during the last year.
The PAT recorded a groivrh of 122% over that in the
previous year. SBICAP déclared a dividend of 75% as
against 35% declared for the previous year. The net
profit as well.as the dividend was the highest ever
, attamed by the ‘company.

-vrl.Durmo the year SBICAP handled 29 private placement
issues and was associated with funds raised to the tune

of over Rs.6,000 crore. Further, it had succeésfully :

concluded four bank issues, namely, UCO Bank, Indian

~ Overseas Bank, Vijaya Bank and Bank of Maharashtra, ™ ™

Rights Issues of Bajaj Electricals Ltd:, and Saint-Gobain

Sekurit India, Ltd., Public issue of IDBI bonds,

Disinvestment by the Government of Indiain IPCL and

- 1POs of Power Tradmg Corporahon and Petronet LNG

“Ltd. Italso provrded advisory services to the world’s
largest phosphoric acid manufacturer.

SBI DFHI Ltd.

SBI Gilts Ltd., has merged with Discount and Finance
House of India (DFHI) Ltd., during the year and the
combined entity is proposed to be renamed as SBI DFHI
Ltd. The combined entity has completed the bidding
commitments and achieved the success ratio as per the
undertakings given individually to RBI for the financial
year ‘2003-{54. After netting out the transactions with
each other; the total outright (Non Repo) combined
- turnover-of government securities and tre’aénry bills
during the period stood at Rs.79,172.94 crore, out of

which the turnover in treasury bills amounted to
Rs.14,950.30 crore. The Repo. turnover amounted to
Rs.96,349.26 crore during 2003-04. The combined entity
posted a post-tax profit of Rs.174.09 crore (PBT at
Rs.276.59 crore) for the year 2003-04.

SBI Cards & Payments Services Ltd. (SBICPSL)

SBICPSL achieved Market Leadership in petrol spends
for all VISA cards in India. SBICPSL increased its market
share to 17% in terms of number of cards issued. The
company achieved a profit before tax of Rs.59.92 crore

~ during the financial year ended March 2004 as against

“services to tap the'potential in niche segments during- - -~

Rs.27.23 crore in the previous year. The company also
declared its maiden dividend of 10% during the year.

SBICPSL has launched innovative card produets and

the year:
e SBI Delhi, SBI Hyderabad and SBI Bangalore city
- ~affinity cards; . . o e
e “Flexipay”, an instalment loan programme;
e e-bill payment of SBI Credit Card for SBI account
holders; and °
e  Elite card which is offered by invitation only

SBI Life Insurance Company Ltd. (SBI Life)

The year 2003-04 was the 2™ full year of operations for
the company. As at end-March 2004, SBI Life covered
nearly 14 lakh lives. It emerged as the top private insurer
in terms of number of lives covered with a market share
of about 14%. It received a premium income of Rs.225
crore for the year 2003-04 as against the premium
receipt of Rs.73 crore during the last financial year,
recording a 200% premium growth. :

SBI Life leveraged the strength of its parent bank and
its group. SBI and its Associate Banks became the
Corporate Agents of SBI Life. SBI Life is now selling
its insurance products through 2,400 branches of SBI
Group. Selling of insurance through bancassurance
channel has been very encouraging ‘with about
48% of the total premium being received through
this channel.
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Apart from selling products through the Bank and its
Associate Banks, SBI Life wid_erged its base by selling
select invsuré:nce' products through leading‘ public
sectorbanks. o

Though bancassurance would be its main channel of
distribuvting insurance products, SBI Life has been
slowly and steadily strengthening alternate channels
including Agency channel. It recruited more than
3,500 agents and also empanelled 17 leading broking
firms and 12 corporate agents. Besides, it sold its
products through agencies like SBI Cards, SBI Mutual
' Fund and Sundaram Finance.

SBI Life introduced several novel and innovative
products during the year. It received international
and national appreciation and awards for its

products, marketing and advertisement campaigns.

SBI Funds Management Pvt. Ltd. (SBIFMPL)

The overall favourable economic situation during 2003-
04 had a positive impact on the mutual funds industry.
SBIFMPL reported a total inflow of Rs.12,450 crore in
the open-ended funds during the year. Total
redemption amounted to Rs.10,523 crore, leaving énet
inflow of Rs.1,927 crore for the year as against a net
inflow of Rs.686 crore in the previous year, due to the
' fmproved performance of SBIFMPL's schemes as well
as good marketing efforts. The total net assets of
domestic funds under management stood at Rs.5,340
crore as on the 31 March 2004 as against Rs.3,312 crore
as on the 31 March 2003. The asset management

company reported a net profit of Rs.10.09 crore after

~ tax for the year, as against Rs.6.21 crore in the previous
year and declared a dividend of 10%.

(SBIFACTORS) _. .

The general upturn in industries and the economy
proved beneficial to SBIFACTORS. During 2003-04, it
had a business turnover of Rs.731.64 crore; the
prepayment outstandings were at Rs.148.80 crore and
profit before tax and provisions was Rs.8.25 crore.

The product variants like Without Recourse Factoring,
Purchase Bill Factoring and Factoring of Usance Bills
under LC, etc., have been well received by the clients.
SBIFACTORS has declared a dividend of 5% for the year
2003-04 after a gap of four years. ‘

Credit Information Bureau (India) Ltd. (CIBIL)

CIBIL has been established by SBI jointly with HDFC,
Dun & Bradstreet Information Services India Private
Ltd., and Trans Union International Inc., to serve as a
central database for information on borrower accounts.
Credit grantors of various categories (banks, Fls, SFCs,
NBFCs and HFCs) subscribe to the membership of
CIBIL and contribute data on all their borrower accounts
- individuals as well as businesses - to the CIBIL
database. CIBIL in turn validates, collates and stores
the data in its database. The data is made available to
the members in the form of consolidated credit
information reports (CIR) only for the purpose of taking
credit decisions. '

CIBIL has a membership of 87 credit grantors which
covers a major portion of the credit dispensed in India.
CIBIL, at present, publishes on its website lists of suit-
filed accounts of Rs.1 crore and above and suit-filed
accounts (willful defaulters) of Rs.25 lakh and more.

Asset Reconstruction Company (India) Ltd. (ARCIL)

ARCIL, jointly promoted by SBI, IDBI, ICICI Bank,
HDFC, HDFC Bank, South Indian Bank, Federal Bank
and IDBI Bank, is the first Asset Reconstruction
Company to be set up under the SARFAESI Act 2002.
ARCIL has an authorized, issued and subscribed
capital of Rs.10 crore as on the 31 March 2004. SBI,
ICICI Bank and IDBI have 24.5% share each in the

company’s equity, while the-others have 5.3% each. —. B

-..-——-SBI Factors_and Commercial Services Ltd.” ~ ' The Company was granted registration by RBIGA the ™~

29% August 2003, and has been in operation for about

seven months in the fiscal year 2004. During this
period, the company has acquired financial assets in
respect of 116 borrowers from various banks and Fls
with Rs.7,050 crore total dues at an aggregate
acquisition price of Rs.1,605 crore.
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Introduction

The Bank has coﬁlplied, in all material respects, with
the Corporate Governance Code as per clause 49 of the
Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchanges. A report
on the implementation of the Corporate Governance
Code of the Listing Agreement by the Bank is furnished
below.

The Bank’s Philosophy on Code of 'vGovernance

The State Bank of India is committed to the best
practices in the area of corporate governance. The Bank
believes that proper corporate governance facilitates
effective management and control of business. This, in
turn, enables the Bank to maintain a high level of
business ethics and to optimize the value for all its
stakeholders The ob]ectwes canbe summar1zed as:

o ‘To enhance shareholder value. 7 3

e To protect interest of shareholders and other
stakeholders mcludmg customers, employees and
soc1ety at large.

"o To ensure transparency and integrity in
communication and to make available full,
accurate and clear information to all concerned.

e To ensure accountability for performance and to
achieve excellence at all levels.

e To provide corporate leadership of highest
standard for others to emulate

The Bank is comrmtted to o

e Ensuring that the Bank’s Board of Directors meet
regularly, pr0v1des effective leadershlp, exercises
.control over management.and monitors executive
performance.

e Establishing a framework of strategic control and
continuously review its efficacy.

° Establishing clearly documented and transparent

management processes for policy development,
implementation and review, decision-making,

~monitoring, control and reporting.

a)

Providing free access to the Board to all relevant
information, advices and resources as are necessary

to enable it to carry out its role effectively.

Ensuring that the Chairman has responsibility for
all aspects of executive management and is
accountable to the Board for the ultimate
performance of the Bank and implementation of
the policies laid down by the Board. The role of
the Chairman is also guided by the SBI Act, 1955
with all relevant amendments.

Ensurivng that a senior executive is made
responsible to the Board in respect of compliance
issues with all applicable statutes, regulations and
other procedures, policies as laid down by the
* Board and report deviation, if any, to the Board.

Board of Directors:

The State Bank of India was formed in 1955 by an Act
of the Parliament, i.e., The State Bank of India Act, l955 ;
A Central Board of Directors was constituted according
to'the Act, and the Board complies Wlth the provisions
of the Act.

The Board is headed by the Chairman of the Bank. Two
Managing Directors are also members of the Board. As
on.March 31, 2004, there were 13 other directors (non-
executive) as members of the Board comprising eminent
personalities from academics, industries and accounting
firms. They represented the RBI, Government of India,
shareholders, workmen and non-workmen staff of the
Bank. The directors are appointed according to various
clauses of Section 19 of the State Bank of India Act, 1955.
The Chairman is appointed under Section 19(a) and the
Managing Directors under Section 19(b) of the Act.

~-Among the non-executive directors who.are on the

Board of the Bank:

one director is appointed under Section 19(bb),
being the president of the local board,

b) four directors are appointed under Section 19(c),

being elected by the shareholders,
<)

one director is appointed under Section 19(ca),
. representing the workmen staff of the Bank, -
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d) one director is appointed under Section 19(cb),

representing the non-workmen staff of the Bank,

e) four directors are appointed under Section 19(d),
beiﬁg nominated by the Central Government,

fy one director is';ppoir‘lted under Section 19(e), being

o nc_)minéted‘by the Central Government, and -

8)
nominated by the Reserve Bank of India.

A brief resume of the non-executive Directors is

presented in Annexure I, and particulars of the
directorships/memberships held by them in other
Boards/Committees are presented in Annexure IL

Committees B

The Central Board has constituted five Committees of
Directors, namely, (1) Executive Committee, (2) Audit
Committee, (3) Shareholders’ /Investors’ Grievance
- Committee, (4) Risk Management Committee of the
Board and (5) Special Committee of Directors for
Monitoring Large Value Frauds (Rs.1 crore and above)

Meetings of the Central Board and the Committees
The Bank’s Central Board meets regularly as per the

- requirements of the Bank with minimum six meetings

in a year. Details of attendance of each Director at the
Board of Directors meetings in 2003-04 are given in
Annexure III.

‘During the year 2003-04, 8 Central Board Meetings were
held. The dates of the meetings and attendance of the
directors are given in Table 10.

Table 10: Attendance of Board Meetings

Date of No. of
A the 'Meeting"""“: Directbrs-A—ttended
. Non- Whole-time Total
Executive | including
Chairman _
- 26.05.2003 =~ 6 w2 8.
| 19.06.2003" g g -g
24.07.2003 7 2 9
01.09.2003 9 2 11
30102003 1 1T 27 13
26.12.2003 -7 3 10 .
30.01.2004 11 3 14
23.03.2004 -G 3 12

- one directoris appointed under Section 19(F), being

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee of the Central Board (ECCB)

is constituted according to Section 30 of the SBI Act,

1955. According to the Act, ECCB exercises powers
delegated by the Board and functions subject to the
conditions imposed by the Board. The State Bank of
India General Regulations (46 & 47) provide that, subject
to the general or special directions of the Central Board,
ECCB may deal with any matter within the competence
of the Central Board. ECCB consists of the Chairman,
the Managing Directors, the Director nominated under
clause (f) of Section 19 of the SBI Act, and all or any of
the other Directors who are normally residents or may
for the time being be present at any ﬂlacé within India
where the meetingv is held. The ECCB meetings are held
once in every week. The number of ECCB meetings
attended by the non-executive directors is given in
Table 11.

Table 11: Attendance of ECCB Meetings

Directors No. of ECCB
(Non-executive) o meetings
1. Shri K.P. Jhunjhunwala (from 16.3.2000) 41

2. Dr LG. Patel (from 1.9.01) 17

3. Shri Ajay G. Piramal (from 1.9.01) .9

4. Shri PR. Khanna (from 10.9.02) 23

5. Shri Suman Kumar Bery (from 10.9.02) 27

6. Shri A.C. Kalita (from 15.7.03) 18

7. Shri Shantha Raju (from 20.5.99) 23

8. Dr. KS. Parikh (from 17.7.01) 9

9. Shri Arun Singh (from 25.7.03) 15
10. Shri Rajiv Pandey (from 23.1.04) 6

11. Shri Piyush Goyal (from 23.1.04) 9

12. Shri N.S. Sisodia (from 11.7.03) 5

13. Smt. KJ. Udeshi (upto 5.9.03) 3

14. Dr. Rakesh Mohan (upto 26.12.03) 3

15. Shri A.V. Sardesai (from 27.12.03) 7

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Board (ACB) was
constituted on 27.7.1994. The composition and functions
of the ACB are placed below:
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Composition of the ACB~ * = L : The members of the ACB are:

a) TheACB has s six members of the Board of Dlrectors 1. ShriPR. Khanna — Director, Chairman (ACB)
_ mcludmg two ‘whole time Du‘ectors, two official -~ - 2 Shri C. Bhat tacharya, MD & GE ( CB & A &S)
Directors (nomlnees of Government and RBI), ancl
: Memniber :
two non—off1c1a1 non-executive D1rectors, one of . o
whom is a Chartered Accountant.” ’ 3. ShriK. Ashok Kini, MD & GE (NB) - Member
b) Meetmgs of the ACB are chaired by any one of the 4. ShriNS. Sisodia - GOI Nominee - Member
non-executive Directors and not by the whole time 5. ShriA.V. Sardesai, RBI Nominee - Member
_Directors of the Bank. -

e ‘-‘ e = -~ Shrj Suman-Kumar Bery —Director—~Member .. ... ___.

: Funchons of ACB ) During the year, 8meet1ngs of ACB (Table 12) were held
~a) ACB. prov1des d1rect1on as also oversees the 7 to review the various matters connected with the ~

- operation of the total audit function in the Bank. ~_internal control, sysntebms and procedures and other
Total audit. functmn 1mpl1es the orgamzatlon __ aspects as required | in terms of the RBI guidelines.

e -.N operahonallsatlon and. quahty control of internal. . . Tabl 012 Att en d ance of ACB-Meetings. - - - )
audit and mspectlon within the Bank and follow- o ‘ , , . ——

-~ - -up-on thestatutory/ external audlt ofthe Bank and . Date Of» - “No. of B
. _____inspection of RBI. N the Meetmg . Directors Attended
. e | Non{Whole:time |- ‘Total |~ —
b) ACB reviews the mternal,inspectibn/audit ‘ EERE executlve | ? ey
functions in the Bank - the system, its quality and 24.05.2003 5 1 3
effectiveness in terms _of fo'llo'w-up. It reyiews the 18.06.2003 5 2 4
inspection reports. of specialized and extra-large 24072003 | — 3 - 4 -
branches ‘and all branches with unsatlsfactory s A PRI ST e e
ratmgs It also, espec1ally, focuses on the follow- “15"09'%003" T 1 5
up of: 20.10.2003 3 1 4
: e R ' 13.12.2003 2 1 .3
® ,Inter-branch adjushnent eccouh?s. | 29012004 L o 2 4
e  Unreconciled long outstanding entries in inter- 11.03.2004 4 2 6
bank accounts and nostro accounts.

e Arrears in balancing of books at various Asset-Liability Management Committee

branches.. =~ -~ The Asset-Liability Management Committee (ALMC)
o ‘ : was constituted in the Bank on the 29*July 1999. It had
five members of the Board of Directors — two Managing

® Frauds.

e Allother major areas of housekeeping Directors and three non-executive Directors. The senior

¢~ It obtainisand feviews half-yearly reports from the ~ MD:(and in his absence, the other MD) chaired the
Comphance Department in the Bank - meetmgs of ALMC. During the year, 1 meetmg ofALMC
took place {Table 13).

d) Regarding statutory audits, ACB follows up on all

~ the issues raised in the Llong,F‘orm Audit Reports. Table 13: Attendance of ALMC Meetmgs
It interacts with the external auditors before the -

Date of the Meeting - | No. of Directors attended
01102008 . | .

finalization of the annual /semi—annual financial

accounts and reports.
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The Central Board has approved the constitution of Risk”

Management Committee of the Board (RMCB) on
March 23, 2004 to oversee the policy and strategy for
integrated risk management relating to credit risk,
market risk and operational risk. With this, ALMC has
got subsumed in RMCB. The functions of ALMC are
now transferred to RMCB.

Risk Management Committee of the Board

Composition of the Committee:

The Committee has 5 members,
1. MD & GE (CB and A&S)
2. MD & GE (NB)

3. Three non-official Directors — Sarvashri P.R.
Khanna, Suman K. Bery and Piyush Goyal

Meetings:

RMCB will meet quarterly or more often if the
situation so demands.

Shareholders’/lnvestors’ Grievance Committee

In pursuance of clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with
the Stock Exchanges Shareholders’/Investors’
Grievance Committee of the Board (SGCB) was formed
to look into the redressal of shareholders’ and investors’
complaints regarding transfer of shares, non-receipt of
balance sheet, non-receipt of interest on bonds/ declared
dividends, etc. '

Composition of SGCB
1. Shri Prithvi Raj Khanna, Shareholder Director,
Chairman ’

2. Shri K.P. Jhunjhunwala, Director, Member
3. Managing Director & GE (CB), Member
4. Managing Director & GE (NB), Member

The SGCB held four quarterly meetings during the year
and reviewed the position of the complaints. During
the year, 6,406 complaints were received and were
resolved within the stipulated period excepting those
pending in courts and cases where duplicate shares have
to be issued with the approval of ECCB.

Special Committee of Directors for Monitoring of
Large Value Frauds (Rs. 1 crore and above)

The ECCB, at its meeting held on 29.3.2004, accorded
approval for constitution of the Special Committee
for Monitoring of Large Value Frauds (Rs.1 crore and
above). The major functions of the Committee would
be to monitor and review all the frauds of Rs.1 crore
and above with a view to identifying systemic
lacunae, if any, reasons for delay in detection and

.reporting, if any, monitoring progress of CBI/Police

investigation, recovery position, ensuring that staff
accountability exercise is completed quickly, reviewing
the efficacy of remedial action taken to prevent
recurrence of frauds and putting in place suitable

preventive measures.

Constitution of the Committee:

1. MD & GE (NB) and in his 'absence, the MD &
GE (CB and A&S)

2. Two Directors from Audit Committee of the
Board - Sarvashri P. R. Khanna and S.K. Bery

3. Two other Directors from the Board of the Bank
- Sarvashri K.P. Thunjhunwala and Rajiv Pandey

Attendance of the Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meetihg for the year 2002-03, which
was held on July 24, 2003, was attended by 11 directors,
namely, Shri A.K. Purwar, Shri PN. Venkatachalam,
Dr. LG. Patel, Smt. K.J. Udeshi, Shri Ajay G. Piramal,
Shri Suman K. Berry, Dr. Kirit S. Parikh, Shri Kailash P.
Jhunjhunwala, Shri PR. Khanna, Shri Ananta Chandra
Kalita and Shri Shantha Raju.

Annual General Meetings

The Annual General Meeting of the shareholders of the
Bank for 2002-03 was held on July 24, 2003, for 2001-02
on August 7, 2002, for 2000-01 on August 7, 2001 and
for 1999-2000 on August 3, 2000, at Mumbai.

Bio-data of the New Executive Directors of the Board

In 2003-04, one new Executive Director joined
the Central Board of Directors, namely,
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Shri C. Bhattacharya, Managing Director & Group
Executive (Corporate Banking & Associates and
Subsidiaries). Shri Bhattacharya joined the Bank as a
direct recruit officer, way back in 1968, and has been
in the uninterrupted service with the Bank since then,
with an illustrious track record. Shri Bhattacharya has
held, with distinction, a variety of critical and
challenging assignments in the Bank, both in India and
abroad. Prior to his appointment as Managing Director,
he was Deputy Managing Director & Chief Credit
Officer, managing the Bank'’s entire credit portfolio.
He was instrumental in devising several new processes
for improvement in risk management and credit
dispensation, resulting in healthy growth in credit
portfolio and speedy credit delivery. Before that, he
was Deputy Managing Director in charge of Bank’s
internal audit system and was the architect of the risk-
focussed internal audit system in SBI which has been
appreciated by the country’s regulators. Prior to that
he was Chief General Manager (Product Development
& Retail Banking) where he laid the foundation for
the retail banking thrust of the Bank. He was also the
Chief General Manager of a large Circle in India,
comprising more than 900 offices. Shri Bhattacharya
brings with him a rich combination of knowledge

and experience.

Shri K. Ashok Kini assumed charge as the Managing
Director & Group Executive (National Banking) from
April 1, 2004. A Post-graduate from Madras Christian
College, Chennai, he joined the Bank as a
Probationary Officer in 1967. Over the years, Shri Kini
has held varied and challenging assignments,
covering virtually all aspects of banking — from
agriculture credit in Karnataka and corporate banking
in Delhi to treasﬁry operations in the Bank’s off-shore
banking unit at Bahrain. He has been instrumental
in starting the SBI's ATM network in the early '90s
which has since grown into the largest ATM network
in the country. Just before he took over as the
Managing Director, he was responsible for drawing
up the blueprint for SBI's technology plan and its
implementation.

Salary and Allowances paid to the Chairman and
Managing Directors in 2003-04

Chairman

Shri A K Purwar (1.4.2003 t0 31.3.2004)  Rs.4,98,900.00
Managing Directors

1. Shri PN. Venkatachalam  (1.4.2003 to 31.3.2004)  Rs.4,65,750.50
2. Shri AK. Batra (142003 to 7.7.2003)  Rs.1,18,890.65

3. Shri C. Bhattacharya (17.12.2003 to 31.3.2004) Rs.1,34,266.61

Sitting Fees

Sitting fees have been revised from January 15, 2004.
The Directors are now given a sitting fee of Rs.5,000 for
attending every Central Board meeting and Rs.2,500 per
meeting for attending any committee meeting of the
Board. Sitting fees are, however, not paid to the
Chairman and Managing Directors of the Bank and the

Directors, who are nominees of RBI and Government
of India. : Sk '

Means of Communications

The Bank strongly believes that all stakeholders should
have access to complete information on its activities,
performance and product initiatives. Annual, half-
yearly and quarterly results of the Bank for the year
2003-04 were published in all leading newspapers of
the country. The results were also displayed on
the Bank’s
www.statebankofindia.com). The Annual Report is sent
to all shareholders of the Bank. In addition, a booklet

website (www.sbi.co.in and

containing the half-yearly results and important

developments during the half-year was sent to each
shareholder of the Bank. The Bank’s website, among
others, displays official news releases of the Bank, the
Bank’s Annual Report and half-yearly report, and
details of various product offerings. Every year, after
the annual and half-yearly results are declared, a Press-
meet is held on the same day, in which the Chairman
makes a presentation and answers the queries of the
media. This is followed by another meeting to which a
number of investment analysts are invited. Details of
the Bank’s performance are discussed with the analysts
in the meeting. After declaring quarterly results, press
notifications are issued.
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General Shareholder Information

The Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders:
Date 9.7.2004, Time 3.30 PM, Venue:Nehru Centre
Auditorium, Dr. Annie Besant Road Worli,

Mumbai 400 018.
Financial Calendar
Date of Book Closure

Dividend Payment Date :

Listing on Stock
| Exchanges

Stock Code

Depository Participation :

“ Electromc (Eleafing N

: 1.4.2003 to 31.3.2004
1 29.6.2004 to 9.7.2004

6.8.2004

: Mumbai, Ahmedabad,

Kolkata, New Dethi,

Chennai and National
Stock Exchange (GDRs

listed on London Stock
Exchange (LSE)).

Listing Fees have been

~ paid up to date to all

Stock Exchanges
including LSE.

: 112

The Bank’s shares
above 500 are
compulsorily traded in
demat form. The
National Securities
Depository Limited
(NSDL) and Central
Depository Services

' (India) Limited (CDSL)
__.are the depositories .

holding the Bank’s

- shares in demat form. {
: Dividend on SBI shares
'~ is also being paid

through RBI's Electronic

Registrar and Transfer
Agent

Share Transfer System
Outstanding GDR
Numbers

Address for -
Correspondence

Clearing Service at
Mumbai, Kolkata,
New Delhi, Bangalore,
Chennai, Ahmedabad
and Hyderabad (being
extended to 39 other
centres).

: M/s. Datamatics

Financial Software &
Services Limited,
Unit: State Bank of India, |
Plot A-16 & 17, MIDC,
Part B, Cross Lane,
Marol, Andheri (E),
Mumbai —- 400 093.

: Through R&T Agent
1 20,769,009 as on

31-3-2004

: State Bank of India,

Shares & Bonds Dept.,

Central Office,

State Bank Bhavan, 9" Fl,
M.C. Road, Nariman Point,
Mumbai - 400 021.

Share Price Movement

The Bank’s shares on an average maintained stable
prices throughout the year. SBI share outperformed
BSE Sensex throughout the year. The movement of the
share price and the BSE Sensex is presenteéd in
- Table 14. The market capitalization of the Bank’s shares -
had a weightage of 4.54% at BSE and 5.00% at NSE
occupying the 7" and the 5% highest position
respectively at both the stock exchanges as at the end
of March 2004. The Bank’s scrip has been one of the

heavily traded scrips.
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Table 14 Market Pnce Data 3

(Closmg Values)
Months __ [SBU's Share Price] BSE Sensex
- (Rs.) 5

, High| Low | High|: Low
April 2003 290.90 | 274.05 3215.24 [ 2924.03
May 2003 |- 361:85| 281.50 | 318075 | 2942.78 -
| June 2003 38420 343,50 | 3607.13 | 3181.97
July 2003 436.65 | 381.00 | 3792.61 | 3554.13
August2003 | 454.95 | 407.35 4244.?3 3741.66
September 2003 451.60 | 399.50 | 4453.24 | 4134.15
October 2003 | 498.20 | 446.00 | 493053 | 4455.08
November 2003| 48430 | 446.85 | 5097.84 | 4771.23
December 2003 | 53850 | 456.00 | 5838.96 | 5131.54
January 2004 | 674.50 | 565.10 | 6194.11 | 5593.74
| February 2004 —632.40 | 569.70-{6035.80 | 5567.12
March 2004 ;| 63430 {-548,25 | 5935.19{ 5365.40 j

Investors’ Needs

 Tomeet various requirements of the investors regarding
. their holdings, the Bank has full-fledged machinery at

its Corporate Office (Shares & Bonds Department at

Mumbai) and at the 14 Local Head Offices (Shares &
Bonds Cells). The investors’ grievances, whether
received at the Bank offices or at the office of the
Registrar and Transfer Agents, are attended to and
redressed expedmously This is monitored at the Top
Management level. The Bank has also-identified 88
official at each centre to attend to the shareholders’/
investors’ needs. The list of these designated officials is
: appended to the Report (Armexure V).

Securities Matket Awareness Campalgn

Under the SEBI-initiated Securities Market Awareness'
Campaign (SMAC), the Bank, during the quarter ended
March 31, 2004, organized workshops on SMAC at eight
centres and educated about 1,675 investors in these

workshops.
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Table 15: Distribution of Shareholdings

(As on 31.3:2004)

Shareholders % of
shares held

RBI 59.73
Non-residents (FIIs/ OCBs /
"NRIs/GDRs) ™ 1939
Financial Institutions including
Insurance Companies 6.00
Mutual Funds/Banks/
Government Companies 5.64
Domestic Companies/ Trusts 2.34
Others including Resident Individuals ~ 6.90
No. of Shareholders (in lakh) 5.70

Table 16: Top Ten Shareholders of the Bank

(As on 31.3.2004)
Name of the Holder Equity
i _held (%)
LRRL %7
2. The Bank of New York as -
Depository to GDRs 7.88
3. Life Insurance Corporation
of India 3.78
4. Fidelity Management and
. ...Research Company A/c.. . . 091.. .
5. Emerging Markets Growth R
. Fund Inc. 0.70
6. Abu Dhabi Investment Authority 0.51
1 7. -Templeton Mutual Fund - 0.45
8. Credit Lyonnais (Singapore)
~ Merchant Bank 043
9. Morgan Stanley Investment :
Management Inc. 0.40
10. Merrill Lynch Capital Markets
Espana S.A. 0.38
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Annexure 1

Brief Resumes of the Non-executive Directors

Shri Kailash P. Jhunjhunwala

Shri K.P. Jhunjhunwala, an industrialist,' is an Ex-
Officio Director on the Central Board u/s 19(bb)
of the SBI Act w.e.f. March 16, 2000 for three years
" ortill the appointment of his successor, whichever

-is later. - ...

He is the President of the Bank’s Patna Local Board.
He was President of Bihar Industries Association,
Patna and Member of SSI Board, Ministry of
Industries, Government of India, New Delhi. He is
a Partner in Patliputra Kagaj Udyog, Patna.

. Dr.LG.Patel_ . . i

Dr. 1.G. Patel is a Director elected by the shareholders
u/s 19(c) of the SBI Act w.e.f. September 1, 2001 for
three years or if re-elected, for further period of three
years. -Dr. Patel was the Governor of Reserve Bank
of India and was also the Director of London School
of Economics.

Shri Ajay G. Piramal

Shri Ajay G. Piramal, an industrialist, is a Director
elected by the shareholders u/s 19(c) of the SBI Act
w.e.f. September 1, 2001 for three years or if re-
elected, for further period of three years. Shri
Piramal, a graduate in Science and a Master in
Management Studies, is heading a diversified group
(Piramal Enterprises Ltd.) with interests in textiles,

o ‘f_f:?_}\armgiéeut’i’(ia’lg glass containers, cutting tools,

~electronies, etc: - -

~ Shri PR. Khanna
Shri P.R. Khanna is a Director elected by the
shareholders u/s 19(c) of the SBI Act w.e.f. September
10, 2002 for three years or if re-elected, for further

period of three years. Shri Khanna is a Chartered
Accountant based at Delhi.

. .Dr.KiritS.Parikh . . .

Shri Suman Kumar Bery

Shri Suman Kumar Bery, an Economist, is a Director
elected by the shareholders u/s 19(c) of the SBI Act
w.e.f. September 10, 2002 for three years or if re-
elected, for further period of three years. He is the
Director General (CEO) of National Council of
Applied Economic Research (NCAER), New Delhi.

Shri Ananta C. Kalita

Shri Ananta Chandra Kalita is a Director nominated
u/s 19(ca) of the SBI Act representing the workmen
staff w.e.f. July 15, 2003 for a period of three years or
-until he ceases to be a workman employee of the Bank - -
or until further orders, whichever is earlier, provided
that he shall not hold office continuously for a period
exceeding six years. He is Head Assistant, State Bank
of India, Zonal Office, Guwahati.

Shri Shantha Raju

Shri Shantha Raju is a Director nominated by the
Central Government u/s 19(cb) of the SBI Act
representing non-workmen staff w.e.f. May 20, 1999
till May 19, 2005 or until he ceases to be an officer of
the Bank, or until further orders, whichever is earlier
provided that he shall not hold office continuously
for a period exceeding six years. He is Deputy
Manager (Organisational Planning & Systems) at
Bangalore Local Head Office of the Bank.

Dr. Kirit Shantilal Parikh is a Director nominated by
the Central Government u/s 19(d) of the SBI Act
w.e.f. July 17, 2001 for three years or till the
appointment of his successor, whichever is later
(maximum six years). He is Emeritus Professor at
Indira Gandhi Institute of Development Research,
Mumbeai.
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Annexure I (contd.)

Shri Arun Singh

Shri Arun Singh is a Director nominated by the
Central Government under Section 19 (d) of the SBI
Act wef. July 25, 2003 for three years or till the
appointment of his successor, whichever is later
(maximum six years). He is a Chartered Accountant
and a senior partner of M/s. Arun Singh & Co. and
was earlier a Director on the Board of Union
Bank of India.

Shri Rajiv Pandey

Shri Rajiv Pandey is a Director nominated by the
Central Government under Section 19 (d) of the SBI
- Act w.e.f. January 23, 2004 for three years or till the
appointment of his successor, whichever is later
(maximumn six years). He is a Chartered Accountant
and ‘a partner of M/s. S D Pandey & Co. He is
Proprietor of Rajiv Pandey & Co. He is a Director
on the Board of Rajasthan Development Trust
P. Ltd., Rajiv Marketing Pvt. Ltd. and Doondhar
Marketing Pvt. Ltd.

Shri Piyush Goyal

Shri Piyush Goyal is a Director nominated by the
Central Government under Section 19 (d) of the SBI
Act w.e.f. January 23, 2004 for three years or till the
appointment of his successor, whichever is later
(maximum six years). He is a Chartered Accountant
and was earlier a Director on the Board of Bank of
Baroda. He is also the President of Flashnet
Infosolutions (I) Ltd.

Shri N. S. Sisodia

Shri N. S. Sisodia, IAS, is a Director u/s 19 (e) of the
SBI Act (nominated by the Government of India)
w.e.f. July 11, 2003. He is Secretary (Financial Sector),

Department of Economic Affairs, Ministry of Finance

& Company Affairs, Government of India.

Shri A. V. Sardesai

Shri A. V. Sardesai is a Director u/s 19(f) of the SBI Act
(nominated by Reserve Bank of India) w.e.f. December
27, 2003. He is an Executive Director of RBI.
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Annexure I1

Number of Other Board of Directors/Board Committees, the Directors are
Members or Chairpersons of (As on 31.03.2004)

Director General

(National Council of Applied
Economic Research)

N-42, Panchshila Park

New Delhi 110 017

Name of Director Occupation & Appointedto  Number of Companies
Address Board since
1. Shri Arun Kumar Purwar ~ Chairman 13.11.2002 Chairman: 17
No.5, Dunedin, Director: 5
J.M.Mehta Road, Member: 10°
- Mumbai 400006. Member of the -
) Governing Board: 2
2. Shri PN. Venkatachalam  Managing Director 28.8.2002 Director: 6
T e D-4, Kinnellan Towers, -~ =~ . = : ~Committee Member: 6
100 A, Napean Sea Road,
N Mumbai 400 006
3. Shri Chandan Bhattacharya Managing Director 17.12.2003 Director: _ 16
M-1, Kinellan Towers Committee Member: 3
100 A, Napean Sea Road
Mumbai 400 006
Non-Executive Directors
4. Shri Kailash P. 2-B, Ashiana Palace 16.03.2000 Partner: 1
Jhunjhunwala Boring Patliputra Colony Road Committee Membet: 2
Patna 800 013
5. Dr. 1.G. Patel Retired 01.09.2001 Director: 1
- Governor, RBI
12 Ami Society,
Diwalipara, Old Padra Road,
Baroda 390 015
6.  Shri Ajay G. Piramal Industrialist 01.09.2001 ° Chairman: 46
. e Chairman Director: 5
Piramal Enterprises Vice President
" Dr. Ambedkar Road, of the Managing
Parel, Mumbai 400 012 Committee of : 3
Trustee: 5
Committee Member; 1
Member: 6
7. ShriPrithvi RajKhanna  Chartered Accountant 10.09.2002 Director: 6
70 Sunder Nagar Societies-Member-
New Delhi 110 003 Governing Body: 2
Committee: 10
8. Shri Suman Kumar Bery =~ Economist - 10.09.2002 Committee Member: 2
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Annexure II (contd.)

Name of Director -

' Oc_cupﬁtion &
‘ Address

Board since

 Appointed to

Number of Companies

9. Shri Ananta Chandra Kalita

Head Assistant 15.07.2003
State Bank of India
Zonal Office

Bhangagarth

" “Guwabhati 781 005

Nil

10. Shri Shantha Raju-

Deputy Manager 20.05.1999

~ State Bank of India .

Bangalore LHO

44, G Cross

SBI Staff Co-op. Hsg. Soc. Ltd.
8th Main, 3rd Stage

West of Chord Road
Basaveswar Nagar

Bangalore 560 079

Nil

11. Dr. Kirit Shantilal Parikh

Emeritus Professor 17.07.2001
Indira Gandhi Institute of

Development Research ,

Flat No.A1/ A2, IGIDR Campus

Gen. A.R. Vaidya Marg

Goregaon (E), Mumbai 400 065

Director:

12. Shri Arun Singh

Chartered Accountant 25.07.2003
F-7, Lajpat Nagar II1

New Delhi 110 024

Nil

13. Shri Rajiv Pandey

Chartered Accountant 23.01.2004
“Pandey Chamber”
6 Gopal Bari, Ajmer Road

Jaipur 302 001

Director:

Trustee:

Partner:

Proprietor:
Committee Member

=== N

14. Shri Piyush Goyal

" Chartered Accountant

23.01.2004
501, Archana

Rajabali Patel Lane

Opp-Breach Candy Hospital

- Mumbai 400 026

Committee Member

15. Shri N.S. Sisodia
(Nominee of Government
of India) -

Secretary (Financial Sector) 11.07.2003 -
Ministry of Finance,

Government of India, -

Deptt. of Economic Affairs

(Bankirig Division) '

Jeevan Deep, Parliament Street

New Delhi 110 001

+

Director:
Comumittee: -

]

16. .Shri A.V. Sardesai
(RBI Nominee) -~ -

Executive Director 27.12.2003
RBI, Central Office

Mint Road, Mumbai 400 001

Committee Member:
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at concessional interest rates

« Covers registered practitioners of all ‘

- Assistance available for setting up of clinics ‘ s
labs, drug stores efc.; and-purchase: of LT [ L o H
ambulahcéé, vehicies, Cdmputers, equipmentsetc. . .. e | w
Max. loans: upto Rs. 25 lakhs With you - all the way
Collateral free loans upto Rs. 10 lakhs www.statebankofindia.com

For further information, please contact the nearest SBI Branch or Business Planner (DB) at: Ahmedabad (079) 25510299, Bangalore (080) 25943034, Bhopa! (0755)
5288178, Bhubaneshwar (0674) 2400110, Chandigarh (0172) 2702004, Chennai (044) 28214603, Guwahati {0361) 2606954, Hyderabad (040) 24756865, Kolkata
» (033) 22424106, Lucknow (0522) 2216201, Mumbai (022) 22027684, New Delhi (011) 23741615, Patna {(0612) 2209077, Thiruvananthapuram (0471) 2339926.




Visit us at www.shicard. com N
46,

STATE BANK OF INDIA ___GECapital

& PPF

account Cdll

 SBI' Card:

Now SBI Card makes your life even simpler If you hold a ; —

PPF account in State Bank of India or any of its Associate banks, S B I Calrd

vou just have to fill the special PPF application form.

Noneed toattach any documents.

Follow these easy steps toacquire an SBI Card:

* Just call our 24 hr SBI Card Customer Helpline for your VALED ONLY I IO AND NEPAL :
application form.

* Orwalkintoyournearest SBI or any of its Associate banks. L}ﬁ g & Bblc 345k

* Ordownload the application form from wusw.sbicard. com. e

« Fill in the special PPF application form giving complete relevant TIJAY KUMAR
information and dropitin the SBI Card Drop Box. .

* You can alsomailitto P O. Bag No. 16, GPO, New Delhi 110001.

So apply* for an SBI Card today and make vour life simple. L o '
" Y Hurry, offer closes on 31 March, 2001 Makes life simple.

Offer open to PFF account holders, with SBI or any of the Associate banks, having an accounr for a tinimum of
2 years with a nirdmum credit balance of Rs. 25,000 (subject to a nininwm deposic of Rs. 5,000 in the last financial year).

Grey Worldwide 235 01 TOID

For more infermation, call the 24 hr SBI Card Customer Helpline at
Delhi: 91 6345454 {in Delhi), 0124 6345454 (from outside Delhi).
Or walk inito the nearest branch of State Bank of India. State Bank of Bikaner & Jaipur, State Bank of Hyderabad,
State Bank of Indore, State Bank of Mysors, Stare Bank of Patiala. State Bank of Saurashtra and State Bank of Travancore.

*Conditions apply. Acceptance discretionary. SBI Card also available without this offer. Available in the above mentioned city only.




No more Travellers' Cheques! No more Cash!
Just carry this magic card to access ATMs and

shop anywhere in the world.

lictwa
fai’}

" State Bank of India

faven Travel Caret

1 visa
 Electron

* Accepted at over 8,50,000 VISA ATMs
¢ Accepted at over 13 million VISA merchant establishments

+ Allows transaction in odd denominations.
(Withdrawals in all currencies)

* No hassles of finding money changers

* Issued from $500 to $10,000 for individuals and unlimited
for corporates*

* Can be reloaded from the issuing branch
any number of times wherever the holder may be*
* Balance enquiry through ATMs

* As per RBI rules

“Your helpline in India - Call centre no. 1600 - 112211 (Toll-free)
VISA Global-Customer Assistance Service (GCAS) 001- 410'- 581 - 9994 (Collect call)

State Bank of India
With you - all the way

www.statebankofindia.com

E-mail: vishwayatra@sbi.co.in




WE'LL BE

BY YOUR SIDE
WHENEVER.
FOREVER.

Trust and understanding,
coupled with knowledge,

to make money grow.

Our investments should have

a competitive edge.

That's the investment philosophy
we live by. And it also makes
the foundation of our long-term

fruitful relationship.

e

G ‘Mim SBI MUTUAL FUND
MA A partner for life.

SBI FUNDS MANAGEMENT (Pvt) Ltd
191, Maker Tower E, Cuffe Parade , Mumbai- 400005, Tel. : 91-022 -22180221 - 27, Fax : 21-022-22189663, Website: www.sbimf.com

Asset Management Company: SBI Funds Management Pvt. Ltd. Principal Trustee: State Bank of India.
Risk Factors: Mutual Fund and Securities Investments are subject to market risks and there is no assurance or
guarantee that the fund’s objectives will be achieved. As with any investment in securities, the NAV of the units
issued under the scheme can go up or down depending on the factors and faces affecting the securities markets.
Past performance of the sponsor/AMC/Mutual Fund does not guarantee the future performance of schemes of the
Mutual Fund. State Bank of India, the sponsor is not responsible or liable for any loss resulting from the
operation of the schemes beyond the initial contribution made by it of an amount of Rs 5 lacs
towards setting up of the Mutual Fund. Please read the offer documents of the schemes before investing.




Annexure I11

Details of Attendance of Each Director at the Board of Directors Meeting in 2003-04

Name of Director

Date of Meefings attended -

Shri A K. Purwar
Chairman

Shri A K. Batra
M.D. & GE (CB)

Shri PN. Venkatachalam
M.D. & GE (NB)

Shri C. Bhattacharya
M.D. & GE (CB & A&S)

Shri K.P. Thunjhunwala

Dr. LG. Patel

Shri Ajay G. Piramal
Shri PR. Khanna

~.Shri Suman Kumar Bery

ShriAC Kalita
Shri Shantha Raju

' Dr.KS. Parikh
Shri Arun Singh
Shri Rajiv Pandey
Shri Piyush Goyal
Shri N.S. Sisodia
Shri A.V. Sardesai
Smt. K.J. Udeshi
Dr. Rakesh Mohan

26/05/2003,
26/12/2003,

26/05/2003,

19/06/2003,
30/01/2004,

26/12/2003,

26/05/2003,
26/12/2003,

24/07 /2003,
23/03/2004

19/06/2003,

26/05/2003,
26/12/2003,

26/05/2003,

30/01/2004,

" 24/07/2003,

23/03/2004
26/05/2003,

30/01/2004,

26/’05/200‘3,
01/09/2003,
30/01/2004,
30/01/2004,
30/10/2003,
30/01/2004

26/05/2003,

~30/10/2003

19/06/2003,
30/01/2004,

19/06/2003

24/07/2003,
23/03/2004

+30/01/2004,

19/06/2003,
30/01/2004,

01/09/2003,

01/09/2003,

19/06/2003,
30/01/2004,

24/07/2003,

23/03/2004

01/09/2003,

19/06/2003,
23/03/2004

01/09/2003,

30/10/2003,
23/03/2004
23/03/2004

26/12/2003

19/06/2003,

24/07/2003,
23/03/2004

01/09/2003,

23/03/2004

24/07/2003,
23/03/2004

30/10/2003,

30/10/2003,

24/07/2003,
23/03/2004

30/10/2003,

24/07/2003,

©30/10/2003,

26/12/2003,

24/07/2003

01/09/2003,

01/09/2003,

30/10/2003,

01/09/2003,
26/12/2003,

30/01/2004

01/09/2003,

30/10/2003,

26/12/2003,

01/09/2003,

30/01/2004

23/03/2004

30/10/2003,

26/12/2003,

30/10/2003,

30/01/2004,

30/10/2003,

26/12/2003,

130/01/2004,

30/10/2003,

= 89
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Annexure IV

VYAS & VYAS

Chartered Accountants

Certificate

To the Shareholders of
State Bank of India

We have examined the compliance of conditions of corporate governance by
* the State Bank of India, for the year ended on the 31%* March 2004 as stipulated
in clause 49 of the Listing Agreement of the State Bank of India with stock
-exchanges.

The compliance of conditions of corporate governance is the responsibility
of the management. Our examination was limited to procedures and
implementation thereof, adopted by the State Bank of India for ensuring the
compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an
audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the State
Bank of India.

In our opinion and to -the best of our information and according to the
- explanations given to us, we certify that the State Bank of India has complied
~ ‘with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the abovementioned
Listing Agreement. . '

We state that no investor grievances are pending for a period exceeding one
month against the State Bank of India as per the records maintained by the
Shareholders/Investors Grievance Commlttee However ten gnevances referred

by SEBI/BSE. are subjudice. ~ ~ ST

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future
* viability of the State Bank of India nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which
the management has conducted the affairs of the State Bank of India.

For and on behalf of

Vyas & Vyas
Chartered Accountants

Place: K?‘lkata (O.P. Vyas)
Date: 28’ May, 2004 : - Partner
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Annexure 'V

List of Investors’ Services Centres
The State Bank of India has provided for the facilities for guidance/redressal of the problems, if any, pertaining to

Bank’s Share/Bonds at the following centres.

| Ahmedabad - 380 015

Centre/ B Name of the Official & Telephone | Fax No.

Link Office : - Designation

AHMEDABAD CIRCLE

State Bank of India, LHO, Ahmedabad Shri R.Chellapa 079-25506652 | 079-25509725
PS. to CGM

State Bank of India, Z.0,, Shri K. K.Desai 079-26442542 | 079-26565482

C.N.Vidyalaya Complex, Chief Manager '

State Bank of India, Z.0., Shajari Ganj,

Mrs. Parvathy Pillai,

0265-2361825

0265-2361623 |

Surat Branch

Asst. Manager

Baroda Chief Manager

State Bank of India, Z.0O., Sector 10-B, Shri M.V.Ramana Rao, 079-3220056 | 079-3229332
Gandhinagar Chief Manager

State Bank of India, Jawahar Road, Shri PM.Chovatia 0281-2236949 | 0281-2223439
Rajkot Branch Dy. Manager "

State Bank of India, Chowk Bazar, Ms.R Sita 0261-2478719 | 0261-2478713

State Bank of India, Super Market

..]’arﬁu‘agar Branch__._..._‘, ¢ e e o

‘Shri B.S.Gadhia

0288-2676693

0288 2554026

Bengalum-590 001.

Asst. Manager

'BANGALORECIRGLE -~~~ | . R

State Bank of India, Bangalore, Ms. Nahm Devi N. 080-22128127 | 080-22128127 |
65, St.Marks Road LHO, Bangalore Asst. Manager

State Bank of India, Z.0., 4* Floor, Shri K.Chéndrasekhar | 080-25943690 | 080-25943690 °
St. Marks Road, Bangalore Dy. Manager

State Bank of India, T.S.Complex, Shri R.S.Dixit 0836-2366698 | 0836-2366698
Sholapur Road, Keshavpur, Z.O,, Chief Manager

Hubli-580 023.

SBI, Khanapur Road, Camp, Sri Uday Venkatesh 0831-2404101 | 0831-2404100

SBIL, PB No.9, Ravikant Kurtakoti, 0836-2211151 | 0836-2447694
College Road, Dharwad-580 001 Chief Manager

SBI, PB No0.90, Port Road, Deepak Kumar 0824—2420053 0824-2445973
Mangalore - 575 001 Asst,. Manager

SBI, Mothikhana Building, G.M.Dakshina Murthy, 0821-2439612 | 0821-2421794
New Sayyaji Rao Road, Mysore -570 024 -Dy.-Manager s
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(Gen. Section)

Centre/ Name of the Off1c1al &: Telephone Fax No.

Link Office De51gnat10n

BHOPAL CIRCLE o

State Bank of India, LHO, Opp Maida Mil], ‘Sh‘ri D.Patri, - ‘. 0755-2551156 | 0755-2551342

Bhopal-462 011 - Manager ‘

State Bank of India, Z.0., Bhopél—462001 Shri R. Bhamagar 0755-2747097 | (0755-2747376

State Bank of India; Z.O. Vijaynagar, -~~~ | “Shri AK. Nanhorya 0761- 2643617 | 0761-2640354 |

Jabalpur-482 002. PS.to DGM -

State Bank of India, Z.O,, Clty Centre, Shri Vinay Khare |-0751-2447341 . | 0751-2447341

Gwalior-474 011, . .~ _o-comsoon .,_Manager '

State Bank of India, Z.O., Bairoh Bazar, ‘Shn Snkant Trlpathy 0771-5040500 0771-5040502

Raipur-492 001. DyManager

State Bank of India (Main Branch), Shri D.K.Tiwari 0731-2702736 | 0731-2700441

Indore-452 001 DyManager '

BHUBANESHWAR CIRCLE

State Bank of India, Pt. ] N. Marg, Shri PXujur 0674-2401841 | 0674-2401841
CGM's Secretariat’

State Bank of India, Shri Pravas Ch.Das 0674-2530327 | 0674-2535051

Z.0., Unit-I, Bhubaneswar Dy.Manager, DGM Sectt.,

State Bank of India, Nayapada, Golbazar, Shri P.C.Mohanty | 0663-2400656 | 0663-2404459

Dist. Sambalpur, Orissa Chief Manager,

| State Bank of India, Z.O.,: , . Shri Ashok Kumar Mohanty 0680-2281633 | 0680-2281392
- Brahamanagar, Berhampur {Gm), ~Chief Manager- -
| Dist. Ganjam, Orissa-760 001 - ~(D&PB)
State Bank of India, Cuttack Branch Shri R.R.Bhuyan 0671-2620391 | 0671-2618434
| Collectorate, Cuttack-2,Orissa | DyManager -
CHANDIGARH CIRCLE
State Bank of India, LHO, CGM Secretariat, | Shri Amarjeet Singh, 0172-2702676 | 0172-2711134
Sector-17B, Chandigarh Dy. Manager -
1 SBI, Z.0., nghland Towers K S Marg, “"Shri A;K;:Rﬁi'déﬁ ) '0191-2474327 "'} 0191-2474813 ~
Jammu Chief Manager
(GB&DPM)
'SBL 2O, Civil Lines, Ludhiana, | SP.Gupta, ot612a27146 | 01612827150
C e e e eae s e e ChIEf Manager
e e T T NN S
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Centre/

T Name of the Official &

Dr.Ambedkar Road, Madurai-02.

o ... | Telephone Fax No.
Link Office. - Designation : - '
SBLZ.O, 40, S.A. Complex, Simla. - -- | ShiKLKondal © 0177-2627658 | 0177-2623717
‘ ' _ | Chief Manager (GB&BPM) -
SBI, Hisar. - Shri J.N.Ratol 01662-229897 | 01662-232418
Chief Manager '
SBI, Town Hall, Amritsar Shri Tarlochan Singh, 0183-2556763 | 0183-2556763
Asst. Mémager
CHENNAI CIRCLE ‘
State Bank of India, LHO, =~ Shri R. Rajasekhar’ ’ .044-28214115 044-2821445‘9
16, College Lane, Chennai-06. = _ | ChiefManager ' | 1o
State Bank of India, Z.O., | ShriNSubramanian | 044-25221250 | 0422-25244259
86, Rajaji Salai, Chennai-01 DyManager .
State Bank of India, ZO. : | ShriN.Sivakumar - -~----—-0422-2301325 | 0422-2300518
Kurinji Complex, State Bank Road, | Dy.Manager ' :
Coimbatore. T e I TatA e
State Bank of India, Zonal Ofice, Shri K. Natarajan 0452-2537101 | 0452-2537025
Madhuram Complex, No.2, Dy. Manager

State Bank of India, Z.O. Shri K.L.Srinivasan 0431-2401510 0431-2401524
Mc Donalds Road, Cantonment, Tiruchirapalli

Tiruchirapalli '

State Bank 6f India, Salem Branch Shri G.Balajaganathan, 0427-2212705 | 0427-2213842
Fort Main Road, Salem, Dy. Manager s
Tamilnadu-01. :

GUWAHATI CIRCLE

State Bank of India, LHO, Shri Gautam Roychoudhury 0361-2540677 | 0361-2540678

Anupam Building, Bharalmukh,
Guwahati-781 009

State Bank of India, Regional Office, Shri S.D.Sikadar 03862-22-5559 | 03862-23-0923
Dimapur, Super Market Complex, Manager. . .
Dimapur-797 112 ... DGM Sectt.,
State Bank of India, Z.O., Shri Harbhajan Singh 0364-222-6458 | 0364-222-6840
Bawri Mansion, Dhankheti, Shillong-793 001 | Chief Manager

State Bank of India, Z.O., | Shri PK.Gogoi, 1 0376-2322200 | 0376-2320715
Jorhat ' Dy. Manager
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Centre/ Name of the Official & Telephone Fax No.
Link Office Designation
HYDERABAD CIRCLE
i State Bank of India, LHO, | Shri K. Pratép Reddy, 040-24756852 | 040-24756252

Banking Operations Deptt., Bank Street,
SBI Building, Hyderabad - 500 095.

MMGS-III

State Bank of India, Z.0,, Shri M.Vijayakumar, 040-27883103 | 040-27883186
DGM'’s Secretariat, Hyderabad Z.0., MMGS-II .
Secunderabad-500 003. i

State Bank of India, Z.0. Shri TK.S.Raghavan, 0877—22200278 0877-2225974
Tirupati-517 501 MMGS-II

Shakespeare Sarani, Kolkata-700 071

State Bank of India, Z.O., Shri V. Suresh, 0866-2495297 | 0866-2494133
Suryaraopet, Vijayavada-520002 MMGS-II
State Bank of India, Z.0O,, Shri T.Sundara Siva Rao 0891-2746615 0891-2746061
Visakhapatnam-530 020 '
State Bank of India, Rajahmundry Branch Shri G Sadasiva Rao 0883-2463839 | 0883-2420418
Pin-533 101 MMGS-1I
KOLKATA CIRCLE
State Bank of India, LHO, Shri Subrata Saha 033-22489338/ | 033-22427354
| Shares & Bonds Cell (BOD), Manager 033-22436139
| Samriddhi Bhavan, Strand Road,
Kolkata-700 001
State Bank of India, Z.O., Shri Shilajit Saha 0342-2544650 | 0342-2647016
Burdwan (W.B.) Chief Manager (D&PB) e
State Bank of India, Z.0., Siliguri, Shri S.P.Chatterjee 0353-2539384 | 0353-2430381
Sky Star Building, 4% Floor, Sevoke Road, | Chief Manager (D&PB)
Siliguri-734 401
State Bank of India, ZO., ShriN.R Saha, 033-26507162 | 033-26508032
Howrah Ganges Garden, 106, Chief Manager (D&PB)
Krian Ch.Singha Road,
Shibpur, Howrah-711 102
State Bank of India, Shri B.Biswas, 0341-2250385 | 0341-2252212
Asansol Branch, Dist.Burdwan (W.B.) Asst.Gen.Manager
State Bank of India, Shri Subir Kumar Das, 033-22820662 | 033-22826777
Z.0., Nagaland House, 11&13, Chief Manager (D&PB)
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Centre/ Name of the Official & Telephone Fax No.

Link Office Designation ‘ S

State Bank of India, Shri D.Dasgupta 033-23550422 | 033-23559472
Z.0., Bidhannagar, C.1.T.Scheme, Chief Manager (D&PB)

VII M/ 16, VIP Road, Kolkata-700 054

LUCKNOW CIRCLE

State Bank of India, A Smt. Alka Kumar, 2226175 2623642

LHO, Moti Mahal Marg, Hazratganj, Chief Manager

Lucknow-226 001

State Bank of India, Shri H.S.Agarwal, 2428834 | 2426063
' Zonal Ofice 148, Civil Lines, Chiéf Mariager (GB&BPM) - :
‘Bareilly-243 001 A
| State Bank of Indla o L Shrl S S Sharma, _ o 2§3§957 o ”2\3{%78%2“**777

Z.0, Town Hall, Gorakhpur-273 001 Chief Manager

(GB/BPM)

State Bank of India, Shri Shashi Kapoor, 2303814 2306143

Z.0., Mahatma Gandhi Marg, The Mall, Chief Manager

Kanpur - 208 001 (GM&BPM)

State Bank of India, Shri Prabhat Kumar 2272832 2218203

Z.0., Office 24, Halwasia Place, M.G.Marg, Chief Manager '

Lucknow-226 001 (GB&BPM)

State Bank of India, Shri Suresh Chandra 2505579 2502483

Z.0, Cantt., Varanasi-221 002 Chief Manager (GB&BPM) '

State Bank of India, Shri H.S.Arora, 2607932 2603713

Z.0., 4, Kutchery Road, Allahabad-211 002 | Chief Manager (Accounts) ‘ '

MUMBAI CIRCLE

State Bank of India, PV. Subbaraman | 22855545 22045496

State Bank Bhavan, Mumbai LHO, - Chief Manager o ' '

Madame Cama Road, Mumbai — 400 021. P.S. to Chief General Manager

State Bank of India, Mumbai Z.0O. Shri Kishore R.Welling, 24228544 24385619

88-C, DGP House, Old Prabhadevi Marg, Chief Manager (D&PB)

Mumbai — 400 025.

State Bank of India, Panaji Z.0., Shri Dinesh Pandey 0832-2221239

State Bank Bhavan, Mahatma Gandh1 Road, | Chief Manager (D&PB)

Panap Goa-403 001 ‘ :

State Bank of India, Pune 2.0, Shri Digambar D.Kakade, 020-26342677 | 020-26340550

“Gulmohar”, 2420 East Street, Chief Manager (D&PB)

Pune ~ 411 001.
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Centre/
L}nk Office

Name of the 0ff1c1al &-

Designation

Telephone

-+ Fax No.

State Bank of India; Nagpur Z: O g

Shri Tulsiram D.-Deshkar

-0712-2540689

0712-2522707 .

Parsi Agiary Lane, Tembe Naka,
Thane - 400 601.

Asst. General Manager

1'S.V.Patel Road Nagpur-440 001.  Chief Ma}légef D&PBYy T T
State Bank of India, Aurangabad Z.O., N-5, | Shri Vasant M.Khandelwal, ~ | 02402483246 | 0240-2486242
Cidco, Aurangabad — 431 003 Chief Manager (D&PB)
State Bank of India, Nasik Main Branch, ‘Shri E.R.Nikam, 0253—2599211: 0253-2595308
Opp. Samrat Hotel, Old Agra Road, Asst. General Manager,
Nasik-422002 Nasik Branch - M
State Bank of India, Thane Main Branch Shri N.D.Toshniwal 25388400 25388060

DELHICIRCLE -~

State Bank of India, LHO, Shri Amritesh Mohan, 011-23345821 | 011- 23345449
11, Parliament Street, New Delhi Dy. Manager,

CGM's Sectt.
State Bank of India, . Shri A K.Rastogi 0121-2769947 | 0121-2762528
Z.0., Meerut Chief Manager '
State Bank of India, N. avyug Matket, Shri Jitendra Khatri - 0120-2794932 | 0120-279459
Ghaziabad. - Asst. Manager
State Bank of India, Delhi Z.O., 11, Shri Tilak Raj 011-23367927 | 011-23349260
Parliament Street, Chief Manager
New Delhi - 110 001. (General Section)
State Bank of India, Z.0., PB.NO.147, Shri R.C.Dhondiyal, 0562-2522728 | 0562-2150126

.38/4A, Sanjay.Place, Agra:2. .. ____| ChiefManager .. ____ |

State Bank of India, Z.O., Nehru Place,

Mr. Rajesh Vyas,

0141-2742061

0141-3743673

Tonk Road, Jaipur Chief Manager
| State Bank of India, Z.0., Rajpur Road, Shri K.C.Ramola, 0135-2742846 | 0135-2745956
Dehradun, Uttranchal Dy. Manager
PATNA CIRCLE
State Bank of India, 7* Floor, LHO, Shri A K.Dwivedj, 0612-2209002 | 0612-2209003
West Gandhi Maidan Patna, Pin - 800 001. Dy. Manager,
CGM’s Sectt.
State Bank of India, 1¢ Floor, Z.O,, _Shri Ashok Prasad, 0612-2692805 | 0612-2684566
1 3,C, Road, Patna — 800 001. _Chief Manager
State Bank of India, Z.0,, Mithanpura, | ShriS.CJha, 0621-2285294 | 0621-2283626
Muzaffarpur, Bihar. ‘ Chief Manager (D&PB)
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37 AEWEYS qiuard IfEfs Hared, L ERES :
TR, AR, @R (fewma wd daf¥s sfhm)
TfE 2T &, ft fasa FAR T 06454-222428 | 06454-22286
37 WIS E WA, s Haed TET W6 V-
Fe waT T, qfofar, fEr (frpre w& dafame dfHm)
eE ®2 %, 30 wEvaEs SfuEe, ot o A 0651-2310612 | 0651-2304702
i+, IrEs (forepre wd dafFs )
T R §%, gFeR wm #t =g W™ 0326-2303592 | 0326-2303119
YEE, IRES R} (facsht fafe )
T R 3%, GEEd meyeys gEed, | ff T ag 06572432119 | 0657-24314212
SRR 37 JSEH
RraT SRR, IRES |
T Bz 8%, Sen @i et ft #¥. daef 06542-242441 | 06542-231232
e TaRl, IRES EL I EDET
A HEA
g Be §5, i =iifq el 0471-2321283 | 0471-2321285
Wt gy FEtad, freeaHag
T BT %, sfas IEied ft f. qefeE 0471-2316877 | 0471-2313270
fareaage Sz ECE

(fora wd dafFs afdm)
Tfg R g%, Efe sElad st . T 0484-2372686 0484-2360224

| e » T Jth '

(fare wd dafFes sfhm)

[ERSCORIIEE ft de sEFEHTTRd 0487-2331279 | 0487-2331471

1. Ffyg & ®R 9t NR/ATE URE NEvES g W et SR/ @ §udh o U § |
2. IF TEER AR A9 http:/ / www.statebankofindia.com W +ff “Trumsl § wafyd gEAr F

sfafa sqas & |
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Name of the Ofﬁcml & i

Fax No.

Centre/ Telephone
Link Office Designation - ‘ o
| StateBank of India, " v Shri Ajay Kumar Gupta, ~ | 0641-2421409 | 0641-2400828
DGM'’s Secretariat, Z O Khan]arpur Chief Manager (D&PB) - '
Bhagalpur, Bihar - '
State Bank of India, DGM's Secretariat, Shri Bijay Kumar Gupta, 06454-222428 | 06454-222861
| Z.0., Kalabhawan Road, Purnea, Bihar Chief Manager (D&PB)

State Bank of India, DGM’s Secretariat,

Mrs. Ranjana Bose,

0651-2310612

0651-2304702

Z.0., Kutchhery Road, Ranchi, Jharkhand. | Chief Manager (D&PB) ‘
State Bank of India, Dhanbad Branch, ‘ Shri Chhathu Ram 0326-2303592 | 0326-2303119
Dhanbad, ]harkhand (Officer in Forex Cell)
State Bank of Ind1a AGM’s Secretarlat Shri A.K.Basu, 0657-2432119 | 0657-24314212
Jamshedpur B Branch DISt ]amshedpur,_ _ . | .Dy.Manager_

JJharkhand e
State Bank of India, Bokaro Steel Clty, Shri B.K.Banerjee,. 06542-242441 | 06542-231232.
Dist : Bokaro, JTharkhand Dy. Manager ’

| KERALA CIRCLE |
State Bank of India, CGM's Secretariat, Mr. Varghese Kuruvilla, 0471-2321283 | 0471-2321285
LHO, Thiruvananthapuram Manager
State Bank of India ‘Shri PMuraleedharan, . 0,421—,231'6,877,, 0471-2313270.
Z.0.,, Thiruvananthapuram Chief Manager (D&PB)
State Bank of India; -~~~ =~ |- Mr. B, Rajagopal, 0484-2372686 | 0484-2360224~
Z.0., Ernakulam Chief Manager (D&PB)

ThrissurBranch™

‘Mr. Mathew Adackamundakkal,

Manager (NRI)

0487-2331279

0487-2331471 .

The Share/ Bondholders residing in the respective areas may approach the concerned centres/ officials in case

of need.

information.

The above information is also available on our website http: / / www.statebankofindia.com under shareholders’
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UHE BT S @ 31 W 2004 F T F SER geR-um
BALANCE SHEET OF THE STATE BANK OF INDIA AS ON 31ST MARCH 2004

(000 F g R N .2)

(000s omitted)

g -

CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES

31.3.2008 % fﬁrﬁr
F AR (A aﬁ)
As on 31.3.2004

gt 9.

Schedule No.

31.3.2003 =% f&fy

% AR (froen &)

As on 31.3.2003
(previous year) .

- - (current year)

. Rs. % Rs.

Capital ' 1 526,29,&9 526,29,89

Reserves & Surplus 2 ~ 19704,97,95 16677,08,35

Deposits 3 318618,67,15 296123,28,24
IuR . ;

Borrowings 4 13431,33,35 9303,61,94
I Tifre ot Swey '

Other liabilities & provisions 5 55533,99,67 53246,21,41
4

Im f :

TOTAL 407815,28,@1 375876,49,83

snerat IS €. 31.3.2004 W R 31.3.2003 W Ry

& IR (I 74) & orEr (froen ad)

ASSETS Schedule No.  As on 31.3.2004 As on 31.3.2003

(current year) (previous year)

%. Rs. %. Rs.
.. " ¢
e five s § Tt e st :

Cash & balances with Reserve Bank of India 6 19Q41,28,{H 12738,46,84
Sert ¥ SERIREAT 3T TN AT WY GO W UTH e i

Balances with banks & money at call & short notice 7 24525,33,27 32442,55,61

Investments 8 185676,48,28 172347,90,72

Advances 9 157933,53,74 137758,45,82

Fixed Assets 10 2645,11,50 2388,54,83

Other Assets 11 . 17993,52,?1 18200,56,01
4 :

TOTAL 407815,28,;01 375876,49,83

Contingent liabilities 12 %, RS.111892,22,:‘37 %. Rs.106105,89,60

Bills for collection - %. Rs.10193,80,90 %. Rs.7571;28,46"
Principal Accounting Policies 17
e Feoaftra

Notes to Accounts 18
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FTET 1. — G

SCHEDULE -1 — CAPITAL

S oeee e e .~ - (o00-F Trg-fm W) -
(000s omitted)

31.3.2004 = &y 31.3.2003 & f&ify
® AR (e W) % orgEn (Fewenm =)

As on 31.3.2004 As on 31.3.2003
(current year) (previous year)
H. Rs. F. Rs.

Wit St — 10/~ F9C ¥R IR TR 100,00,00,000 IR
‘Authorised Capital — 100,00,00,000 shares of Rs.10/- each 1000,00,00 1000,00,00

~ Frifi, sifea oK 999 {51 — 52,62,98,878 ¥R —

FAF IR 10/--F F1.[TTH 4,15,38,018 (31.03.2003 F! 4,15,38,018)

I Wit § 9 2,07,69,009 (31.03.2003 & 2,07,69,008) v w91 el % w9 § .

-Issued;- Subscribed and Paid-up Capital — 52,62,98,878 shares of Rs.10/- each

[includes 4,15,38,018 shares (4,15,38,018 as on 31.03.2003) B
‘represented by .2,07,69,009 (2,07,69,009 as on 31.03.2003) o - R
Global Depository. Receipts] - o . . LTI T
T T " 526,29,89 "7 526,29,89

TOTAL 526,29,89 526,29,89

o LD T L TTTIT T T 1 107 e e




P N =

et 2 — IRfafeat ot st * (000 F BIg & T §)

SCHEDULE 2 — RESERVES & SURPLUS " (000s omitted)

31.3.2004 ¥ f&afy 31.3.2003 =i FRfa

* @R (W ad) % Ian (fuser =)
As on 31.3.2004 As on 31.3.2003
(current year) , (previous year)

& Rs. & Rs. %. Rs. E. Rs.

L = amisf
Statutory Reserves

SR

Opening Balance 10679,44,06 9681,59,19

e F W wfEea .
Additions during the year 925,60,90 1997,84,87

T4 % I wAferat

Deductions during the year e e - 11605,04,96 . . = 10679,44,06
I i emfafea

Capital Reserves

RN : i
Opening Balance 112,54,60- - - ~110,07,23

4 % A qiEe . .
Additions during the year 2,28,49 2,47,37

ad ¥ SE FwfE

Deductions during the year

I 3R Wiftew

Share Premium

RN ' :
Opening Balance B 3510,57,33 3510,57,33

74 F 3 vfE ,
Additions during the year - -

a8 % A et

Deductions during the year

Iv. 3y SaR-wgE afdfmat

Investment F luctuanon Reserve

CENL]
Opening Balance 2271,15,38 671,15,38

ad & W T
Additions durmg the year 2100,00,00 1600,00,00

T4 ¥ < wAfE

Deductions during the year

*V, TS SR o st

Revenue and Other Reserves

SERL] : .
Opening Balance 103,03,26 724,35,26

¢ ¥ 4R afE
Additions during the year - ‘ -

T4 ¥ IR FAT

Deductions during the year - . 621,32,00 @

103,03,26 103,03,26
@ EHT THEGFW F U 9T @

@ Accrued Liability towards Leave Encashment

114,83,09 - 112,54,60

3510,57,33 3510,57,33

4371,15,38

2271,15,38

VI @ ek gt mm e s .
Balance of Profit and Loss Account 33,93 . 33,72

*  gEy (w@zﬁmaﬁ;ﬁm 1955ﬁwae%m@m)
fowm g ¥ ¥ 5,00,00,000
(ﬁm@raﬁ 5,00,00,000) WA .
* Includes Rs.5,00,00,600 (previous year Rs. 5,00,00,000) of
Integration and Development Fumi,
(maintained under Section 36 of the
State Bank of India Act, 1955)

£
TOTAL 19704,97,95 ‘ 16677,08,35

=——==]108 = = =




Mgt 3. — AT (000 ¥ Tre T T ¥)

SCHEDULE 3 — DEPOSITS ' o : : {000s omitted)
I . ~ , 31.3.2004 ¥ f®fa 31.3.2003 &t f&ifg
T SO S S R . F AR (A ) % oFEw (fuser ad)
s e : As on 31.3.2004 As on 31.3.2003
: - S (current year) (previous year)
%. Rs. %. Rs.
M B 1 B
TUAVTLY Demand Deposits
From banks - 6899,92,98 6826,12,39
(ii) r9'4Q o
From others 43390,90,05 37946,26,26
I o=@ S SHmieEt ‘
Savings Bank Deposits _— 79595,88,18 65782,71,08
| L ety st
. Term Deposits
1) =¥ . S :
From banks . } 6302,59,73 . 5552,96,74
From others ‘ . . 182429,36,21. . .. 180015,21,77
s e e e e ~ 3m TOTAL 318618,67,15 . 296123,28,24
= (i) wm ¥ sl # Sl
B. Deposits of branches in India 309798,20,91 288865,97,40
(i) 9 % AR el Sl ‘ ' :
’ Deposits of branches outside India e e e . 8820,46,24 7257,30,84
dm TOTAL 318618,67.15 296123,28,24
WAL_ ; I (000 # Brg e T B)
SCHEDULE 4 — BORROWINGS " (000s omitted)

'31.3.2004 W f&fq 31.3.2003 = feafq
‘ 4 ® AR (I ') % ormr (fumen =)
e et e e L e s : - - As on 31.3.2004 As on 31.3.2003

{current year) (previous year)
%. Rs. ®. Rs.

. ¥RE ¥ 3ur
* Borrowings in India
(i) ureda fod d%
Reserve Bank of India
(i) o= &%
, Other banks
(iii) *= geamd 3 s .
Other 1nst1tut10ns and agencies ) 1365,32,08 1571,84,04

I wRa & T A TUR .
Borrowmc's outside India ’ k 12066,01,27 7731,77,90

4m TOTAL 13431,33,35 . 9303,61,94

- "oecured borrowmcs mcluded i ¥ & Wabove ™ T LT T ¥. Rs.2146,32,93 % Rs2589,92,97

C T oL ST L I AT e 1109 [ T T T T T T T I L T T T T T




IR 5 — 3 e ofK sy

SCHEDULE 5 — OTHER LIABILITIES & PROVISIONS

(000 = Trg fm ™ B)
(000s omitted)

31.3.2004 ¥ fRafy
+ AR (I T™)

As on 31.3.2004
(current year)

31.3.2003 % ety

* Irfar (fuger =d)
As on 31.3.2003
(previous year)

i %. Rs, %. Rs.
I GeEfam
Bills payable 15665,41,01 14036,34,21
. Sia-FEed g (fae) .
Inter-office adjustments (net) 5822,76,14 3685,01,97
I SEyd s '
Interest accrued 17427,97,12 20059,78,40
IV. i) 63 W9 & Miay@ aeiTey wieea 9e (1999-2000) -
i) 63 months Unsecured Subordinated Redeemable Bonds
(1999-2000) 935,87,00 935,87,00
ii) 63 W U 87 WE & WA onfiey gy Sig (2000-2001)
ii) 63 months & 87 months Unsecured Subordinated
Redeemable Bonds (2000-2001) 2500,00,00 2500,00,00
iii) 108 "M ¥ ufayg WRT KW : (2000-2001)
iii) 108 Month§ Unsecured Redeemable Loan : (2000-2001} 27,32,86 26,45,55
(%@ <@ fewoit 9. 5 Refer Notes to Accounts No. 5)
v, ereaf| R 2ga (Fee)
Deferred Tax Liabilities (net) 31,21,31
VI 31 (39 Suey afffem §)
Others (including provisions) 13154,65,54 11971,52,97
I TOTAL 55533,99,67 53246,21,41
IR 6 — W fiwd & ¥ Jordt v STt (000 % B fo T )
SCHEDULE 6 — CASH AND BALANCES WITH RESERVE BANK OF INDIA [0605 omitted)
31.3.2004 @t Rafq 31.3.2003 = fEafy
& OO (I ad) % SgEn (o o)

As on 31.3.2004
(current year)

As on 31.3.2003
{previous year)

1L oY Td (ud R wE e g v afEkm §)

Cash in hand (including foreign currency notes and gold)
I o fow o% 8 SR
Balance with Reserve Bank of India
(i) = Em A
In Current Account
(i) o =l o
In Other Accounts

I TOTAL

¥. Rs. %. Rs.
1284,98,05 1136,20,43

" 17756,30,36 11602,26,41
19041,28,41 12738,46,84

e 10 e et




g7 — SRl ¥ TORIRET 3T AT qYT T AT W WA &7

(000 1 BT B T R)
: {000s omitted)

~_ SCHEDULE 7 — BALANCES WITH BANKS & MONEY AT CALL & SHORT NOTICE

31.3.2004 =t feafx

& AR (3] a9)
As on 31.3.2004
(current year)

31.3.2003 @ fRafy

% rEn (froer o)
As on 31.3.2003
(previous year)

‘Outside India
) e T

s #
In India

W i Col i i

Balances with banks

(%) T TR E
{a) In Current Accounts
(@) o= s wH A
{b) In Other Deposit Accounts

(i) Wi SR ey I W W e\

Money at call and short notice

(F) = §
{a) _ With banks

(@) s sl ® ,
(b) With other institutions

In Current Accounts

(ii) o= 51 @ o
In Other Deposit Accounts

(iti) M S eTeq guA W W ¥q
Money at call and short notice

%. Rs.

297,47,95

2649,39,55

13553,79,00

%. Rs.

165,58,69

3247,11,21

24359,95,00

R

I TOTAL - = = "16500,66,50

27772,64,90

1903,76,44 1674,06,81

250,68,52 348,10,56

5870,21,81 2647,73,34

ar TOTAL 8024,66,77 4669,90,71

Fd 97 GRAND TOTAL 24525,53,27 32442,55,61
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arget 8 — fafems

(000 1 Bre fom m.¥)
SCHEDULE 8 — INVESTMENTS -

) (000s omitted)
31.3.2004 &t fafa 31.3.2003 &t Rafer
F A (S Ad) & srEn (e ad)
As on 31.3.2004 As on 31.3.2003
(current year) (previous year)

%. Rs. %. Rs.
I o9 H fafum
Investments in India in
({) weEd wfrfoa
Government Securities 157738,10,12 143727,26,29
(i) o= Fgafea shafe ‘
Other approved securities 4194,47,61 4527,26,17
(iif) IR '
Shares 901,89,75 992,52,85
(iv) fedm ol =iz ‘ :
Debentures and Bonds 15874,94,56 16166,26,61
(v) WO SlvetTE We-vem ';
Subsidiaries and/or joint ventures 1436,03,94 1189,49,38
(vi) o/ (/i oo &) :
Others (Units/Commercial Papers etc.) 1538,90,23 1282,79,48
M TOTAL 181684,36,21 167885,60,78
I W % IR {Fam
Investments outside India in
() el il § (el s wie sERE )
Government securities (including local authorities) 202,93,60 381,38,12
(ii) Torel ® wogeh shvereen We-sem
Subsidiaries and/or joint ventures abroad 276,73,05 216,32,44
(iii) s fafwm (9, fedm o)
Other investments (Shares, Debentures etc.) 3512,45,42 3864,59,38
am TOTAL 3992,12,07 4462,29,94

F&@ WM GRAND TOTAL

I 9Rg ¥ fafum
Investments in India

(i) fafwE = wa TH

Gross Value of Investments
(ii) =emW : & WaU/HeIed

Less : Aggregate of Provision/Depreciation
(iti) Frae fafm (Fw1 )

Net Investments (vide I above)

V. 9RA ¥ e fafem
Investments outside India
(i) fafue =1 gwa oA
~ Gross Value of Investments
(i) R : TN WA/ TR
Less : Aggregate of Provision/Depreciation
(iii) Fro@ fafmm (SR I F)

Net Investments {vide II above}

IM TOTAL

4 TOTAL

F@ 97 GRAND TOTAL

185676,48,28

172347,90,72

183347,43,45

1663,07,24

169038,37,77

1152,76,99

181684,36,21

167885,60,78

4028,40,51

36,28,44

4514,14,67

51,84,73

3992,12,07

4462,29,94

185676,48,28

172347,90,72

=— 112




ITHEr. 0. — Ifmm T T e

SCHEDULE 9 — ADVANCES o S (0008 omitted)
e T S T ’  31.3.2004 F R '31.3.2003 & fRafx
P ORI - & IER (T ad) © % IEn (freen o)
R As on 31.3.2004 As on 31.3.2003
(current year) {previous year)
¥. Rs. % Rs.
% (0 m%qm@xﬁammwﬁqmﬁﬁmw )
A.  Bills purchased and discounted 14858,55,33 12404,93,86
(i) 0 fee, sogre ol 7 w afewRy Iur ‘
Cash credits, overdrafts and loans repayable on demand . 69328,51,83 69116,79,76
(iii) Wy ¥R '
Term loans : 73746,46,58 56236,72,20
a7 TOTAL 157933,53,74 137758,45,82
@ (i) @ N gR wRE (I RO W efim et ¥)
B. Secured by tangible assets (includes advances . -
' against Book Debts) 119388,34,68 109924,00,95
(i) SwHaEd yeyfEl g fE o :
Covered by Bank/Government Guarantees 11837,11,50 9184,80,83
(iii) eTofae@ '
Unsecured 26608,07,56 18649,64,04

M TOTAL 157933,53,74 137758,45,82

T wRd ¥ afim

C.  Advances in_ India
(1) el . :
) Priority Sector 42705,87,26 35111,80,47
(i) e &= :
Public Sector 25874,94,72 24782,83,54
(iii) ¥% ‘
Banks ) 2276,57,07 85,92,87
(iv) 3= . - . :
Others - : 71168,92,67 63869,24,88

4r TOTAL 142026,31,72 123849,81,76

(1) W@ % =R M ' g

Advances outside India

(i) ¥ 4 fe 2

Due from banks 891,51,65 914,37,42
(ii) a=f ¥ e

Due from others

($)mﬁﬁqmaﬁtmmwmmﬁﬁwqa :

* (a) Bills purchased and discounted 5155,75,79 2833,53,84

(@) Ifiyyg IuN ) .

(b) Syndicated loans . 5275,98,49 » 5734,02,31

m = ' .

(c) Others - 7 . i e  4583,96,09 .. . .. 4426,70,49

A TOTAL ' 15907,22,02  13908,64,06°

¥ 4R GRAND TOTAL 157933,53,74 137758,45,82

—=113"




313'{:!3'1;10_@'{'3“%'&1 " (000 F Bz fm T D)
SCHEDULE 10 — FIXED ASSETS ) i . (000s omitted)

31.3.2004 FY Ry 31.3.2003 @t &t

& AR (=] ad) & orEr (froen ad)
TUTTTTTTAS Ton 31°3.2004 7 7 “"As on 31.3.2003 —

T (current year) (previous year)

4. Rs. : %. Rs.

I % uhw

A. Premises

TEadl 9§ # 31 76 F T F SR 9@ W

At cost as on 31st March of the preceding year .. o '966,80,23 ©920,31,37
T % <A wfad :

Additions during the year e 54,00,36 . 48,19,30
Td F e wAfrt

Deductions during the year . 34,40 : 1,70,44
ST I .

Depreciation to date 344,45,66 ' | 307,67,62

—_— 676,00,53 659,12,61

w. i et R anfeEi wfgg o
B.

Premises including other fixed - )
assets under Construction . 146,54,10 129;06,14

I g fBR anfem (30 wHre o fream oMk §)

Other Fixed Assets (including furniture and fixtures)

et ad % 31 " W BT F oHER e ®

At cost as on 31st March of the preceding year 2643,27,00 . 2213,80,10
i % IR fEE :
- Additions during the year 1017,11,23 ! 456,73,10
a8 % I wARE .
Deductions during the year 21,58,53 Y 27,26,20
JEAH SATFHT .
Depreciation to date : 2315,52,54 1799,90,67
. 1323,27,16 ——— 843,36,33

M. . v i , :
A. Leased Assets " k

THe aY w31 W A A F AR A W

At cost as on 31st March of the preceding year .. 1433,57,67 . 1434,27,52
i & S e SR wieda
Additions during the year including adjustments
T & SR SqeY Wik wMfai .
Deductions during the year including provisions © 194,87,96 ‘ : 72,55,76
AT HIGgI0 ¥
Depreciation to date 739,40,00 = 632,39,00
499,29,71 ; 729,32,76
W R IS T (e i) S e "
B. Capital works-in-progress (Leased Asséts) net of Provisions : 27.,66,99
499,29,71 C— 756,99,75

A TOTAL -+ = - 2645,11,50 . 2388,54,83

o = yrvren o e r—-1114r-p—v R e 2o AR U R et e o r—— e P e




ST 11 — ¥4 anfeEt

(000 B fm W %)

SCHEDULE 11 — OTHER ASSETS {000s omitted)
31.3.2004 =% afa 31.3.2003 =t iy

* OO (A 9d) % rmr (fuwer ad)

As on 31.3.2004
(current year)

As on 31.3.2003
(previous year)

%. Rs. %. Rs.
) o-Fren wERee (Feaa)
- Inter-office adjustments (net) — -
(i) dEyg A=
Interest accrued _ 5463,66,04 5766,45,74
(iii) M ®9 ¥ HeT FVHT | FRI T F
Tax paid in advance/tax deducted ‘at source 2594,91,79 1534,51,89
(iv) STreafia ¢ sufemi (Faer)
Deferred Tax Assets (net) 245,06,69 —
C{v) orEd 9 el wiy '
Stationery .and stamps 76,76,75 75,22,05
(vi) =& # wgfe ¥ wra A 7 r-dEed sl
Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims ... 54,78 56,41
(vii) 3T
Others 9612,56,76 10823,79,92
(398 smeafim T = (SDfess Fafef) wite 2
(3@ s feoolt €. 2))
[includes deferred revenue expenditure (VRS)
(Refer to Notes to Accounts No. 2)]
a7 TOTAL 17993,52,81 18200,56,01
AT 12 — ATy o (000 1 D15 T T B)
SCHEDULE 12 — CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (000s omitted) -
- - © 3132004 W Rl T 31.3.2003 o fafy
- ¥ AER (T ad) F R (frwen o)

" 'As on 31.3.2004
(current year)

As on 31.3.2003 ]
(previous year)

L 9% % freg 93 A w0 & w0 § wier 78 fea w2
Claims against the bank not acknowledged as debts
1. 3ve: deg fafee & fon afae
Liability for partly paid investments
NI =% ame b dfiged % s e
. Liability on account of outstanding forward exchange contracts ...
V. Woes F o & T vyl
Guarantees given on behalf of constituents
(F) 9ra H
(a) In India
(@) 9@ & =M
(b)- Outside India
V. fuRw, e s o e

Acceptances, endorsements and other obligations

Vi org wE e fow S wuiie 9 8 sowr ®
Other items for which the bank is contingently liable

T. Rs.

763,72,32

67,17,50

58720,38,28

11011,87,69
5195,08,41
21119,19,45

15014,79,22

~ ®. Rs,

oy

450,65,08

20

44,05,00

52325,75,94

9248,64,37
5770,86,62
15867,63,63

22398,28,95

I TOTAL

111892,22,87

106105,89,60

115




31 WIE 2004 i AU ¥ & fw @ e iR i @ (000 B Brs T T 2)

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2004 g (600s omitted)
g 31.3.2004 W WA T 31.3.2003 H TAA TH
L A (ure] &), (fren o)
Schedule Year ended 31.3.2004  Year ended 31.3.2003
No. (current year) {previous year)
. Rs.l: ‘ %, Rs.
L ¥ :
INCOME
Interest earned ' 13 30460,49,15 31087,01,79
I A
Other Income 14 7612,46,12 5740,26,07
am TOTAL 38072,95,2% 36827,27,86
o =9
EXPENDITURE
= e T s . , ,
Interest expended 15 19274,17,6::3 ) 21109,46,09
Operating expenses 16 9245,31,72 7942,42,02
IYEY I A = ‘ ,
Provisions and contingencies ... ' i 5872,45,92 4670,39,75
4 TOTAL 34391,95,27. 33722,27,86
oI, = .
PROFIT
¥ % fau fee @y ‘
Net Profit for the year _ 3681,00,00 3105,00,00
o iRiciI bl ; X
Profit brought forward - : 33,72 33,65
. A TOTAL 3681,33,72 3105,33,65
APPROPRIATIONS o
E R e eI lcE 7
Transfer to statutory reserves .. - . 925,60,90 - . . 997,84,87

ot it = sfEm
(STRTFEAR F 2100 FlT T9U WA §)

Transfer to other reserves

(includes Rs. 2100 crores to IFR) 2102,28,49 1602,47,37

e e # st

Transfer to proposed dividend ... 578,92,88 447,35,90

A T F R SR ‘ i ‘

Transfer to Tax on dividend .. 74,17,52 ‘ 57,31,79

SFR S o geE-TE o & o T R '

Balance carried over to Balance Sheet .. 33,93 33,72
4m TOTAL 3681,33,72 3105,33,65

¢

T IR qE/FE F A oA (39 o frei €. 15)

Basic/Dilutive Earnings per Share (Refer Notes to Accounts No. 15) %. Rs. 69,94 %. Rs. 59.00
ygE W it :

Principal Accounting Policies ... 17

Notes to Accounts 18

fimrimec miamoe e e = 116¢




gt 13 — Afida ==
SCHEDULE 13 — INTEREST EARNED

(000 # Br% R ™ ®)
(000s omitted)

31.3.2004 S QU 94
(=g =)

Year ended 31.3.2004
(current year}

31.3.2003 i WA a4
(fasem =)

Year ended 31.3.2003
$previous year)

-IL

/At T s A

-Interest/discount en advances/bills -

I G I e |- SRR . -

. Income on investments

HL

e e ¥ § SR SR o S-S RiE w s

Interest on balances with Reserve Bank of India
and other inter-bank funds

3FTq
Others _

%. Rs. % Rs.

11267,17,66- 11229,09,17

‘£5715;51,48 15257,63,65

2499,39,06 3273,67,46

1 978,40,93 1326,61,51

am TOTAL 30460,49,15 31087,01,79

T 14 — I I

--SCHEDULE ‘14 — OTHER INCOME

(000 ® Brg T T )
(000s omitted)

31.3.2004 & FHTE TH
(v T

Year ended 31.3.2004
(current year)

31.3.2003 T TATE =4
(froen =9)

Year ended 31.3.2003
(previous year)

Note: Under item II to VIH loss figures shown in brackets.

' B %. Rs. %. Rs.
Commission, exchange and brokerage 3120,72,12 - 2977,34,60
I fafe ¥ frewr w ey (Feaw)
) Profit on sale of investments (Net) 3073,45,43 1694,59,35
oL e % e = Wy (Fea)
... Profit on revaluation of investments (Net) {20,54) (5,06,42)
V. offr, wo ol o onfRdl ¥ foa W ey (Fraen)
Profit on sale of land, buildings and other assets (Net) (62,67) (27,13}
V. UEge wieEl & fama w oAy (fraa) :
Profit on sale of leased assets (Net) 18,49 i
V1. fafra degeerl ® @v (Frae) 2
Profit on exchange transactions (Net) 503,03,90 T 463,57,11
Vn.ﬁ?}wwﬁwﬁamﬁrﬁmﬁﬁrmmmﬁﬁ L
e o F v § T o 3!
Income earned by way of dividends, etc., from subsidiaries/ )
.companies and/or joint ventures abroad/in India ... 161,31,17 137,22,06
VIIL 9421 AR Lease income
(F/a). T2 Ty YTF Lease management fee e .
(@/b)  92A R Lease rental* 171,06,15 216,26,56
(M/c) T fo=Hmo Y9R Lease finance charges {1,14,66) 2,86,62
(s/d) fgeg 99” Overdue charges 2,55,95 1,56,30
IX. ¥t 3 '
Miscellaneous Income 582,10,78 252,17,02
IR TOTAL 7612,46,12 5740,26,07
* U WEW T £.54,99,87 T HH FH & 95 (o0 a9¥: $.41,42,04 TR)
*  reduced by Lease Equalisation amount of Rs.54,99,87 thousand (previous year: Rs.41,42,04 thousand)
e : WG I | VI 9% ¥ Fa TR F e Fres § R d

= 117=




S 15 — =9 fowar mT saw
SCHEDULE 15 — INTEREST EXPENDED

e e e Y

(000 1 Brg e )
'(000s omitted)

31.3.2004 Y TEE a9

31.3.2003 T WHIE 6

(= =) - (frse ad)
. Year ended 31.3.2004  Year ended 31.3.2003
¥ (current year) . (previous year)
% Rs %. Rs.

L HRREE W o
Interest on deposits 18122,90,14 20174,18,76

I e fod Fe/eia-3 Syl W s k
Interest on Reserve Bank of India/Inter-bank borrowings 160,95,59, 195,38,93

m = : -

-Others 990,31,90¢ 739,88,40
= TOTAL 19274,17,63 21109,46,09

TG 16 — T =T

SCHEDULE 16 — OPERATING EXPENSES

(000 ¥ BT & T ?)
(000s omitted)

31.3.2004 %! GATA oW,
(wre Tw)

Year ended 31.3.2004

(current year)

31.3.2003 @i HTE T§
(firzen o)

Year ended 31.3.2003
(previous year)

L wEERE B T $R ST e s
Payments to and provisions for employees
I seF, F R JoA
Rent, taxes and lighting
I GEW &R SrgA-uri
Printing and stationery
V. R ik y=r
Advertisement and publicity
V. () S & IR W s (T m%aﬁﬁaﬁ)
(a) Depreciation on bank’s property (Other than Leased Assets)
(@) TR AfEE R sEaE
(b) Depreciation on Leased Assets
VI FRY= % ¥im, 3 o =
Directors’ fees, allowances and expenses
VIL wE-TEE B R SR T (wﬁwé@uﬂmﬁmaﬂxmwﬁa%)
Auditors’ fees and expenses (including branch Auditors’)
VIIL f&fy wun
Law charges
IX. % Uegd, aR 3R e anfg
Postages, Telegrams, Telephones etc.
X. TR SR FARE
Repairs. and maintenance
XI. s
Insurance

XII. 37 =99
Other expenditure

I TOTAL

%. Rs. %. Rs.
6447,69,33‘ 5688,71,55
641,76,66- 564,74,20
146,13,34: 122,17,38
67,36,28 34,44,49
570,67,48;; 346,58,06
127,67,02 147,10,85
73,62" - 63,50
46,52,23€! 40,82,55
48,66,01 43,71,51
81,54,88. 56,81,97
97,67,47 © 68,91,80
168,86,83 151,44,37
800,00,57' 676,29,79
9245,31,72.

7942,42,02

= e —===118




o _SCHEDULE 17 _ o o o i e
T PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1"«%!1!? mm 3!'!1‘11? R e s -+~ -1 Basis of Preparatmn ,,,,,
f%ﬁﬁqfqam aaﬁpmm mmammm% a Wﬂm - The financial statements are prepared under the historical

cost convention. They conform to Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (GAAP) in India, which comprises

Téﬁﬂa_d FrarfagRt (o) ¥ en 3, Rt wiffes yo,

4ﬁmq$ / ur{éﬁq ﬁ‘_’r‘—’f ﬁ (wrwEiteTs) & ﬁ?" e, et T the statutory provisions, regulatory/Reserve Bank of India
PRETER He (STEEITETE) GRS Sran- A AmeE femfrt ol (RBI) guidelines, Accounting Standards/guidance notes
‘s & S sEm § yatem T Wﬁ?ﬁ e 2. R o watedi issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
% fore e 2§ s WA ¥ s wel %1 WM (ICAD) and the pratices prevalent in the banking industry

in India. In respect of foreign offices, statutory provisions

o T 8 ) and practices prevailing in respective countries are
2. wfim sl T dafm wraum complied with.
21 WEHR 3N s s (T W ST A B 2. Advances and Provisions thereon
T 3'{1"\5!‘1 E?W 3 S 2.1  Advances are shown net of provisions and unrealised
. ' interest on Non-Performing Assets (NPAs).
.22 e # s S R o0.25 IR HTH 2.2 A general provision of 0.25% is made on Standard
' [ WEeE e ™R . Assets on the global loan portfolio.
- ‘l-!l'{?ﬁ'ﬂ m : e : 2.3 Indian Offices

2.3.1 All advances are classified under four categories i.e.

231 - _Tm g 1 (%) ) , (W) (a) Standard Assets, (b) Sub-Standard Assets,
sE-TeE anfEn, () dfw enfRmi @R (@) wfe (c) Doubtful Assets and (d) Loss Assets.
‘ 3nfei, # arifga feman 2 2.3.2 Provisions are made on all oustanding advances net
SRS S ¥ 2-_ge,ﬁ - HFHTIT-SEE B Y- STeyET - 9t W s E—-~ - - ———- of interest-not-realized--on- NPAs -as-under: - ===~ =1
R + - = TR WaE T ¥ ‘ Sub-Standard Assets at 10 per cent
Irg-urTH e W 10 YR Doubtful Assets ;
= e (a)’ Unsecured portion at 100 per cent after netting
: , ) ‘ retainable/realisable amount of guarantee cover
(%) <& =& @ B, Pt ww W@ frme sdm w=w provided by Export Credit Guarantee
mmmWWﬁmwwﬁW/ Corporation/Credit Guarantee Trust for Small
YT o B TR e e e Industries, wherever applicable
1"00 ”ﬁ . (b) Secured portion
s Period for which the advance
(@) waga ™ . : has been considered as doubtful Percentage
_ufim ey wﬁ S ety dfeew - Uptoomeyear . . .20
Wﬁﬂi — , 20 One to three years T 30
. . . More than three years & 50
@ﬁ T = 7 80 (c} Advances where State Ghvernment guarantee
9 99 § atfus 50 remained in default for more than two quarters
o o R T R ) as on 31st March 2000 after it is invoked at
: (ﬂ? T ) T F A I F AW W 30% of the secured portion and 100% of the
FEET FT 7 31 AT 2000 H A 3 arfirer fonfeat unsecured portion.
W,W@%-?ﬁ“ﬁmﬂwmaﬁ?m% -Loss Assets at 100%.
HIT 1 100%. _ 2.3.3 Unrealised Interest recognised in the previous year
‘ m m = 100% : on advances, which became non-performing during
' the current year, is provided for.
2333 fl '% o o Fraffi T o EE T?h'ﬁ:fﬂ‘,s I 2.3.4 In case of restructuring/rescheduling of advances,
T "Wf% Fh i’l@a‘ﬁf & mwrfr T T ’ the difference between the present value of the
234 S F TEETSR ¥ SHG-FEET 5 e & future interest as per the or1g1n§1 agreement and the
present Value of the future interest as per the
A 15! B F - SR Wl % S s ___ _revised agreement is provided for at the time of
‘Wﬁﬁﬁ FF ITER Wl A % L '{(-q L IEk _ restructuring/rescheduling by way of charge to the
st & Tow ema @l TR # yaiiE e R Profit and Loss Account.

- e 1 1




i ¥ g wevE R T R

24 faew for amica

241 SO w1 SR AR & 3 weR witEwm R T R S
_wrE fBr wrted % day § fem s 2

242 g wEA w sRened o wrd fd S F o §
S ot sy o, SUF SER Wi % ew § waue fay
g .

fatem

31 e e e e % e, e
¥ fre sqerey’ ol “aftyeraer % forg 7@ 0 AR & sia
o T R

37 ol = ‘saemm % fau @ ' 3ol & afaria afiEa
oReT T R S SR G SO e/ S-S -G A
IIER FIE FH F AT N AhEEa fer e @
ffrurt o sifimrw & fafa @ g0 &7 9= 38 4t & sl
@ W 2.

= fafen 1 wftggam & fog w@ ' goit & il ariiea
forn T § T wRUSed G @ W oL

Rt el =1 T # @ Pt ww Ao % shta
& fore T R, 5% ‘freE & T svemy’ &) Al % w9
# witen fem T

32 HEH

3.2.1 Twe fafam & ofineo-arma # faafo =6 3

(%) SRR R T e e e
¥ wa f w2

(@) W 3 s ¥ gey # gaa aeleh, F ok
IY-Yoh I Tora =99 WA T €

(M) wlayfEt % fwew i Gy o Tep = (sl
wfeq safy s = sfimru-amg § wita 7 =5
= =19 % &9 § it o e 2. Rl % fwa
W Gied-s1afy s & = oa & w9 H wite

=ear % o @ T Avit % ofls oy faem,

W SR W 39y, eI w-Hed AR AeR-4ed

¥4 S wn o, | w2 aw AR w6y o A

3N oY T A T Wi fe T R, Sate 9ot

= Wihe T R T 2. R F Sd-gen H stem- et

o T fg T R,

g & fore W@ T Aoft % siata sra fafer B

- R o H o e R, < R w-ge oifRa

Tea/afeE e | s o, 9@ anfuea ofe i wfgfa

9 o erafy # gam 9§ wfeifye e T R,

oy o ToT Iuersy’ it % afta e fafae &1 g

T A1 AR g W, S oft 9 o, W e T . @ Sen-

W 39y TE o1, TE T WERH ¥ TER-eE H 0

3.1.1

3.1.2

3.1.3

3.2.2

3.2.3

24 Foreign Offices
2.4.1 Advances are classified under four categories in line
with those of Indian Offices. '
2.4.2 Provisions in respect of advances are made as per
the local law requirements or as per the norms of
" RBI, whichever are higher.

Investments

3.1 Investments are classified into 'Held for Trading,
‘Available for Sale’ and Held to Maturity' categories
as below:

3.1.1 The investments that are acquired by the Bank with
the intention to trade by taking advantage of the
short term price/interest rate movement are
classified under 'Held for Trading’. These
investments are held under this category up to 990

days from date of acquisition.

3.1.2 Investments which are intended to be held
upto maturity are classified as 'Held to

Maturity'.

3.1.3 Investments which are not classified in either of the
above categories are .classified as ‘Available
for Sale'. C

3.2 Valuation
3.2.1 'In determining acquisition cost of an investment:

(a) Brokerage/commission received on subscriptions
is deducted from the cost of securities.

(b) Brokerage, commission and stamp duty paid in
connection with acquisition of securities are
treated as revenue ‘expenses.

(c) Interest accrued up‘ to the date of acquisition
of securities (i.e. broken-period interest) is
excluded from the acquisition cost and
recognized as interest expense. Broken-period
interest received on sale of securities is
. recognized as interest income.

3.2.2 Individual scrips classified under 'Held for Trading’
category, where market quotations are available, are
valued at lower of book value or market value.
Depreciation, if any, is recognized in the Profit and
Loss Account, while ap:preciation is ignored. The
book value of the individual scrip is not changed.

3.2.3 Investments under Held to Maturity' category, are
carried at acquisition cost. Wherever the book vlaue
is higher than the face value/redemption value, the
excess amount is amortised - equally over the
remaining period of maturity of the security.

3.2.4 Investments under 'Available for Sale' category are
valued at cost or market value, whichever is lower.
Where market quotations are not available, market
value for this purpose is arrived at on the basis of
realizable price computed as per Fixed Income
Money Market and Derivatives Association of India/
Primary Dealers Association of India/RBI guidelines.
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TS ged o SR W & T ¥ ok 78 ayehdng geg

3.2.5

3.2.6

3.2.7

S TEifTEE i SfeayaRda o % % Re-Are

3 SRR T ¥, e Rebvar e fova e 3, S
w@ﬁmmmﬁ%mwm@mmm
faffa 78 e e 2.

Tores et 3R it o %1 g o SR R R

T R

mﬁwm(wﬁtmﬁﬁ)ﬁﬁﬁm
W e JEE F AN AR HE A, A S W &
srafirm T anum W T R

s G e e R 5 s

It oo < & Rean-Frst % omam e o ? st A

| R AN ST S % o an wed e S %

3.2.8

4.1

4.2

it i S (amaT) ¥ RfiE @ st e S
o1 et v o o 9aE T Eif % ey § 7@ T weer
F WA F A wg T mn R ol w9y oty aw
¥ % ¥ Rfr 1 ofn e 9

Ty SHafea

=t Ffd & orgd v =ar o fafme (emdemam),

© S gEF-E W AT H GEE R, P ASR-Ted F

H@ﬁmmw%aﬁtﬁaﬂmﬁwu
iR o T § wite fem g -

-3 %l AT I THE T e e F aem-ug
AR wE H aifrn R T} iR Fee geuafseaed
@ R B ww § e T g

5. oo onfRmEl IR geuEE

5.1

5.2

»qﬁmaﬁxwmaﬁﬁﬁmﬁmmwmé@

# forn T R _
g N B e TSR ¥ SRR SR e,

1962 ¥ IFiA Feifa T W S ewEE ¥ forg fR T

% Rt wefer 570 e o T &, el ¥ W, e
WA 33.33% SR o T EH Tt WO % SER W
s e S % Rw-fEE % orgar e R wEem
F AR o F w9 H 7 wihe R TRem # glk-

| - % A ol e R

5.4

537 W W fAu M ufted ¥ ey &) q@—mqéﬁaaaﬁx%

sFET IfeifE w5 Y
ﬁéﬂ@awﬁaﬁﬁmﬁamaﬁﬁmwww

et 3 ¥ Tr AR ¥ erER e T

6. @Wﬁ‘l‘é‘mf@mi

6.1 -

% g0 31 7 2001 F A IEY M @ WA W nfwE
% el 8 g W< 7 enfel 4w o 0 W & S
ATt | Afm F w0 H ded wE o e CagEa

4,

‘Depreciation is~ recognized scrip “wise, while
appreciation is ignored. The book value of the
~ individual scrip is not changed.

3.2.5 Treasury Bills and Commercial Papers are valued
at cost.

3.2.6 Investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures (both
in India and abroad) are valued at historical cost
after netting off provisions, if any.

3.2.7 Non-Performing Non-SLR Investments are identified
as per RBI guidelines and provision is made as per
RBI norms applicable to Non-performing Advances.

3.2.8 Investments in Regional ‘Rural Banks (RRBs) are

" ‘accounted for after netting off the provisions held
on account of losses incurred by RRBs up to the
previous accounting period resmcted to amount of
the Banks 1nve9tment upto that perlod

Rupee Derivatives

4.1  Rupee Interest Rate Swaps (IRS) pertaining to
trading position, which are outstanding as on
Balance Sheet date, are marked to market and net
appreciation/depreciation is recogmzed in the Profit
& Loss Account.

4.2 Rupee Options which are outstanding as on Balance

Sheet date, are marked to market and net
appreciation/depreciation is recogmsed in the Profit
& Loss Account,

Fixed Assets and Denreciation

5.1 Premises and other fixed assets are accounted for
on the historical cost basis.

5.2 Depreciation is provided for on written down value

method at the rates prescribed under Income Tax

- Rules, 1962, which are considered appropriate by

the. management. In respect of computers,

deprematlon is provided for on straight line method

© @ 33.33% "per annum, as per RBI guidelines.

Computer software not forming integral part of

- hardware is .depreciated fully during the year of
purchase.

5.3 In respect of leasehold premises, the lease amount
is amortised over the period of lease.

5.4 In respect of ﬁxed assets held at foreign offices,
" depreciation is provided as per the laws/norms of
the respective countries. -

Assets given on Lease

6.1 ~In respect of assets given on lease by the Bank on
or before 31st March 2001, the value of the assets
given on lease and the amounts paid as advance
for assets to be given on lease are disclosed as
"Leased Assets” and "Capital Work-in-progress

- (Leased Assets)" respectively under. fixed assets.
Depreciation is provided for on straight line method
as per the Companies Act, 1956 and the difference
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aEEl @R oot T §oiE i (TETpd sfEnh) ! % 'Y
i sraet onfErdl % St=wid <uiar T 2. qTUgd H WEuH
TR afufEm, 1956 % STER W FAR TRl & smm
R T sl i vg e (T T e
o SR 2ndHieeTE g W feen-FEE o STHER ugt manem
+a A forar O R
d% g0 1 WA 2001 B A IqF AR T R A W
SRt smiRhueT g W oRE W 19 ¥ TSR o9
Hoft T ¥ 3 o o R ¥ siwhe Wit =
™ €.
' mmwmmw,memmw
. ford 9% & fem-fde & iR w few T

6.2

6.3

el g -

71 PRy B seld § défim o @ = f W ek
Rl g e wd daael w1 Tl fed 3% & R
i ¥ orgem o & sfn & i Faftma-w W ofEf fe
™R

ot Rl HR s @ (ed) ¥ fawn-FRE % oER,
w2 qa1 | A fat diamel w1 frem swe ot #
ge-wa o 1 39 e &g el gn Fwifa ae-si
W H YR W 99 Iugad & A qegedt a3t |
TR fifen T R, grdesea af ok Wi o %
aﬁaaﬁmuﬁraﬁmmaﬁ%mﬁwﬁzﬁm
fawn ™ €

TR gE s R R W e el ¥ e s w1
A TET ) ANE N WG ST 1 WIdra v H witafda
S TR % W § i fea TR

= 73 o (SRemum) qen are | ST (THRIRY)
a9 & aEe whe/faE foredi ¥ w9 ¥ wam fem ko
frad B wew oW I B g § ahE T A
Tl wE F w H e T T Y. STERUE T THRT
S AT AR T H OG-S ST SHR R R
™ R,

e ¥ fore o 7 3ik e TR 9 ol R wrrn SRAfE-
AT T TR, e el T w ffEl A sem-
e SER 1 sifed foran ran  qen e Toagfe/ qeeE

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

B e B el 0 R4

8.1 34 U 59 F MW UR W o A frn 3. Rkw
o wmafeml & Tme H, mmﬁmmﬁ%w
F  oER R T R

8.2 mﬁm@mﬁwmmﬁw

ST % % PR age SR R R T
(%) wfey faeli wfim, stenaE st v s el ugt e,

8.

7.3

-between the annual lease charge (capital recovery)
and the depreciation is taken to Lease Equalisation
Account as per the guidelines issued by the ICAL

6.2  Assets given on lease by the Bank on or after 1st
April 2001 are accounted for as per Accounting
Standard 19 issued by the ICAL Such assets are
included under "Other’ Assets". '

6.3~ Provisions on non-performing leased assets are

made on the basis of RBI guldehnes applicable to
advances. ., . .

Foreign Currency Transactions
7.1 Items of income and expehditure in respect of foreign

offices and assets and liabilities in foreign currencies
. -are converted at the rate, of exchange prevailing at

the close of the year as.per RBI guidelines.

In accordance with the guidelines of Foreign
Exchange Dealers Association of India (FEDAI), net
outstanding forward exchange contracts in each-
currency are revalued at ithe Balance Sheet date at
the corresponding forward “rates for the residual
maturity based. on the month end rate prescribed
by FEDAI for the purpose. The difference between
the revalued amount and the contracted amount is
recognised .as profit or loss as the case may be.

7.2

Interest received and paid as well as accruals on
Balance Sheet date in different currencies on Cross
Currency Interest Rate Swaps are converted into
Indian Rupees and routed through the interest
account.

7.4 ° Interest Rate Swaps (IRSs) and Forward Rate
Agreements (FRAs) have been used as hedging
instruments. The notienal principal of these

instruments are recorded as off Balance Sheet items.

Interest income and expense on IRSs and FRAs are

accounted for on accrual basis.

Derivative transactions sﬁch as IRSs, Options and
Currency Swaps undertaken for trading and
outstanding as on Balance Sheet date are marked
to market and mnet appreciation/depreciation is
recognised in the income account.

7.5

Revenue and Expense Recognition
8.1 Income and expenditure are accounted for on
i
accrual basis. In case of Foreign Offices, income is

recognised as per the local laws of the countries.

8.2 The following items of income are recognised on
realisation basis, owing to 51gn1ﬁcant uncertainty in
_ collection thereof:
{a)

Interest and lease income on non-performing
advances, including overdue bills.

(b) Interest on non-performing investments.

8.3 The following items of income are recogmsed on

realization basis:

=122 , =




9,

10.

11.

(@) e fafel wosar,
8.3 o Frafia 7 & Fruftn Sl SR R e T R

(%) T (STefiE, A TR SR S S W

FivA F S g o gEE.
(@) fafmi w e .
- () e g AR e/ R iR 3 w9 ¥
T Tafed | oML
(7) T =) omren ol W s oiR el w erfia
S — , _

it e

01 ufys fify dem & ogEm wfrsm fify & fm <@
YA WEHET YR R @Y W@ o ww F wita feg
m &,

92 =R, Y o s TEEHW (I fmey ¥ w9
wfesmifia 2) 1 Frufor o 3 s & frg o et gee
F amuR W fF T % SR afeeie ofe % fo e @
=y @ & Wit 0 weaur e R

i T

HF-F =T | FdAA (- fUfEm, 1961 % gER i

ety ¥ fre 3= = o) ol R R FuR W R F 5w o
(Sh 39 arafy F S o IR F-drg I F " g S
FH-UE F A ) w1 Tl yREE T w9 F
AN T 22 F STIAR G T R, ST R R W S
T iR degedt smufia F-gifae @ snfrdl 1 F F O =
H ITEAT F6F i R T @ S ger-ua w0 fafy W afuem
T fife o wfw w9 § fuife .

sTeafi| T oA (Hisw Yottt A ¥ gEiE)
T e F% ¥ Rw-Fel % oran srue- s 9 Wit
YA Ao o] FW F TomEEs I a9 R & gfeia
Tl 9 RefiE Tste S W T B, T ufehe 5 o &%
ety 7% W w9 X R S R

10.

11.

amortised equally dver a period of 5 years. "

(a) Commission (other than commission* on -
deferred payment guarantees and government
transactions), exchange and brokerage.

- (b) Dividend on- investments.

(¢) Income on Rupee Derivatives designated as
"Other than hedging". '

(d) Interest on appication money on investments
and overdue interest on investments.

Staff Benefits

91 ~ Contributions payable to Provident Fund in terms

of the provident fund scheme are charged to Profit
and Loss Account on accrual basis.

9.2  Liability for gratuity, pension and leave encashment
(which are defined benefits} is determined on the
basis of actuarial valuations carried out at the year
end and the incremental liability is provided for by
charging to the Profit and Loss Account.

Deferred Tax

Income-tax expense comprises current tax {amount of tax
for the period determined in accordance with the Income
Tax Act, 1961) and deferred tax charge or credit (reflecting
the tax effects of timing differences between accounting
income and taxable income for the period) determined in
accordance with Accounting Standard 22 of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. The deferred tax charge or
credit and the corresponding deferred tax liabilities or assets
are recognised using the tax rates that have been enacted
or substantially enacted by the Balance Sheet date.

Deferred Revenue Expenditure (related to Voluntary
Retirement Scheme}

In accordance with the guidelines of RBI, ex-gratia and
incremental liability in respect of gratuity and pension
arising on implementation of Voluntary Retirement
Scheme, is treated as Deferred Revenue Expenditure to be

S T T T T LT T T LTI LT T s lSims  TL S U T T T 123 ST LTI I T T T T I T T e T L T T I LT T I T T
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wan feraforat .

1.

el g7 Al A w % e H I B F gely ¥ o, WRA e SR
TRA ¥ 3@ I 11 F T A B gg s s fed S %
iy, & & ofod &, 7 fiw o | @ &

7§ 2000-2001 ¥ sFraifan wfogs Jaa Ao (6 FR @) % w0 38 7 F A
354.51 T TN ! U (et o 354.51 HUT 90), F99 seafim Tora =44 WA
T o, T & 9 3 Wity T 3. 354.2 F0E 0T (Rrow 7 709.03 TS Tow)
# smitefim v wret e % Ro-FE & orqEn o o wihfim & o
wRelr feordd e 3 fran-Frel & e, s oK fafri % sma-Prefroysmerieoy
fE-Frfiame | Hefid S@H B/ AREE F1 31 9 2004 ¥ 180 A ¥ wamg g0 7
AR R FER R R

T4 2003-2004 T AR ¥ R W o 71 @ B TRafE e O e
¥ WA 3Gd T ¥ IR W A #) wie B oee-an o 3§ fm v ¥, st
T o 39 79 o g 21 & o Q wd 3 vTa oired o0 & amR W o ¥ #t
wﬁa;{é@ﬁmwquﬁaﬁa%wﬁmﬂﬁwwﬁﬂmega.mmm
afi 2.
(%) 41999-2000 FEH, I3 31 HUR-T1 1 4ot g 3 o et 935,87 38 70T
© % 10.80% W = 1 o R A w0 @ 3a Pl v g swie, T
= R AR de S Ry Rl & o 9 1,00,000 FUF SR TE A ALY
g a1 # fifr § 63 T % v wAEET WARRE § 31 U 2004 F =
i€l 1 SifeRd TEA 935,87 FUE BT (31 T 2003 F 935,87 B TQ) 2.
9 2000-2001 % S % 3 Sfee Fieft wene 570 sy o =T AR g
2500.00 Fg TIT % T T D 7% 1 SifF9 T 10,00,000 T &1, T
ed R FETER S fR
(i) Wfd 3 11.55% it =1 fea oUW 8 arde #i iy Y 63 7@ TR
TIES W Wied 824.80 TG T,

(i) R 37 11.90% =N F From ot W ol areiz ) fafr & 87 = A
RS WS 1675.20 U TIC, 31 W 2004 F HE T SUEH T
1 3 09 2,500 UG FIL F (31 U 2003 F 2,500 T TW),

() = 2000-2001 % A T § 5,113 fera TV 1 108 T F 3 T TR W
WRRT AW T W 6.5% AfiE 3 Frae R frn o, 31 T 2004 F
T W F U 5,113 T 30 (27,33 %iE T F TAgA) . (31 9

2003 F 5.113 fuferas 90, 5. 26.46 IS T F THA).

st R # 3 fegn-PEH & e wdE
T 31 TT 2004 F1 S it VAR S 13.53% (31 T, 2003 F 13.50%)

. T8 SR 1 Ufwe Wi Tt S gro i -Gk A % amm w e
T 3, frad frefefe Wi &

(@

~—

31 Wrd 2004 31 W= 2003
i | G 8.34% 8.81%
o 1 get 5.19% 4.69%

ﬁ:ﬁi&?m e 2004 R Frow semver o, frew ofml @ 3.48%
(31 wrd 2003 1 4.50%) ®.

o @ A e % e i § erln wftife fIvEy o il w' W
T IFAT-T R
(& Fg )

. . 2003-2004 2002-2003
) AR & TR (S W) (59 T

if % 697.72 g wC winw ) 1566.06  2148.88*
) IER * o yevR (amafm w) 276.28 13.26
(5
M) F o yEee 45.42 0.36
) oEvER TR ¥ fou fen e wevm @ Ofa (=)
(WaH % gieEa ofid) 3693.53 259243
¥) i} 8 = g § oA afRd
T AR FEH 4912 . 69.22
F) i) 90 T ¥ vwm mw e F
fom T afeEl W ed weNm — 135.45
=) e # T e i e Temem 496.69 392.98
¥) faiw R snied & ffae § g0 1= 11.21 26.58
(5m)
W) I (VT e ER aE-Ee % R
400 FIZ T F 7Y MW Wi &) 399.97 708.76
(M)
am 5872.46  4670.40

SCHEDULE 18
NOTES TO ACCOUNTS:

1.

In respect of Foreign Exchange transactions and their year-end translation,
the Bank is consistently following FEDAI/RBI guidelines, which are
mandatory, instead of the Accounting Standard 11 of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. .
During the year an amount of Rs.354.51 Crores (Previous year Rs. 354.51
Crores) has been charged to revenue on account of Voluntary Retirement
Scheme (VRS) implemented during the year 2000-2001, which was treated
as deferred revenue expenditure. Unamortized amount of Rs.354.52 Crores
{Previous year Rs. 708.03 Crores) is to be amortized next year in accordance
with RBI guidelines. :
In accordance with RBI guidelines, the delinquency norms for income
recognition/provisioning/asset classification for advances and investments
have been considered at 90 days effective from 31st March 2004 instead
of at 180 days. : ’
Effective from year 2003-2004, profit or loss on sale of investments has
been accounted for transaction-wise on the settlement date, based on actual
sales value and weighted average cost of purchases, whereas in the
prévious year, it was accounted for at the year end, based on the weighted
average price for the whole year for both purchases and sales. As a result
of this change, profit for the year is higher by Rs. 693.70 Crores.

(a) During 1999-2000, the Bank issued by way of private placement,

unsecured, subordinated bonds of the face value of Rs.1,00,000/- each

for cash at par at a fixed rate of 10.80% p.a., payable semi annually,

for an aggregate amount of Rs.935.87-Crores to augment its Tier II

capital. The bonds are redeemable at par at the end of 63 months

from the date of allotment. The face value of bonds outstanding
as at 31st March 2004 is Rs.935.87 Crores (Rs.935.87 Crores as at
31st March 2003}, :

During 2000-2001, the Bank issued by way of structured private

placement, unsecured, subordinated bonds of the face value of

Rs.10,00,000/- each for cash at par for an aggregate amount of

Rs.2500.00 Crores, as under: '

(1) Rs.824.80 Crores at a fixed rate of 11.55% p.a. payable annually, and
redeemable at par at the end of 63 months irom the date of allotment.

(ii) Rs.1675.20 Crores at a fixed rate of 11.80% p.a. payable annually,
and redeemable at par at the ‘end of 87 montﬁs from the date
of -allotment, The face value of the above bonds outstanding as
at 31st March 2004 is Rs.2500.00 Crores (Rs.2500.00 Crores as at
31st March 2003).

(c) During 2000-2001, the Bank raised unsecured, subordinated loan
amounting to Euro 5.113 milllion, at a fixed rate of 6.5% p.a.
redeemeble at par at the end of 108 months. The loan amount
outstanding as at 31st March 2004 is Euro 5.113 million (Rupee
equivalent 27.33 Crores). (Euro 5.113 million as at 31st March 2003,
Rupee equivalent 26.46 Crores). ’

®

-

DISCLOSURES AS PER RBI GUIDELINES

6.

The Capital Adequacy Ratio of the Bank is 13.53% as at 31st March 2004
(13.50% as at 31st March 2003). The ratio, arrived at on the basis of
guidelines/directives issued by the RBI, comprises:

31st March 2004 31st March 2003
Tier I Capital 8.34% 8.81%
Tier I Capital 5.19% 4.69%

"Net NPAs to Net Advances as at 31st'March 2004 is 3.48% (4.50% as

at 31st March 2003).

Break-up of the item “Provisions and Contingencies” included under the
head “Expenditure” in the Profit and Loss Account:

(Rs.in Crores)

2003-2004 2002-2003
a) Provision for Income Tax (current tax)
. (Including Rs.697.72 Crores for earlier years*) 1566.06 2148.88*
b) Provision for Income Tax (deferred, tax) 276.28 13.26
(Credit)
c) Provision for other taxes 45.42 0.36
‘ (Credit)
d} Amount of provision made against-NPAs
(including write back of provision). 3693.53 2592.43
e)i) General provision on Standard Assets ,
in the global loan portfolio 49.12 69.22
e)ii) Ad-hoc provision on Standard Assets for
90 days delinquency norms ‘ — 135.45
f) Depreciation in the value of
Investments in India 496.69 392.98
g) Depreciation in the value of .
Investments in Foreign Offices 11.21 26.58
(Credit)
h) Others {Net of write backs and including
adhoc provision of Rs. 400 crores towards
wage revision) 399.97 708.76
(Credit)
4670.40

Total ) 5872.46




2003-2004 2002-2003 9.  Business Ratios:
. . . 2003-2004 2002-2003
) wride e F g d e s = e 7.99% 9,10% —_—
. . . i) Interest income as a percentage to
if) wreie el & e ¥ sem e w v 1.99% 1.68% Working Funds 7.99%  9.10%
ii} Non-Interest income as a percentage to
iii} wdshe Bl % gem 3 JNER 9y W v 2.50% 2.27% Working Funds P 8 1.99% 1.68%
T : iii) Operating Profit as a percentage to Working Funds 2.50% 2.27%
) § o 0.84% 0.86% iv) Return on Assets 0.94% 0.86%
| 9fd S wewE (SN @ aim) (5. @ ¥) 21056 10077 v) Business (Deposits and Advances) per employee
' - (Rs. in Thousand) 21056 19077
uﬁl FaTd @9 (5. T H) 176.61 147.83 vi) Profit per employee (Rs. in Thousand) 176.61 147.83
0. ®) 31 v, 2004 F fRuf % mﬁmww (évﬁuﬂ'a-m)
a) Maturity Pattern as on 31st March 2004 (Domiestic Operations): (%, g #)
' {(Rs. in Crores)
e | 1528 79 (20 fe7 S 3 wm | 3w € R 6w § o |1 A R | i el Ty af e Am o
o - o g 6 w9 -\ g 12 0 7% | Feg 3 T o | Fegs ) .
T T T T e days | T U15-28 days {29 days | Over3 months {Over 6-months| -Over- 1-year— Over-3 years|- 0vér'5‘year5 — -Total— |-
A | T 173 months. . | to 6 months | 16712 mchths | to 3 years | _ to 5 years :
el ’
. e . .
Loans and Advances 35738.46 10370.44 11115.60 1916.74 .o373221 31465.68 12423.86 20703.47 127466.46
(Rupqe _denqmigated] _‘(27572.24) »(9223.96) ] {11514.68) (2317.33) '(3541.49) (28934.74) (11381.49) (15928.27) | (110414.20)
fafrme afryferd '
(T atiet ) S ‘ . » ,
Investment sepurities 4260.95 873.41 10881.34 4782,67 1588.66 23834.62 27455.04 108007.67 181684.36
{Rupee denominated) (11105.44) (367.12) {6304.97) (7736.94) (7747.65) (26229.51) (31260.89) (77133.09) (167885.61)
= -
(FICH o7 ) )
Deposits 33877.65 1612.34 11460.49 7459.29 24101.59 96965.09 60745.40 59167.92 295389.77
(Rupee denominated) (30895.07) (22p4.69) (5625.64) (6279.51) (37455.55) {154514.15) (29492.30) {9234.87) | (275701.78)
IuR AR
(FICH 37 )
Borrowings 346.12 2.80 55.09 181.96 172,67 366.32 208.07 32.28 1365.32
.. _|(Rupee denominated)| =) | (=} (2e76) | (24031) | (245.20) (683.49) {258.64) (114.44) | (1571.84)
T |
Foreign currency 16460.77 855.45 | 515384 [T 2870217 T 433446 | 777 73020.8371 7 7201741777 7328.28 ) °35050:25~
assets N (14146.64) (1679.12) [5759.61] (6104.89) (3598.15) (1798.49) (1108.50) (426.70) (34622.10)
fadett m
Foreign currency 7462.66 763.66 2928.48 3507.21 4066.70 6605.13 2.48 0.05 25336.37
liabilities (6970.16) (875.53) (2684.74) {2396.27) (3587.47) (5630.06) (3.86) (0.08) (22148.15)
(P § Ry T A 31 T 2003 FE) .
Wm%wﬁWﬁaﬁ%%ﬁmﬁﬁ%mw@gﬁ%mmm%qw%ﬁ%émuﬂa@r%ﬁwﬁww%)
(Figures in brackets pertain to 31st March 2003)
(In compiling the above data, certain assumpnons ‘s per’ RBI guldelmes and estimates have been made and relied upon by Auditors) -
@) 31 W, 2004 F Y F arEn vfiveam @ wwe (few Rm st @ e
(3. w5 §)

b) Maturity Pattern as on 31st March 2004 (Operations of Foreign Offices): (Rs. in Grores)

17 &7 814’ | 1528 FA 29 fH @ 3 T ¥ 6 W § 1989 39y
. . 379 T 3T @ A @ s @ s @ 5 a% ¥ aftw Im
_ JoemmEs | 1@ 3 ad & 5 = T !
1-7 days 8-14 days | 15-28 days 29 days and Gver'3 | "Over 6 months | Over 1 year | Over 3 years | Over 5 years Total
' upto months and _and upto and upto and upto
i 3 months | upto 6 months{- -  year 3 years 5 years
et ,
Assets 10266.26 624.06 2845.35 4581.28 5781.07 . 1242.60 2861.36 3798.61 2298.73 34299.32
(8641.81) (618.29) (3114.59) (2879.47) (4647.35) (1606.69) (3126.12) (2412.03) (3397.36) (30443.71)
Liabilities 9716.40 1640.42 2925.64 7917.33 3864.20 973.21 2095.72 965.30 4201.10 34299.32
(9730.17) (647.04) (3180.48) (5118.96}) (3949.39) (1613.68) (869.89) {707.95) {4626.15) {30443.71)

(Frow § KU T wFS 31 79 2003 F §) ,
(Figures in brackets pertain to 31st March 2003)




) BRIt &5 H HOTETA

(%. s #)
Ty oferer ot Fie
31 9 2004 31 W 2003 31 W 2004 31 7 2003
T TR & 25.58 56.71 150 0.43
(¥l = TR
RES FH)
R W & 155.07 273.69 106.55 75.60
(z. wg ¥)
w) Wi =T 3 YR S 31.03.2004 31.03.2003
v g = R
F) AAVERT MG T AR -I8E (7. w0g U)
2003-2004 2002-2003
7§ % R g ST e 13506.07 15485.85
W« ad & e i 5721.34 4688.57
Tt . T % SR A (397357 HIS T
%! ufefaa ¥ 9RA)
(B =8 3,541,18 =g T9C ) 6560.20 6668.35
ol & o ¥ gw s sfed 12667.21 13506.07
a9 ¥ o7 § fraw sEmwd sttt 5441,73 6183.00
© =) Pt # fafram ol (% =z )
31 W 2004 31 T 2003
i) St ot A fafam 1204.06 1022.82
if) aftEdvie o o fed=d o fftm 25.00 25.00
iii) T T gew Wl W PR 661.64 288.80
' ) 7 2003-2004 F T TN F et wOT anfivt (% Fhe ¥)
TR T FROE T im
il Rk
I F A F
Ecic kLI
THE ¥ e T 412,38 1930.05°  2342.43
wf&E = iy (1061.39) (577.00) {1638.39)
ii) QIR & A s 40.97 130.67 171.64
afer =) ofe (118.79) (30.16)  (208.95)
ii) Ffir—n F i iy 19.79 45.12- 64.91
sl # gt (134.97) (44.77)  (179.74)
3m 47314 210584  2578.98
(1315.15)  (711.93) (2027.08)

| (wrew § Rl T s 31 W 2008 F €)

=) 1) wifafe e SR (A TAERR) Rt 9 it d -

h) i) Issuer composition of Non-SLR investments :

(c} Lending to sensitive sectors:

(Rs, in Crores}

Domestic Operatlons Foreign Offices
31stMarch 31stMarch 31st March 31st March
2004 2003 2004 2003
Capital Market Sector 25.58 '56.71 1.50 0.43
(Total advances against
security/collateral of
shares) i )
Real Estate Sector 15507 ° 27368 106.55 75.60
(Rs. in Crores)
[d) Total finance extended to stockbrokers 31.03.2004 31.03.2003
for Margin Trading: NIL NIL
{e) Movements in NPAs: . i (Rs. in Crores)
2003-2004 2002-2003
Gross NPAs “as at the beginning of the year 13506.07  15485.85
Add: Additions during the year 5721.34  4688.57
Less: Reductions during the year
(including write off of Rs. 3973 57 Crores) 6560.20 6668.35
{Rs. 3541.18 Crores in the prevmus year)
Gross NPAs as at the end of the year 12667.21  13506.07
Net NPAs as at the end of the year 5441.73  6183.00
() Investments in Shares, etc.: R S
. . {Rs. in Crores)
31st March 31st March
2004 2003
(i) Investments in equity shares 1204.06 1022.82
(ii) Investments in convertible
bonds & debentures 25.00 25.00
(iii) Units of equity oriented mutual funds 661.64 288.80

(g) Loan Assets subjected to. restructuring during

Other than
under - Corporate

Debt ‘Restructu-

nng Scheme

(i} Amount of Standard Assets . 412.38
subjected to. restructuring . (1061.39)

{ii] Amount of Sub-standard 40,97

Assets subjected to restructuring , (118.79)
(i) Amount of Doubtful Assets 18.79
subjected to restructuring (134.97)
Total 47314

’ '(1315.15)

(Figures in brackets pertain to 31st March, 2003)

the year 2003-04:

{Rs. in Crore)
Under Total
Corporate
Deht
cturing
Scheme
1930.05 234243
(577.00) (1638.39)
130.87 171.64
(90.16) (208.95)
45.12 64.91
(44.77) (179.74)
2105.84 257898
(711.93) (2027.08)

(3. Fg )

(Rs. in Crores)

i Frtoat T TRIZ QI ‘R gt & &= T e Al ‘ g
EIRoE | TieafEl A fCaRiEl yfegfeEt % Eoliie g
No. [ssuer Amount Extent of private Extent of 'below investment Extent of ‘unrated' Extent of ‘unlisted’
placement grade' Securities Securities Securities
(1) @ @ @ @® ® )
1| wdsfw &% % s
PsUs 9717.33 2697.56 - 641335 9190.03
r2 | T deE :
Fis 4908.83 1474.79 299442 4386.33
3| ¥ ) ‘
Banks 535.54 445.00 155.54 465.54
4 | freft wrde
Private corporates 2383.03 1681.91 1461.84 2131.39
-5 | STEPEATR SO - -
_Subsidiaries/Joint ventures 1575.70
6 a4 .
Others 1245.76 261.18 768,67 1235.68
7. | TogR % fo @ T ey
Provision held towards depreciation (614.40) XXX Pl XXX XXX
am
Total 19751.78 6560.44 11793.82 17408.95
| sl —— T T T T T/ T Pyt T2 LTI T T T =




i) s s St s (9 T fafue

ii} Non-performing Non-SLR investments’

v ;@ ' ) Amount
. Feao (. Tz H) Particulars (Rs. in Crores)
31.3.2004 31.3.2004
. . ening Balance 123.57
s 39 , 123,57 Aﬁdmons during the year 129.06
i % 99w -129.06 Reduction during the above period 50.86
agfy Q; CiiEt aﬂ Closing Balanceg 201.77
3 50.86 .
T w 30177 Total Provisions held 163.25
T T T 163.25 (i) Movement of provisions held towards NPAs and depreciation on
¥ ) investments:
(y)mwﬁmaﬁrﬁﬁaﬁﬁmgm%uﬁmmm mﬂ (Bs. in Crores)
s afEd 0 e w Provisions for Provision for
¥ fo wAHT ?ﬁg NPAs (excluding depreciation
’ r@ ﬁ . pIOVlSlODS on on
B l?f gt R ) fore Standard Assets) investments -
2003-04 2002 03) 3003- 045 2002-03 2003-04  2002-03 2003-04 2002-03
. o 0 Opening Balance 6332.08 711874 1204.62 851.53
i 9w 6332.08°" 7118.74 _ 120462 85153 ADD : Provisi do during fhe : . ¥
-q'é T, S : sions made during the
f‘“ T : : (including foati ion of
_“(900 A - year (including floating provision o
: W - ' Rs.990.00 Crores) (Rs. 550.00 Crores . :
bRkl : , in previous year} 382408 295868 1017.88  486.71
{fred =d 550.00 TS U 3824.08 - 2956.68 1017.88 48671 LESS : Write off, write back of »
© W : S, SR T excess provisions 374377 374534 52314 133.62
1 i . 3743.77 374534 52314 13362 Closing Balance 641239 633208 1699.35 120462
g . 6412. 39 ) 6332 08 1599 36 1204.62 . -
() faeh gz W—ﬂﬁﬁﬂ () Foreign Currency Interest Rate Swaps: )
EF ﬁ 1) Notmnal Principal amount of Interest Rate Swaps entered into with
) B ¥ % w &TI?I-R # kS m © aﬁ #" o 7 other banks ang outstanding at the year-end are as under:

ofy FeEr &

31-03-2004  31-03-2003
T Sten Tafmm . (fafem o) 2490.14 2497.56
(VU % wg # . ' 11135.88 11860.44
W fafy (ke §) ’ " 317.52 23.25
(WIEeE B, W ¥) 2472.40 174.42
. fafmm (e ). 37.25 -
(T & W §) *198.22 —_
¥ fafrr (fefera ) 349.92 -
(Fga & Fg ) 147:09

ii) foelt om0 e (3) amr&ia?rm%fmm-aﬁﬁﬁﬁmmm%

iii )y ¥mea maﬁmm%mw TRA. % AT AR smr | 2,
iv) fifrma ¥y smeves Tuis
v) aé%%mm-aﬁﬁw%ﬂ%mﬁm—@f@wwmﬁmiﬁgw

) ﬁﬁwmm—a%ﬂ%ﬁa (¥ B- éﬂ) :
(% FE #)
Foerw T
1, T o e AR Coal
Fa g o (fgd-an) :
m)glﬁz#fé?mwmw@ﬁé . 25.00
)
R
2. fofm som sare-gr 09T 9 31 99 2004 B IEE
e 7w T (fFe-an)
%) _
ki gl bl
m
3 %ﬁmmma@ﬂ%ﬁaﬁmsﬁz“mm
» ‘aﬁa@a%m (fmaaﬁ) o
a)@ =
m
4. ﬁﬁmwm—atﬁéﬁammaﬁt “mﬁmm
T fFd R g (fen-ar)
F)
/)Y w
)
(®) - far: ﬁﬁéﬂh%m(mﬁaﬁéﬁ%maﬂﬁﬁqmgﬁm (e
Ed sm'raT) Frefrem %
: % g #)
aﬁ%a“m'—r a’é%am aﬁ%ﬁméﬁﬁ 31032004
o G ofvmem e dved s W fed
P SR Ww R Mw;m ‘UﬁT - ‘
O & sl fol - 9748 - 115641 869 “0.00
= whngEt (0.00) (0.00} {0.00) (0.00)
fi % a1 44.73. 1316.53. ..... 18.89 69838
i T e {0.00) (2667.66) (7.50} (2667.66)
(w7 ¥ ﬁw # fu m ¥)

0

SR -

31-03-2004 31-03-2003
USS$ Swaps (in Million) 2480.14 2497.56
(Equivalent Rs. Crores] 11135.88 11860.44
GBP Swaps (in Million) 317.52 23.25
{Equivalent Rs. Crores} 247240 174,42
Eure Swaps (in Million) 37.25 —
(Equivalent Rs. Crores) 198.22 —
Yen Swaps {in Million) 349.92 -
{Equivalent Rs. Crorss) 147.09 —_

{ii) Interest Rate Swaps are undertaken to hedge FCNR (B) Deposits.
(iii} All the Interest Rate Swaps undertaken were on the basis of Receive
fixed Pay floating.

{iv) Collateral required upon entering the Swap is nil.
{(v) There is no concentration of credit risk arising from the Interest
Rate Swaps undertaken during the year.

1] Exchange Trade Interest Rate Derivatives (Rupee Transaction)

{Rs. Crores)
Particulares Amount
1. Notional principal amount of exchange traded interest rate
derivatives undertaken during the year (instrument-wise)

a% 91 days 'Ik'easu:y Bill Futures 25.00

-

2. Notional principal amount of exchange traded interest rate
derivatives outstanding as on 31st March 2004 (instrument-wise} -
a)
b).NIL
o)

3. Notional principal “amount of exchan§e traded interest rate o
derivatives outstanding and not "highly effective” (instrument-wise)
a)
b) NIL
c}

4. Mark-to-market value of exchange traded interest rate: - -
derivatives outstanding and not "highly effective” (instrument-wise]

b)) NIL NIL
c)

NI

Repos: The particulars of Repo transactions [other than Liquidity Adjustment
Famhty (LAF) with RBI] are as under:
(Rs. in .Crores}

Minimum Maximurm Daily average As on
outstanding outstanding - - outstanding  31st March- -
during the year - during the year during the year. 2004 .
. _Securmes sold 97.48 1156.41 8.69 0.00
- under Repos " {0.00) (0.00) {0,000 (6.00)
Securities purchased 44,73 1316.53 18.89 .. 698.38
under Repos (0.00) (2667.66) (7.50) (2667.66)

(Previous year's figures are given in brackets)
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(m) Risk Category-wise Country Exposure: i

11,

Bank’s net funded exposure for the year ended 31.3.2004 in respect of the

. foreign exchange transactions with each country is below 2% of the total

assets of the Bank, hence no provision and disclosure is required as per RBI

_ Circular DBOD.BP.BC.71/21.04.103/2002-03 dated 19.2.2003.

Details of financial assets sold during the year to Assets Reconstruction
Company (ARCIL):
a)  No. of accounts - 76 '
b)  Aggregate value (net of provisions) of accouats sold
to SC/RC - 91.08 Crores.
¢)  Aggregate consideration -162.33 Crores

d)  Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts

transferred in earlier years - N.A.

e]' Aggregate gain/loss over net book value - 71.25 Crores

DISCLOSURES AS PER ACCOUNTING STANDARDS:

12,

1. QEiERRAHT (i) Frad & dne i 9 7 e st e st
F) W S Ee - 76
|)  TEEyEIE ) R T w9 5E I (TEEH SEER) - 91.08 FE T
M) A YR - 162,33 HIS BT
o) e 99 3 siofe o & ey § ey T ke i - an @
) o oifd qea A s 30 awal - 71.25 FE T9¢
T W o SR W
12, - GEAR gEA '
12.1 g sfufia
Frerfafas wei 1 s fren e @
wafe (UM T2) dfém wfEmm
T TEEH
fedrms (e @) e viaE
forseht uftarem

12.2 R-WET sl o wE-Faim
A e Ty daeE-TEn mwﬁuwﬁamasﬁrm
TREer g3 3 iy ot 2. T e 9§ eun A v SR
oy S vftereT g F Sl @ e qen s & e #
T IS & SR R A I R,

12.3 F-FA

(%) Il F A g § By R S @Y i ofeer d@e s

T I wE  gefE ¥, aaTen smfes Ry Ty,

(@) T ey T T 9 o TOF B % wii #) vendn g6y e
=1 ¥ ST F AR W anefe R .

124 WEAW GIT & awh YT DISCLOSURES UNDER SEGMENT REPORTING:

M &

SEGMENTAL REPORTING:
12.1 Segment Idenuﬁcanon‘
The following segments have been identified:

Primary (Business Segment) t Banking Operations
’Ireasury Operations
» - Domestic Operations

‘ Forelg'n Dperanons

12,2 Pricing of Inter-segmental transfers:

The Bankmg Operations segment is the primary resource mobilising
unit. The Treasury Operations segment is a recipient of funds from
Banking Operations segment. The: cost of funds lent to.treasury is
computed at the cost of deposits of Banking Operations-segment plus
operating expenses incurred for mobilising deposits.

'

Secondary (Geographical Segment)

12.3 Allocation of Expenses:

(a) Expenses incurred at Corporate Centre establlshment directly
attributable either to Banking:Operations segment or to Treasury
Operations segment are allocated accordingly.

(b} Expenses not directly attributable are allocated on the hasis of
ratio of number of employees in each of the segments/ratio of
directly attributable expenses.

PART A PRIMARY SEGMENT: _ ) . (RS.(?I.I ?rfre?)

Business Segments Banking Operations Treasury Operations Eliminations ! Total

Fram amad | few Bkl froem T g 94 feemad | amad frear
Particulars Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year ‘ Current Year | Previous Year
Revenue § 31335.29 31250.98 21989.43 21425.89 15413.10 15986.81 o 37911.62 - 36690.06
Results $ 1835.71 2639.31 3815.62 2880.34 — 5651.33 5519.65
e =/ :

- Unallocated Expenses $ 725,97 252.14
IR T T
Operating Profit §. 4925.36 5267.51
G W - )

. Income Taxes $ 1244.36 2162.51

| IR T
Extraordinary Profit/Loss §
fieet W '
Net Profit $ 3681.00 3105.00
A =T
OTHER INFORMATION#
Segment Assets 371365.06 346624.29 203745.14 192371.83- (171362.96) (181949.26) 403748.24 357046.86
ST Snfea!
Unallocated Assets 4067.04 18829.64
o1 enfdl

Total Assets , 407815.28 375876.50
pr o
Segment Liabilities 353095.50 331062.18 201784.76 189356.13 (167296.26} (161744.86) 387584.00 358673.45
I T ’
Unallocated Liabilities —
T 7 . -
Total Liabilities ‘387584.00 | . 358673.45
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ymE. - himwwe R o
PART B : SECONDARY SEGMENT: = oL
Co (5. ®0g )
~{Rs. in Crores)-
difer @5 o el TRawT kil
Geographical Segments Domestic Operations ~ Foreign Operations Total
T | fewwd =] T fromm @i g = firgen o
Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year
Revenue $ 36861.10 35484.31 1050.52 1205.75 37911.62 36690.06
) _Assets # 384033.65 353362.32 23781.63 22514.18 407815.28 375876.50 J
$ : WA : T4 wF o i ol
$ : TOTAL FOR THE YEAR - # : BALANCES AT THE END OF THE YEAR
13.  Waftm qar wereieor : 13. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES:
% ¥% & GefiE ay A. Bank's Related Parties:
) ayﬁérmaqqﬁw ‘ a) DOMESTIC BANKING SUBSIDIARIES
w2 §F 3w fF i R State Bank of Bikaner & Jalpur
w2 d% offF dER State Bank of Hyderabad
2z ¥ sitw #R State Bank of Indore
= ¥% o ﬁ‘f State Bank of Mysore
T e e State Bank of Patiala
22 ¥ o e State Bank of Saurashtra
Bz ¥= siF 5 ‘State Bank ‘of Travancore
. SBI Commercial & International Bank Ltd.
w @ vk TR te T i A
o DOMESTIC NON-BANKING SUBSIDIARIES
it fr-dfeim

Tereroft arepifirat

w & R e () A
we % oW dew (FAE)
we 9% o e (SRt
TR 5 ™

) g TN ;

W T8 e i WfRE WL R
Tl T T e

" e g S0 (e fa - s - )

"méwﬁmmﬁaﬁzwﬁmmﬁ

“'mﬁmmm

. R i T &

géa@gasﬂamtﬁwéa

Fat o dF

E%-wmmm%a;‘

T T e ’
T atr % ’
TR & T §%

EauiEcocd cil-c

g e weT ¥

- F §7 TR @ @

FERT T S

FeuTe TH S
Y Tesd W o

b)

]

SBI Factors & Commercial Services Pvt. Ltd.
SBI Funds Management Private Limited

SBI Capital Markets Limited

Discount & Finance House of India Limited

FOREIGN SUBSIDIARIES

SBI International (Mauritius) Ltd.
State Bank of India (Canada)
State Bank of India (California}

Inmb Bank Ltd.

JOINT VENTURES:
SBI Cards & Payments Services Pvt. Ltd.
SBI Life Insurance Company Limited

" "Credit ‘Informaticn Buréad (india) Ltd. "~~~ — —--
GE ‘Capitdl Businéds Profess Management Services Prlvate Lmnted — -

Comtnercial Bank of India LLC

 ASSOCIATES:

Alaknanda Gramin Bank

Arunachal Pradesh Rural Bank

Bastar Kshetriya Gramin Bank

Basti Gramin Bank

Bikaner Kshetriya Gramin Bank
Bilaspur Raipur Kshetriya Gramin Bank
Bolangir Anchalik Gramya Bank
Bundelkhand Kshetriya Gramin Bank
Cauvery Grameena Bank
Damoh-Panna-Sagar Kshetriya Gramin Bank
Ellaquai Dehati Bank

Ganga Yamuna Gramin Bank

Golconda Grameena Bank

Gorakhpur Keshetriya Gramin Bank
Jamnagar Rajkot Gramin Bank
Junagadh Amreli Gramin Bank

Ka Bank Nongkyndong Ri Khasi Jaintia
Kakathiya Grameena Bank

Kalzhandi Anchalika Gramya Bank
Kalpatharu Grameena Bank

Koraput Panchabati Gramya Bank

e 129 = ~
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o TERE T e e e I Y mé@mls%aﬁag & IR
TR STV T8 2. TO% S OTE T 18 % STER 5 % ST Y8 S
it o e TR Wi & g & R d Semes ST R FE TR oA

T T AEEE T L
L wR/RY

(7. w3 #)

TodefRE T TEEr AR

EXEL

e e
WEYY WEYd
Eﬂﬁﬁ@iﬂgﬁ

wEi@

m

- 4 I 7 —
14572 (8442)  — -

FifRA # S — - -
afm 4 1051 {335.99)
206.22 (46.50)

—  (478)
145.72 (84.42)

1051 (335.99)
20622 {46.50)

. Transactions/Balances:

Krishna Grameena Bank
Langpi Dehangi Rural Bank *
‘Malwa Gramin Bank
Manjira Grameena Bank' -
Marwar Gramin Bank
Mizoram Rural Bank
Nagaland Rural Bank
Nagarjuna Grameena Bank ;
" Palamau Kshetriya Gramin Bank
. Parvativa Gramin Bank ‘
Pithoragarh Kshetriya Gramin Bank
Raigarh Kshetriya Gramin- Bank
Samastipur Kshetriya Gramin Bank
Sangameshwara Grameena Bank
Santhal Parganas Gramin Bank '
Shivpuri-Guna Kshetriya Grameena Bank
Sri Ganganagar Kshetriya Gramin Bank
Sri Saraswathi Grameena Bank '
Sri Sathavahana Grameena Bank
Sri Visakha Grameena Bank
Srirama Grameena Bank
Surendranagar Bhavnagar Gramin Bank
Vidisha Bhopal Kshetriya Gramin Bank
SBI Home Finance Ltd. !
The Clearing Corporation of Indxa Lid
Nepal SBI Bank Ltd. :
Bank of Bhutan .
UTI Asset Management Company Pvt. Ltd.
Asset Reconstruction Company (India) Ltd.

d) Key Management Personnel of the Bank:
Shri A. K. Purwar, Chairman
Shri P. N. Venkatachalam, Managing Director
Shri A. K. Batra, Managing Director {upto 07.07.2003)
Shri C. Bhattacharya, Managing Director (w.e.f. 17.12.2003)

. Out of above, the following are the Related Party Relationship in respect

of which disclosures are requlred to be made in terms of

AS-18:
Credit Information Bureau {India) Ltd.

GE Capital Business Process Management Semces anate Limited

SBI Home Finance Ltd.

Nepal SBI Bank Ltd..

Bank of Bhutan ‘

Asset Reconstruction Company (India) Ltd.

Shri A. K. Purwar, Chairman “

Shri P. N. Venkatachalam, Managing Du‘ector

Shri A. K. Batra, Managing Director (upto 07.07.2003)

Shri C. Bhattacharya, Managing Director {w.e.f. 17.12-2003}

Other Related Parties are_‘State-controlled Enterprises’ and hence no. -

disclosures are required as per paragraph 9 of AS 18. Further, in

terms

of paragraph 5 of AS 18, transactions in the nature of banker-customer
relationship are not required to be disclosed in respect of Key
Management Personnel and relatives of Key Management Personnel.

{Rs. in Crores)

Items/Related Party Associates/ “Key Relatives

Joint Marnagement

of key Total

Ventures Pezsonnel @ Management
; Personnel @

Borrowings # - 47 - - —  f{a78)
Deposits # 14572 (84.42) - — 14572 (84.42)
Placement of .
deposits # - - - .=
Advances # 1051 (335.99) S 10.51 (335.99)
Investments # 206.22  (46.50) . T 206,22 (46.50)
Non-funded ‘ : .
commitments # - - = - - -
Leasing/HP . ,

amangements evailed §  — - — R _
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15,

VR % T Y - - - — - =

fa-glR s §

sm i R e § - - - — - -
smaRdwms . - - T~ T — - -
TE =9 5 006 (217) - — 006 (217)
W N § 257 (33.86) — = 257 (33.66)
H TE S 0.50  (0.65) - - 0.50  [0.65)
Yo T § 1623  (3.13) — = 16.23  (3.13)
T T § - = ez 1Y) — B (0.13)

02

(Frew ¥ & m FFS 31 9 2003 F ) ) o

# 31.3.2004 F1 99 TERN $ = 2003-04 | I

@ T TR 9 T TRy 9 W F W L

T % e ¥ gay ¥ fewadt 9 11

s § e T e few a6 R

%@m?wmwwmﬁmmw%mmmﬁm
™ R

e 1.4.2001 A T3 W <) 7 el et AR o A 19 F SER o8
H o T ¥ B o ‘

(& g #)
- 9 ¥ fu o 39 v fafm 164.73 (164.73)
fedie 31.3.2004 F W T L.

TEE T TR &
e 1Y FH
e 1¥s5F T
o 5 =d o T oA
Im
fsfe 7 & T e o = adm T

(Fme # R e 31 7 2003 ¥ §)

31.28 (26.33)
44.72 (61.85)
3.96 {8.50)
79.96 (96.68)
15.88 (21.89)

| g
T %, 69.94

(Fraet @4 .3681,00,00,000/4T2. 378 F1 Wit shya den
52,62,98,878)

| RS, 69.94 (% O A ey Sl IR AE Y

T ot

TH . 59.00 (f3551 19 %.3105,00,00,000/Efer Il R wiftq Shwra e
52,62,98,878) e -

mmw{sgoo (wmmwmw%?ﬁe)

17.

mﬁmma&a(sﬁﬁm)/aﬂmﬁmwaﬁw(eﬁzﬁw

C(F) a6 % dm, anefi S S F gorEen & w9 1 @y OR af we d 276.28

Fig % (fYea o 13.26 wig wo0) (Freer) Tiiyem T g €.

(@) e IR W F W (= #5 H)
Eiciu 31.3.2004 ¥ 31.3.2003 H
HAER = 32.43 66.43
ke Tl Ce 203.85 229.42
o AEE | g 20.90 10.99
am 257.18 306.84
R
s afEdl % foe fE T weue 358.75 257.63
AF-TR ¥ U yeeA 143.50 -
e Edger+ F w99 o 245.07* 31.21**

T w0 ¥ Ffie St f ffam

Ty w9 A Trifi Pt Fobnll # f3® 31.3.2004 % w4 2. 260.26 Fg
A 9% w1 feem Wi &,

(% Fg H)
L mﬁrmm vﬁr(s)éwﬁaraurﬁmmm
1 TweE wEY e W ufaew wiw o s0.00  wwE 60%
2 M Hew vy T Pl
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5 Fites &% sifw e et 5246 &4 60%

o AE 27 F S F R, G w9 3 FebE S ¥ ¥ ¥ Re § i
s, et T R o o g A PR e A d

14,

15.

16,

17,

- Basic Rs.5%:00

Leasing/HP

arrangements

provided § - - -
Purchase of )

fixed assets § C— — -
Sale of fixed assets $ - - - - - -
Interest paid $ So008 (217 - - 006 {217)
Interest received § 257 (33.86) - 2,57, {33.66)

Rendering of

services $ /\ 0.50
1 1623
b

D]
i

et
L3

S,
¢

™
|

0.50
16.23

0.65) - -
(3.13) - -

(0.65)
" Receiving of serviges § {313)
Management . :
contracts § - -~ 01z (013 — =} -
Figures in brackets pertain to 31st March 2003)

# Balance as at 31.03.2004 $ Total for the year 2003-2004
@ Transactions which are not in the nature of banker-customer relationship
In respect of transactions with ARCIL Refer Note No.11

Figures in brackets related to previous year.

The above disclosures-are as identified by the management and relied
upon by the Auditors,

012 (013)

Assets given on lease with effect from 1.4.2001 accounted for as per
Accounting Standard 19:
(Rs. in Crores)

Total gross investment in the leases ¢64 73 (164.73)
Present value of minimum lease payments
receivable as on 31.3.2004
® Less than 1 year
® 1to 5 years
® 5 years and above
Total
Present value of unearned finance income
{Figures in brackets pertain to 31st March 2003)

Earnings Per Share: ;)
Current Year
Basic Rs.69.94

31.28 (26.33)
44.72 (61.85)
3.96 (8.50)
78.96 (96.68)
15.88 (21.89)

)
(Net Profit Rs.3681,00,00 000/welghted\average
number of equity shares 52,62,98, 8783/

Diluted Rs:69.94 (There are no dilutive potential equity shares)

Previous Year .
-(Net Profit Rs.3105,00,00,000/weighted average
number of equity shares 52,62,98,878)

Diluted Rs.59.00 (There are no dilutive potential equity shares)

Deferred Tax Liabilities (DTL) / Deferred Tax Assets (DTA): .
( ) During the year, Rs.276.28 Crores (Previous year Rs.13.26 Crores) (net)

“has "heen” debited/credited "to” Profit "and" Loss Account~by way of -

adjustment of deferred tax.
(b) Components of DTL and DTA:
DTL

{Rs. in Crore)

As on 31.3.2004  As on 31.03.2003

VRS expenses 32.43 66.43
Depreciation on leased assets 203.85 229.42
Depreciation on Fixed Assets 20.90 16.99
Total 257.18 306.84
DTA

Provision made against NPAs 358,75 275.83
Provision for wage revision 143.50 -
Net balance of DTA*/DTL** 245.07* 31.21**

Investments in jointly controlied entities:
Investment includes Rs.260.26 Crores representing the Bank's interest in
the foliowing jointly controlled entities as at 31-03-2004:

(Rs. in Crores)

Sr.  Name of the Company Amount Country/ Percentage
No. (Rs.)  Residence Holding
1 SBI Cards & Payments Services
Pvt. Ltd. 60.00 India 60%
2 GE Capital Business Process
Management Services Pvt. Ltd. 10.80 India 40%
3 SBI Life Insurance Co. Ltd. 129.50 India 74%
4 Credit Information Bureau
{India) Ltd. 7.50 India 40%
5  Commercial Bank of India LLC.  52.46 Russia 60%

As required by AS27 the aggregate amount of the assets, liabilities, income
and expenses related to the Bank's interests in jointly controlled entities
are disclosed as under:
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w: et ok o
A:  Assets & Liabilities
(5. %€ # / Rs. in Crores)
Thekafm feefta f 2004 | R ad 2003 | anfEm - | et ad 2004 | Rt &k 2003
Capital & Liabilities FY 2004 FY 2003 Assets FY 2004 FY 2003
st ol srefefa ‘ s oo 9 A T ok St
Capital & Reserves 283.03 151.05 Cash and balances with Reserve Bank of India 11.00 4.02
SRRl o § ol o i aw @ g W WS o
Deposits — Balances with banks and money at call and short notice’ 103.66 27.18
IR-afrd fafrer
Borrowings 397.03 326,63 Investments . 285.27 141.27
¥ [ © T sfim ‘
Other Liabilities & Provisions 265.41 103.69 Advances 491,11 368.78
s e \
Fixed Assets ) 15.21 11.23
¥ G
Other Assets 39.22 28.89
@m a .
Total 945.47 581.37 Total ] 945.47 581.37
Y3l sfagad Capital Commitments 1.26 (2.27)
¥4 S qffad Other Contingent Liabilities 1.34 (4.33)
» (z. T3 ) (Rs. in Crores)
W AT Ew etz =t 2004 frsrg a¢ 2003 B. Income and Expenditure FY 2004 ~ FY 2008
L s 1. Income
B " 134.55 105.34 Interest earned 134.55 105.34
g 133.76 80.53 Other income 133.76 80.53
T 268.31 185.87
7 5™ 268,41 185.87 otal Income 68,
18 diture
I = Expen
: Interest expended 17.25 19.70
=1 o T S 17.25 19.70 B
. Operating expenses 190,91 132.97
ofiarer =T 190.91 132.97 P 8 % .
. . . . Provisions & contingencies 38.69 27.69
YAYH & SRS 38.69 27.69 o . . .
- - .- - - T Total "Expenditiire 246.85 - 180.36
EERe 246.85 180.36 ’
I Profit 2146 5.51
ILEY 21.46 551 -
18. Tod =4 & siwd & uo o ¥ e | fimm w0 #1 gt § 5 aueEws ol 18.  Previous year's figures have been regrouped and reclassified, wherever

gefeiey, TEfed @ R = T 2. o el o ey ol Y ¥ necessary and determinable, to make them comparable with current year's
fea-FEE & AR Teet AR ERERe faw T §, o frow 9 ¥ wiEd T o figures. In cases where disclosures have been made for the first time in

m ¥ terms of RBI guidelines, previous year figures have not been mentioned.




YR ©T §% STATE BANK OF INDIA
31 WTH 2004 W AU 98 & AU TR varg famw

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH,

2004

(qoo 1 215 R T ?)

- (000s omitted)

31.3.20

04 & qEE Fd

Year ended 31.3.2004
(= 9§ current ‘year)

'31.3.2003 H FAS T4

Year ended 31.3.2003
(fomem o8 previous year)

oA wg pal

“gftare™ wrdeeTd § THS Weg
. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

. frew Triwad | TEd vaE

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

faaaiaur FrEdFeml § Tl vaE
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

TH T Tt Augedn § Fae afiteds

NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
T % Ry H Twdt Ud THd S

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR -

fageh fafma v afted=t =1 gu=

EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES
a4 F T W Tehd T TRl THGe

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF
THE YEAR

%. Rs.

%. Rs.
254,83,58

(1050,30,84)
(842,17,65)

(1637,64,91)

45181,02,45

23,24,14

43566,61,68

_%. Rs,

. Rs.
(18572,10,53)

(331,67,79)
" (7086,65,56)

(19610,43,88)

64930,16,63

(138,70,30)

45181,02,45

A

. URETe sl | The! YaTg

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

"F Q8 FEe oY Nét Profit before taxes . -

Wi Adjustment for:

R geh Deprematlon charges

e Tl & fawg W g (=) Loss/(Proflt) on sale of fixed assets
STV aferdl % fU WewH Provision for NPAs

“HirTE TS % Tfu WEEH Provision on standard assets

STTHY THaIHOF 8 WA Provision for leave encashment -
et = HeAg Depreciation on Investments

37 &l & O W=y Provision on Other Asseis

g T S f&l" WEUM Provision on RRBs.

3 HEY Other provisions

d & 3R mafafad e Tore wd

Deferred Revenue Expenditure written off during the year
sufiri (Fram Frieam) ¥ T e

Dividend from Subsidiaries (investing activity)

THEfteTs Al (Faaumn wRfEe™) W oHgw s

Interest paid on SBI Bonds (financing activity)

TN F P 92E Less direct taxes

wEer afid A Reda § yd gfEen o

Operating profit before change in operating assets

guEEE Adjustment for:

S # gfg/(FH) Increase/(Decrease) in Deposits
T o qﬁg/(wﬂ) Increase/(Decrease) in ‘Borrowings
frei # (3f5)/#H (Increase)/Decrease -in -Investments

it # (q@)/’eﬁﬁ (Increase)/Decrease in Advances

o Sgae ol grEdE § ghey (e

Increase/(Decrease) in Other Liabilities & Provisions

7 onf&ral ¥ (3g)/#H (Increase)/Decrease in Other Assets
fETe FEFad 8 TR gR/ASY Faa Twet

NET CASH USED IN/PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

4971,27,73}

'698,34,50
... 62,87
3702,75,09

'49,11,65]

487,49,54
17,13,10
(2,01,87)

327,70,68

354,51,37

(161,31,17)

395,68,72

10952,54,01
(2589,93,69)

.8362,60,32

22495,38,91

(13509,11,92)

1624,79,18
1030,41,38

254,83,58

4127,71,41

(23876,95,70)

| 5267,50,75

493,68,91
27,13

' 2592,42,43

204,67,60
- -38,20,00
419,55,73

| (786,83,42)|
(3,42,00)

81,48,66
354,51,26
(137,22,08)

395,68,72

8920,53,71
(1834,51,85)

7086,01,86.

25563,13,87
(20,32,52)
(27564,44,81)
(19539,75,30)

(1026,16,38)
(3070,57,25)

(18572,10,53)
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Year ended 31.3.2003
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B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

AT Fo/eremn wywa IE § Fow

Investments in Subsidiaries and/or Joint Ventures

W e = ol om

Income earned on such Investments
s anfeaat

Fixed Assets

o wriwemt § wga Faa T

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

farrareT FrEdee ¥ TR YATE

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Neidecid

Share Capital

i i

Share Premium

o 57

Subordinated Bonds

o siE w Frfay(HreA)
Issue/(Redemption) of Subordinated Bonds
el W Hew s

Interest Paid on Bonds

TR

Dividends Paid

Tasrden FEwad § wgE o Twe
NET CASH USED IN
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

T 94 & WY ¥ THdl TH Tohal ugeH

D.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

() w9 T (zEd FRh =i G gu = afERe ¥)

Cash in hand (including foreign currency notes and gold)

(i) wrd fod S5« 8 SOl

Balances with Reserve Bank of India
A § SHERE 9O G T ey gEA W W Sty
Balances with Banks and Money at Call and Short Notice

(iii)

134

%. Rs.

(256,08,17)

161,31,17

(955,53,84)

87,31

(395,68,72)

(447,36,24)

1136,20,43

11602,26,41

32442,55,61

% Rs.|

(1050,30,84)| .

(842,17,65)

45181,02,45{ '

%. Rs.

(1,61,71)
137,22,06

' (467,28,14)

4,66,42
* (395,68,72)

- {315,63,26)

1052,58,33
120819,95,14

43057,63,16

¥. Rs.

(331,67,79)

(706,65,56)

64930,16,63
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A:! 'q'si L2y mnﬁa ™ ?E-E'T & T e
F “CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
"AT THE END OF THE YEAR : "
Q) Y TR
(¥ st i e Faﬂf wiefem %)
Cash in hand }
(including - forelgn currency notes and gold) 1284,98,05 - 1136,20,43
(i) e ford do 8§ SR S ,
Balances .with Reserve Bank of India ) .17756,30,36 11602,26,41
(i) S F wERRE 9 Wi @ oY TEA W WH 6
Balances with Banks and Money at Call ~
and Short Notice =707 T LT T T AT T TT4525,33727 | T T 32442,55,61 (- v o m
' - LTeri T | 435666168 | | 45181,02,45
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1.\%?@2%&5&%%@,19553%%41(1)%%’ DN P )
ﬁ'ﬁ'ﬂﬁ udi o = Sipest ST - e, the undersigned ‘Auditors o e State Ban
il . % . w & i : of India, appointed under Section 41 (1) of the State -
& F ﬂ.i . o, A SR A T e Bank of India Act, 1955, do hereby report to the
F I H I TR H ROECELY o R A W 2 Central Government upon the Balance Sheet, Profit
2. T U €2 9% ¥ 31 9 2004 ¥ e IC L] & Loss Account and the Cash Flow Statement of
’ ] - the Bank.
aﬁ'{as'g"[ R ! i & o ot wn a 2 Wehan dited the attachied Bal ‘Sheet of th
frsiy Faa . e have audited the attached Balance Sheet of the
. ] I FE-we 31 . 5 ' State Bank of India as at 31st March, 2004, the
H Pt & o i € Profit and Loss Account; and the Cash Flow
¥ FrfeE, Sieg TWHR guE FEE, SO 3t::tement ofdth;1 Bartlk 'f;)r the yeztarder{dedﬂlon th_ac;
e tan f ate annexe ereto. Incorporated in the sai
wat Waér{ ), T ¥ RN financial statements are the accounts of:
é‘q‘} aﬁ% ' T (i) The Central Office, fourteen Local Head Offices,
o Corporate Accounts Group (Central), Leasing
(ii) 378 TR -@; o IR 9a W&ﬁ a; ﬁﬂﬁ ‘ Strateiic Buili'nezs bUnit (SBU) and forty two
AE-THE I AR T R, Branches au l(tie y us; _
(ii) Eight thousand one hundred seventy seven
(iii) léé?[@a.ﬁﬂ s o, fome o s Indian Branches -audited by other auditors; -
SIEERECZ I Il (iii) Twenty Foreign Branches audited by the local
(iv) 38 W eqE o= wRdA wEel %, R auditors; and
SerEafaa faerfr e yaYs g/ gata i (1V] Eight hundred elghteen other Indian Branches,
T ¥ o srEehiiE wEel w1 e s § the unaudited returns of which are certified
o R B 1.59%. S 3 F 0.16% by the Branch Managers. These unaudited
0.44%, o /e branches account for 0.44% of advances, 1.59%
T = 2R A 1.10% 2. of deposits, 0.16% of interest income and
3 fordra faeor Fo-waem =1 frser ¥ a9 m 1.10% of interest expenses.
ST AWA-FE F YR W T g e w These financial statements, are the responsibility
R W‘-ﬂ% of the Bank’s management. Our responsibility is
g . ) _ to express an opinion on these financial statements
3. T UM EITiEn-#d WRd § gwe: w@ied based on our audit.
A HieR! % SFTER R B, 5 A % 3fea g7 3. We conductéd our audit in accordance with the
ST A 2 fre ST TS Y A 39 TFR auditing standa.rds generally accepted in India. Thosg
T ol Fremfea w @ifs = wqfe w9 ¥ 79 o H standarfls require that we plan and perform the audit
3 <t fF fyd Ryt § Heeh o : to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
AR =l Y fer 'Eg_ financial statements . are free of material
o forerm & fiu T ¥, Sl % sfwta fast misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a
forarort & weqa AferEl iR Fereietil % wmefq § fau Tw test basis, evidence suppoiting the amounts and
Wed ) TAHU 3MYR R 919 1 S 2. A@9aen & disclqsures in- the ﬂnanciaJ statemepts. An a}udit
sfa wee g W Sra-fagidl ae WE e also includes assessing thé accounting principles
Sy e S  : = P used and significant estimates made by management,
E !, FEgrd (SRl as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
feren s 2. & forvarw 3 f e e e wR presentation. We believe that our audit provides
affirg %ﬁfﬁ@ﬂ'ﬁrﬂﬁ YR Y[ FIdT % a reasonable basis for our opinion.
4. AT Ry @ A = Frard fafram sl 4, The Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss Account

1049 # garg g F wuw: ‘w R ‘@ wml
IR e Mo € o A urdm == S sfufEm, 1055
amwésmﬁaa%ﬁﬁmﬁ%ma‘r%wﬁm
aﬁw“réﬁ%

ﬂ|

To

HE AUDIT

3

The President of India,

have been drawn up in Forms ‘A’ and ‘B’ respectively
of the Third Schedule to the Banking Regulation
Act, 1949 and these give information as required
to be given by virtue of the provisions of the State
Bank of India Act, 1955 and Regulations thereunder.




5. %A frefofes & oR s ol R §: 5.
e T A-afr & i/ efds @ S
o ool o wg 9. 1, e wdle fed S
I el W s W & SR/ e % wer
H, WG W e e g s fereeht fafma
T H B O wREdE & yvEl % e’ ¥ gehu
¥ T 11 g A adEa & T R

6. TG T4 H R SR 9% g IMer ® oaun e R
T TR YR W SR S R IwE 7]
2 3R 5% Wy vfsq 5% % akE § K@@ ™ R,
(%) ()  vg@ T et F fomn w od wd

T feufil F Wy W) W W gees o

2 7 3V 39 YR dAR fe W R fE ae

31 T 2004 B Jb F HHES H ARAAH

M wd f wia

T o A % e v orE WS

T feouforgl & |y w9 W @Y w2

T 36 A B T 9d F oy o we
(iil) TEEIA & G HerA 31 A 2004 H TR

varg foew a¥ & Te yaml @ wE ud
Sreerh T S T A WIRE 8 W

(@) TR W& ot ¥ TAEd IR TR A R,
T a8 TEER R W o T ¥ SR g
?@WW%

(M) Tl R F o S F -39 9% F
dmr-gm ¥ & ¥ aw

(%) & & FrEieE 3 amEnsl § g et g
AE-TE F ey ¥ sty wE T E

(ii)

We invite attention to:

Item No.1 of the Notes to Accounts regarding
translation/conversion of foreign exchange balances
wherein RBI/FEDAI instructions/guidelines have
been followed in preference to the Accounting
Standard 11 on “Accounting for the Effects of
Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates” issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
In our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us and
as shown by the books of the Bank, read with
paragraph 2 and 5 above, we report that:
(a) (i) the Balance Sheet, read with the Principal
Accounting Policies and the Notes to
Accounts, is a full and fair Balance Sheet
containing all the necessary particulars and
is properly drawn up so as to exhibit a
true and fair view of the affairs of the
Bank as at 31st March 2004;
the Profit and Loss Account, read with
the Principal Accounting Policies and the
Notes to Accounts, shows a true balance
of Profit for the year ended on that date;
and
(iii) the Cash Flow Statement annexed to the
Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2004 gives
a true and fair view of the cash flows
for the year, and are in conformity with
the Accounting Principles generally
accepted in India.
where we have called for any information
and explanations, such information and
explanations have been given to us and we
have found them to be satisfactory;
the transactions of the Bank which have come
to our notice have been within the powers
of the Bank; and
the returns received from the offices and
branches of the Bank have been found adequate
for the purpose of our audit.

(i)

(b

(c)
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2.3.1 I H Faw 0 % A1 1 o S W
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2.3.2 o UEeT SR ET & ot wey o *
e @ e afufaEia (e &
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3. fogeht qr o e

3.1
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eI A SR TR B § SR e gefw
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4. fafram

4.1 STeRTOT:
fafrut =1 iRt FER rame & fog @ e,
‘farsha & fou Suersy’ &I “afggaar & for @ mu’ Sforat
(F) 34 fafaert =1 ‘oremm % fog @ T g &

- sfqta sffepa feman 7 €, S Sk 510 STeura e goa/

- TL-TE FHI FAGT ISTHL TG FH F
iy § ifinda fee g ¥, TR ot =
sifirem =t faf¥r | 90 & 7% 39 oft F ofwfa
T SR,

2.3.2 The minority shares of movements in

revenue reserves / loss (equity) since the
date the parent-subsidiary relationship came
into existence.

3 Transactions involving foreign exchange

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

Items of income and expenditure as well
as assets and liabilities in foreign currencies
in respect of foreign offices, foreign
subsidiaries and foreign joint ventures, and
assets and liabilities in foreign currencies
held in the books of domestic offices are
converted at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the close of the year as per Reserve Bank
of India (RBI} guidelines. Items of income
and expenditure in foreign currencies at
domestic offices are converted at the
exchange rate prevailing on the date of
transactions.

The banking entities of the Group recognize
profit or loss on pending forward contracts
as per Foreign Exchange Dealers Association
of India (FEDAI) guidelines.

Interest income and expense on Interest
Rate Swaps (IRSs) and Forward Rate
Agreements (FRAs) are accounted for on
accrual basis.

Derivative transaction such as IRSs, Options
and Currency Swaps undertaken for trading
and outstanding as on balance sheet date
are marked to market and net appreciation/
depreciation is recognised in the income
account.

4 Investments

4.1.

Classification:

Investments are classified into “Held for
Trading”, “Available for Sale” and “Held to
Maturity” categories as below:

a) The investments that are acquired with
-the intention to trade by taking
advantage of the short term price/
interest rate movement are classified
under “Held for Trading.” These
investments are held under this category
upto 90 days from the date of
acquisition.

141 =
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4.2.1

4.2.2

4.2.3

4.2.4

SBI (Consolidated)

b} Investments which are intended to be
held up to maturity are classified as
“Held to Maturity.”

c) Investments which are not classified in
either of the above categories are
classified as “Available for Sale.”

Valuation:

In determining acquisition cost of
investment: '

(a) Brokerage/commission received on
subscriptions is deducted from the cost
of securities.

(b) Brokerage, commission and stamp duty
paid in connection with acquisition of
securities are treated as revenue
expenses.

{c) Interest accrued up to the date of
acquisition of securities (i.e. broken
period interest) is excluded from the
acquisition cost and recognized as
interest expenses. "

Individual scrips classified under “Held for
Trading” category, where market quotations
are available, are valued at lower of book
value or market value. Depreciation, if any,
is recognized in the profit and loss account,
while appreciation is ignored. The book
value of the individual scrip is not changed.

Investments under “Held to Maturity”
category are carried at acquisition cost,
Wherever the book value is higher than the
face value / redemption value, the excess
amount is amortized equally over the
remaining period of maturity.

Investments under “Available for Sale”
category are valued at cost or market price
whichever is lower. Where market quotations
are not available, market value for this
purpose is arrived at on the basis of
realizable price computed as per Fixed
Income Money Market and Derivatives
Association of India/Primary Dealers
Association of India/RBI guidelines.
Depreciation is recognized scrip-wise while
appreciation is ignored. The book value of
the individual scrip is not changed.
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STATE BANK OF INDIA (CONSOLIDATEL)
PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1 Basis of preparation of accounts

The accompanying financial statements have
been prepared to comply, in all material aspects,
with applicable statutory/ regulatory provisions,
Accounting Standards and generally accepted
accounting principles and practices prevailing in
India, except otherwise stated.

2. Consolidation Procedure-

2.1 Consolidated financial statements of the
Group (comprising 16 subsidiaries, 5 Joint
Ventures and 50 Associates] have been
prepared on the basis of

(a) Audited accounts of State. Bank of
India (Parent}

(b} Line by line aggregation of each item
of asset/liability/income/expenses of the
16 subsidiaries with the respective
item of the Parent, and after eliminating
all material intra-group balances /
transactions, unrealized profit/loss, and
making necessary adjustments wherever
required for non-uniform accounting
policies as per Accounting Standard
(AS 21) of The Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI)

(¢} Consolidation of 5 Joint Ventures under
‘Proportionate Consolidation’ method
as per AS 27 of ICAI

(d) Accounting for investment in
‘Associates’ under the ‘Equity Method’
as per the AS 23 of the ICAI

(e) Financial Statements of the
Subsidiaries/Joint Ventures drawn up
to the same reporting date as that of
the Parent i.e. 31 March 2004.

2.2 The difference between cost to the group
of its investment in the subsidiary entities
and the group’s portion of the equity of the
subsidiaries is recoghized in the financial
statements as goodwill/capital reserve.

2.3 Minority interest in the net assets of the
consolidated subsidiaries consists of:

2.3.1 The amount of equity attributable to the
minority at the date on which investment
in a subsidiary is made, and
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4.2.5 Trea e SRR T o1 oo @ W e
TR

12,6 r-THTEATCR- e Fr # wd fwd S

¥ feanfEel & SITER OF T € a9 3 g

- YT STENYEHRT A&l o -fore an] v fsd

a.2.7 TR (s i Fadw A #) § Fafee @

oI G W 23 F SR R T 2,

4.2.8 STEMTE 3R S STl & fafemil o foem s
G 21 3R 27 ¥ AR fFa TR,

5. I
5.1 qEATH ¥ AW F graHEl o senvET
el (TII) W STEgA 4T %1 T2 quidl
TR, :
5.2 FavE-u-Efam T SIfEEl W 0.25 WY
1 U G WauH T T R

5.3 WIS FaiaT |
© 5.3.1 HEw A AR A0, sreiq (F) WA anfer,
(®) sa-urs femr, () 9fry anfee &Rk
(%) wifrye snfd, 3 enftea feran o 2.
5.3.2 Tt SR STRMI & | FAWHR TGl T sTagA
ST Y AR A F % FrEATER weeE Ry
T
F) FI-HHEF A W 10 Wiaw
w) e e |
i) o e e Y, Frata o i frmayen e
RO ME S GR SYCTsH AL T3 MRS &l

%) T A O U B T ¥ A
STgfad AT 9 100 W9,

ii) wiagqd WL
i 1 Gfevy 713 51F #1 /@y Fhawa
LecLEED 20
Y AT aF | 30

7 ‘ﬁ?aﬁﬁaf‘w 50

5.3

4.2.5 Treasury bills and commercial paper are
valued at cost.

4.2.6 Non-SLR — Non-Performing Investments are
recognized as per RBI guidelines and
provision is made as per RBI norms
applicable to Non-Performing Advances.

4.2.7 Investments in Associatés (both in India

and abroad) are valued as per Accounting

Standard 23,

4.2.8 Investments in Subsidiaries and Joint
Ventures are dealt with in accordance with
Accounting Standards 21 and 27
respectively.

Advances

5.1 Advances are shown in the balance sheet
net of provisions and unrealized interest on
Non Performing Assets (NPAs).

5.2 A general provision of 0.25% is made on
Standard Assets on the global loan
portfolio.

Indian Offices

5.3.1 All advances are classified under four
categories viz. a) Standard Assets, b} Sub-
Standard Assets, ¢) Doubtful Assets and d)
Loss Assets.

5.3.2 Provisions are made on all outstanding
advances net of interest not realized on
NPAs as under: ‘

(a) Sub-Standard Assets at 10%
(b) Doubtful Assets:

i)  Unsecured portion at 100% after netting
retainable/realizable amount of
guarantee cover provided by Export
Credit Guarantee Corporation/Credit
Guarantee Trust for small industries
wherever applicable.

ii) Secured portion:

Period for which the advance has been
considered as doubtful

Percentage
up to one year 20
One to three yeérs | 30
More than three years 50
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iii) TR Afire = TE-f T w0 F 9"
T TR 1 TR 31 |TE 2000 1 21 Y 31feres
frfeall o e @ R - Wiy w30
wherera 3R ST 17 =1 100 e,

iv) Erﬁ’;rq’aw%ﬁ- 100 wfem.

5.3.3 1M & fiea av 9 ¥ eoygd sa & fog

e fopan T R < AT A % S ST
™R

5.3.4 AIAM ¥ gAY ¥ gEd-wEEn ¥

AT & A H, A AR STTER T ST
F A e 3R HTE SRR STTHR et sars
F TAHE I & A9 & SR F fu A wd e e
F YT ok TEEA AR % 99T waue
forn T 2.

5.4 Teor (e wriea
5.4.1 T %1 R AT ¥ STy it fea

T R I 9Rd o watead % g9y ¥ R
T 2.

5.4.2 3 % Hay A JAHM TS FT 9 erenst @

T fiod s g Fruifia e faako w@ anf&
it AEE! § W S oft sifir o, Swe oTgER
fegmd. '

5.5 Al § e FIEURE! W Y 7ol 991 TSR @ e
= &1 e R TR,

6. 3T anferar

6.1

6.2

6.3

g wraferdl w1 o9a AfEE R ergE #
IS, gifd Iod TG o STTER ST (99 1962
3 stata Fyuffia g8 w i man 2. e fiwd S
% feen-frfell & oTeR Fogedl & deiy § Joam™
T WAL 33.33 FTawT Snfdes o R Wl @ agla
SR R T R, S ot Wi A
=1 = o €, 3 R gt Fad F dqu
Teaga w e T e,

7z R o T e’ & deu #, g Hiaf e w5
Aty & ey TReifyg e T 2.

ydftE W ¥% ¥ Ry fh saferl ok faiwn
FTHART # ITH NTE R I F1 WEUH
Faifera 29 F TG FEAT AR fe T e,

5.3.3

5.3.4

5.4
54.1

54.2

5.5

iii) Advances where State Government

guarantee remained default for more
than two quarters as on 31.03.2000
after it was invoked, at 30% of the
secured portion and 100% of the
unsecured portion.

iv) Loss Assets at 100%.

Unrealized interesjt recognized in the
previous year on advances, which become
non-performing during the current year is
provided for.

In case of restructuring/rescheduling of
advances, the difference between the present
value of the future interest as per the
original agreement and the present value of
the future interest as per the revised
agreement is provided for at the time of
restructuring/rescheduling by way of charge
to the Profit and Loss Account.

Foreign offices { _

Advances ate classified under four categories
in line with those of Indian Offices.

Provisions in respect of advances are
made as per IRAC norms prescribed by RBI
or 'as per local requirements whichever are

higher.

Advances include debts due from credit
card holders and also factored debis.

Fixed Assets

6.1

6.2

6.3

Depreciation on Fixed Assets of Domestic
Offices in India provided for on written
down value method: at the rates prescribed
under Income Tax Rules, 1962. In respect
of computers, depreciation is provided for
on straight-line method @ 33.33% per
annum as per RBI guidelines. Computer
software not forming integral part of
hardware is depreciated fully during the
year of purchase.

In respect of leasehold premises, the lease
amount is amortised over the period of lease.

Depreciation on the fixed assets of foreign
offices of SBI and foreign subsidiaries is
provided as per the local laws of the
countries.

> 144




TR Re s () SBI (Consolidated)

g wwanenfemt. .

7. Assets Given on Lease
71 31@2001@m3ﬂ%‘ﬁ@ﬂﬁ7§m% 7.1 ;nfrespect of as}jets givs}? on lease on or
L S o efore 31* March 2001, the assets given on
Waﬁﬁ“aﬁ ?ﬁ-{ng—{a“ lease and the advance paid against assets
i m”j! & form Hew 3 |i]' U LG T ~ given on lease are included in Fixed Assets
afErar’” ot ‘e © g s (vETEd as “Leased Assets” and “Capital Work-in-
fEr) & &9 § feR snfeydl § wnfhe fra T 2. progress (Leased Assets)” respectively.
: TR 1 TAHH H9 SR 1056 3 ST Depreciation is provided for on straight line
 Frutfe & method as per the rates prescribed in
X # zgj; ToR W . & R Schedule XIV to the Companies Act, 1956
q_-{ fofen 7 ElﬁEHg‘l TR (YT set) and-the difference between the annual lease
ﬁw%ﬁ?%maﬁ RATE TE) TR charge (capital recovery} and the
mem-ﬁ%@%mq@wé@ depreciation is taken to Lease Equalisation
H e T R, Account as per guidelines issued by the

ICAL
7.2 13T 2001 A IHH A T R E G A

I HFE AETHR HEYH GRS ol A 19

7.2 Assets given on lease on or after 1 April
2001 are accounted for as per Accounting

& STIER ore F feran T %Q'Fﬁailﬁ?ﬁ e Standard 19 issued by the ICAI Such assets
il -we o fwta ittt femen T €. are included under “Other Assets.”

7.3 STEIVHR UgThd AR & Ha9 § R 9Rad 7.3 Provisions on non-performing leased assets
oo o gra Freifed omo-fruior e s et are made on the basis of IRAC norms
TS} 3 SR R R T L prgscribed by RBIL

8. Revenue/Expense Recognition
- 8. TerE/aa e P 8

81 WA wEiEE : ST gt
39 TS =59 ) IUFad SUR o | foran T 2.

8.1 Indian Offices: Banking entities

Income and expenditure are accounted on
accrual basis. In case of Foreign Offices,

ferdeft spraferdl 3wt § st w1 faafor e income is recognized as per the local laws
T % T FHA % AER R T e of the countries. '

8.1.1 I % Freafafiag el & fyufwor, s7aht 8.1.1 The following items of income are

g ized on realization basis, owing to

et § Fafea oo e % wR recognize \ g

3 smer oy R T ' significant uncertainty in collection thereof

E. ‘ . (a) Interest and .lease income on non-

(%) sfaeafoal afea srenved 1fimi / snfat performing advances/assets, including

. WM ﬁqq@ 3T overdue bills

(b) Interest on non-performing investments

(@) mwﬁﬁéﬁmm

(c) Commission {other than commission

(M) HHEE (AT aE TRiEa AR TFE on deferred payment guarantees and
IR T Frewy), b iR e government transactions), exchange and
: | ‘ brokerage ' ,
(%) ERIRIGIRIN (d) Dividend on investments
8.2 WW*-WW 8.2 Indian Offices: Non-banking entities

R AL . 8.2.1 Issue management and advisory fees (other
8.2.1 fim walv T wemes ﬂ ek (FRATS e : than project appraisal fees) are recognised
Wa\vﬂﬁﬁaﬁ ) wﬁ%ﬁrﬂrm% HHIEUHT as per the terms of agreement with the
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8.3

10.

1 WAl % ATER e T 2, S sy
TR g ame.

8.2.2 Tt T iR wRErsTT goais Yansil ¥ defim
Yo w1 Fuf fraa #6E % qof 39 & R W
foan T 2.

8.2.3 s frfdi @ gefea et wivm sk et
374 TSI e % 3Treie wrd ) sifqm wu ed
T o H o R

8.2.4 iftfer TS Yeoh! 3 TE-HIE Yooh! ] HIEURH
1 G WIetd F94/1E & TEH & 999 34
O A L, FIE D Faferd o welt Y e
1 Fruftor Fefym oea <& F@ & ¥ fEwa
TR

8.2.5 Wil A ol 1 SYHT & MUR R ord & foran
T 8, Raara srene onfeEl % e o, Wi
T 1 YA SR R o H o R

8.2.6 9 W€ % WY TU FEY Yo 3R Teiedhil TR

1 I QST gL HMEA & rgun Ffy waiem
oF 1 3T F AR g § forn mn e,

8.2.7 St s ifirm & fFrufor 3 & w9 d s an
¥ @rg fra R

g # Fyfo 2w & sy S # oTER f
TR

- fraeny

W % ey § T=gdl/ive % fag arfas qeaisd &
YR R 3 ufersn fafy & fog wifafues siansdi &
SR YT Teha 741 €. STehTS TheIehal 1 FHH
THST YR & ag SHifeheh qedishd YR T foman
™R,

wiiss Yarfrgfa Qe ¥ deifua =@

A ATET g & wrwe F, U iy iy o
2000-01 % A @S Yarfgfa AT F wraf=gq
F FHRO T A =g Td IV % deu H gigeia
1 ) AT ToTEa qg WA T R, F e
iord S% & few-Fdel % @ 5 auf #) erafy &
HH &Y € gienfya fean smem.

client, which are generally aligned to the
percentage completion method. .

~ 8.2.2 Fees for private placement and project

8.3

appraisal services are recognised on
completion of assignment.

8.2.3 Underwriting commission and brokerage
income relating to public issues are
accounted for on finalisation of allotment
of the public issue.

8.2.4 Annual card fees and the add-on card fees
are recognised as income at the time of
setting up of cardholder account/ at the
time of renewal of the card. All other card-
related service fees are booked at the time
of recording the respective transaction.

8.2.5 Factoring service charges are accounted on
accrual basis except in the case of non-
performing assets, where income is
accounted on realisation.

8.2.6 Funds management: fees are accounted for
on accrual basis in accordance with the
Investment Management and Advisory
Agreement with the Board of Trustees or as
modified thereafter.

8.2.7 Life insurance premium is recognised as
income as and when due.

Foreign Offices/Foreign Subsidiaries |

Income is recognized as per the local laws of the
countries.

Staff Benefits

Provisions are made for gratuity / pension benefits
to staff on an actuarial valuation and for provident
fund as per statutory: requirements. Leave
encashment has been provided on the basis of
actuarial valuation instead of cash basis .

10. Expenses related to Voluntary Retirement Scheme

In case of domestic banking entities, exgratia and
incremental liability in respect of gratuity and
pension arising on implémentation of Voluntary
Retirement Scheme durihg 2000-01 is treated as
Deferred Revenue Expenditure to be amortised
equally over a period of 5 years in accordance
with the guidelines of RBL

T ——————————_p 146 LI
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12.1

AG THF 17 % FTIR @SIR Y1 37 & fog
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M

M

12.2

%) S ufEen, s sl yra/fade feom
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11. Provision for income tax

12.

Provision for income tax is made in accordance

with the statutory requirements with adjustments.....
for deferred tax in terms of Accounting Standard
22 issued by the ICAL

Segment Reporting

12.1

12.2

For the purpose of Segment Reporting as
per Accounting Standard 17, the following

‘segments "have been identified -as Primary -~

Segments:

a) Banking operations comprising
branches/ offices of banking entities in
India/abroad.

Treasury operations comprising the
treasury operations of banking entities
in India/abroad.

¢) Residual operations comprising the
operations of non-banking entities in
India/abroad.

The following segments have been identified
as Secondary Segments:

a) Indian Operations consisting of
domestic offices/entities

b)

Foreign Operations consisting of foreign
offices/entities.
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e
1 wAfEA fawita faator dar w0 g il <ge 1.
e farita oo dar < wma fe=ifnd 16 SRR/
5 G SEi/50 FEATR (Tt e W w2 F6 F 9y
g i) ) e e

ol [T NOTES ON ACCOUNTS 2003-04

List of Subsidiaries/]oin:t Ventures/Associates
considered for preparation of consolidated financial
statements. : :

1.1 The 16 Subsidiaries, 5 Joint Ventures and 50
Associates (which along-with State Bank of
India, the Parent, constitute the Group),
considered in the preparation of the

) S et - wfie fe consolidated financial statements, are:
. %W AT A) Subsidiaries
1. W2 % I AR TS AR LI 75.07% Name Country of  Proportion
Incorporation of ownershi
2. W I I LR W 100.00% o o
3. WIdFAFERR IRA 98.05% 1 State Bank of
. . . o
" ézﬁmamﬁg{ a1 92.33% Bikaner & Jaipur India 75.07%
. 2 State Bank of Hyderabad India 100.00%
5. T I 100.00% 3 State Bank of Indore India 98.05%
6. ézﬁammhg R4 100.00% 4 - State Bank of Mysore - India 92.33%
7. T2 5% G TETER & 75.01% 5 State Bank of Patiala India 100.00%
. 6 State Bank of Saurashtra India 100.00%
8. VTSI FHY TS AR - . 00
S i — 100.00% 7 State Bank of Travancore - India 75.01%
8 SBI Commercial &
9. TR %ﬁmqﬁﬂgﬁﬁé@ Yrd 86.16% International Bank Ltd. India 100.00%
10. mmmﬁmwm 9@ 100.00% 9 SBI Capital Markets Ltd. India 86.16%
— ; 10 SBI Funds
11. THAISTR s Management Pvt. Ltd. . India 100.00%
R 69.88% 11 SBI&Factors and Commercial
12. TETHRET T0E FEAT T59 oTF Services Pvt. Ltd. * India 69.88%
e fafies il 66.00% 12 Discount and Finance House
of India Ltd. India 66.00%
0,
13. W ©2 % (Fe0) FAE 100.00% 13 State Bank of India |
14, A R 9% (Fawfda)  TgEITE 100.00% (Canada) ~ Canada 100.00%
: K o 14 State Bank of India : '
) (California) USA 100.00%
15. THSSTE TTWAS (HIRT) .
. 15 SBI International
fafee LRSI 98.00% (Mauritius) Ltd. Mauritius 98.00%
16. R-TESIfEA T dw fafiee shfen 51.46% 16 INMB Bank Ltd. _ Nigeria 51.46%
=) . B) Joint Ventures
3 . 1 SBI Cards and Payment
1. THTATE FEH U e widas 9RA 60.00% Services Pvt. Ltd. India 60.00%
. fafree 2 GE Capital Business
. Process Management
2. @é%ﬁa%ﬁmﬁvmﬁﬁaﬁz Services Pvt. Ltd. India 40.00%
i o
AL, I 40.00% 3 SBI Life Insurance Co. Ltd. India 74.00%
THEISTE S SYARE ®o! fafaes 9Ra 74.00% 4 Credit Information
aa'i‘a'?ﬁwa@ dmifemfafees a/a 40.00% Bureau of India Ltd. India 40.00%
. (1]
L. 5 GCommercial Bank
FAe o 31T e Teee Lo 60.00% of India LLC Russia 60.00%

s |48
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) weE s T ’ ' ”C)A Associates
N wmﬁwéz%ammhﬁm éa’lwurrﬂmﬁaa (% ~ RRBs Sponsored by SBI ( Each ‘is established in =~
I Wﬁﬁﬁ%aﬁ'{‘%%wmé?% India and SBI is having 35% shares)
CFHuwmE) 1.  Alaknanda Gramin Bank
1. STeTERAS U S 2. Arunachal Pradesh Rural Bank
2. 3T Yo WA S 3. Bastar Kshetriya Gramin Bank
3. SER &g T S 4. Basti Gramin Bank
4. 9& g dw 5. Bilaspur Raipur Kshetriya Gramin Bank
. 5. foamEag vagR e i e c o 6. . Bolangir Anchalik Gramin Baok . _ ,
6. SR A=l urdor ¥ 7. Bundelkhand Kshetriya Gramin Bank
7. W &R JTH %Eh‘ 8. Damoh-Panna-Sagar Kshetriva Gramin Bank
8. THIR-TA-ERR & AR S 9. Ellaquai Dehati Bank -
9. TEHE e IF 10. Ganga Yamuna Gramin Bank
10. T AT AH b 11. Gorakhpur Kshetriya Gramin Bank
11. m &l oo 12. Ka Bank Nongkyndong Ri Khasi Jaintia
12. % S TAEETS & Wl S 13. Kakathiya Grameena Bank )
13. m)p BT‘:ﬁ'UT = 14. Kalshandi Anchalika Gramya Bank
14. . e 9 15. Koraput Panchbati Gramya Bank
15. HIGE Yead T S .
. 16. Krishna Grameena Bank
16. ﬂ g;ﬁm T 17. Langpi Dehangi Rural Bank
1; T mg{; . 18‘. - Manjira Grameena Bank
10, freinm =@ ¥ 19. Mizoram Rural Bank
20. TTE w6 ¥ 20. Nagaland Rural Bank
21. T T S 21. Nagarjuna Grameena Bank
22. IAW &E wrEoT EEd 22, Palamau Kshetriya Gramin Bank
3. qddg T S 23. Parvatiya Gramin Bank
24, Tydrore &g oo S 24, Pithoragarh Kshetriya Gramin Bank
25. TAE S AT S 25. Raigarh Kshetriya Gramin Bank
26. 'g'q'gﬁ'ﬂ'{ &g e S 26. Samastipur Kshetriya Gramin Bank
7. GTHYE U S 27. Sangameshwara Grameena Bank
28, HUTA IO TTHTOT SR 28. Santhal Parganas Gramin Bank
29, W‘W e T 55 29. Shivpuri-Guna Kshetriya Grameena Bank
30, ft fereman Tt EE o _ ‘ 30. Sri Visakha Grameena Bank
‘{T{!ﬁ’ﬁ D) Associates .
W@?%%maﬁmmmm Sponsored by Asseciate Banks of SBI {Each is
e (TS o IO Wi F 96 E ] 30 35% TR established in India and Associate Banks of SBI
U RE 9@ & Teart @ F E ) are having 35% shares)
1. R &g T §% : 1. Bikaner Kshetriya Gramin Bank
2. HEQ U S 2. Cauvery Grameena Bank
© 3. TirerRier T S ' . 3. Golconda Grameena Bank
4. 9HTR YHIZ TH S 4. Jamnagar Rajkot Gramin Bank
5. S[ANTE-3E T o 5. Junagadh Amreli Gramin Bank
6. HETE AHW FH 6. Kalpatharu Grameena Bank
7. T W S 7.  Malwa Gramin Bank
8. HRdlg T S 8. Marwar Gramin Bank
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0. #f TR & TEder S
10. & wCEE uwo S

11. GFERA T

12. SR T SR .

13. GEFR WETR TH S5
14. fofean et &fim g S

T) = agant

1. TENE I N [ W 25.05%
2. TFeafor sniem siw

e fafaes ARA 28.97%
3. YU qEeleTE 9% fafiRe ww 50.00%
4. 9% IE A TRE 20.00%
5. FETE T =il

Hot . fa A 25.00%
6. THZ ez Hu

(¥femm) fa. IR 24.50%

1.2 a8 ¥ W W ¥ e  Fefafen agee e

1.2.1 4% 3 <A % 26 FEU 2004 F AR F
3ER wEser fieey fa. 71 faoe fempRe @
WS TS T grean . & we e e, frere
& g R 01.04.2003 B TW Rerw H Jam
FH F JAH ¥ oo # T IHE & fiwel W
fom forem T 2.

1.2.2 T §F F WY GIH U9 % T H 5 TR 2003
= w9 ¥ Ffhg wade g ofw sea vouerh
3 04 feH<R 2003 ¥ U= yRY .

1.3 i | Fmfie gt weiens wiaewm fafierer dfmar
F 3fwan § 2. 3 FIE F s g # @ faw e
¥ 3R T e § 9% ¥ A W ey 8 § o=
" % sfarfa wreg ofvwll # frn mn R

1.4 THHeTE FrgfEis . e srqah, sh s wRear
%1 ufiean 3 oft, Rwmra S TE €. WHE W 45.60 TS
qu & R fEw W g aget @ T R

1.5 8 FEat - S% #ie e (31 RER) a1 Jo=
Tt o T, (fig Fetetad) wat g @ fir=t e
af T €. '

1.6 LG TR B 9t 1. . Ik weantt &% feir

10

E)

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6
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9.  Sri Ganganagar Kshetriya Gramin Bank

Sri Saraswathi Grameena Bank
11. Sathavahana Gramee;xa Bank )
12. Srirama Grameena B"ank 7
13. Surendranagar Bhavnagar Gramin Bank
14. Vidisha Bhopal Kshetriya Gramin Bank

OTHER ASSOCIATES

1. SBI Home Finance Ltd. India  25.05%
2.  Clearing Corporation? |

of India Ltd. India  28.97%
3. Nepal SBI Bank Ltd. India  50.00%
4. Bank of Bhutan India  20.00%
5. UTI Asset Management

Company Pvt. Ltd. | India  25.00%
6. Asset Reconstruction

Company (India) Ltd. India  24.50%

The following changes have taken place in the
composition of the group during the year :

1.2.1 SBI Gilts Ltd., has been merged with Discount
& Finance House of India Ltd. in terms of
the Order of the Mumbai High Court dated
26" February 2004. The effective date of
merger is 01.04.2003. For the purpose of
preparing this statement, the figures of the
mergered entity have been considered.

1.2.2 Commercial Bank of India LLC, a joint
venture with Canara Bank, incorporated
in Russia as a joint stock company on 5%
November 2003, has commenced operation
effective from 4" = December 2003.

SBI Servicos Limitada, a subsidiary incorporated
in Brazil, is in the process of being liquidated.
While figures of these Companies have not. been
taken for the purpose of consolidation, the bank’s
investment in these subsidiaries have been shown
as receivable under the head “Other investment
in Schedule 8.”

SBI Securities Ltd. a subsidiary which was under
voluntary liquidation has been liquidated. The
group’s equity investment of Rs. 45.60 crores has
been fully realised. ‘

Two of the associates - Bank of Bhutan (31¢
December) and Nepal SBI Bank Ltd. (Hindu
Calendar Year), follow accounting year different

from that of the parent.

The Financial Statement of One of the Associates -




